
 
 



From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Todau
Date: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 10:57:30 AM

Hi Antoni, I'm on the way, but just wanted to let you know that I'm moving a bit slowly and might need to go home
early. Woke up with a sore throat, can't talk well. I actually feel fine, just kind of tired, so I'm happy to come in, I'll
just have to see if this gets worse.

Katie

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Straker, Kathryn
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Today
Date: Tuesday, February 03, 2015 10:41:05 AM

Ahhj I'm late. My neighbor was listening to ridiculously loud music and I couldn't sleep, so I put in ear plugs and
now I didn't hear my alarm. I'll get there as fast as I can.

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Straker, Kathryn
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Today
Date: Tuesday, January 13, 2015 10:55:04 AM

I'm sorry, I'm going to be there at 12.

Katie

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Today
Date: Tuesday, February 24, 2015 10:59:57 AM

Hi Antoni, guess what, I'm late! I hate so much having to say "I'm late" again but that's the way the cookie is
crumbling lately. I can't sleep. I was up most of the night and on top of winter blues, mornings are rough. I'm on the
way, will be there byn11:30.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Midori Kaneko Larsen
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Tomorrow at 3
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2015 9:32:22 AM

Dear Antoni

Hope you had a great trip. I will be there at 3pm tomorrow. Thank you!!

Midori
646-748-8395

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Kathryn Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: tomorrow
Date: Monday, April 20, 2015 9:51:33 PM

Hi Antoni,

I'm sorry I'm reminding you so late, I've been in class & working all day and it just came to
mind! We talked last week about my working another day. This would still be really good for
me, so if I can come in on Wed or Fri that would be fantastic. (Unfortunately, I can't even
make it to that casting call tomorrow, that I wanted to go to. It's a Martin Scorsese series, too!
I have a deadline I need to meet, instead. UGH. My last class paper ever!)

Thanks -- and I can't wait to hear about the conference!

Katie

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Samuel Thomas
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: touching base
Date: Monday, April 13, 2015 8:04:27 PM

Antoni,

Can we meet on Wednesday. I want to stop by with Judy Myers, about grant stuff. Also, want 
to touch base about upcoming concerts, promotions, etc.

Hope you’re well and returning from a relaxing week off.

Best,
=-= Samuel

Samuel Torjman Thomas, Ph.D
Ethnomusicologist
Artistic Director, NY Andalus Ensemble | 917-620-3998
http://www.NewYorkAndalusEnsemble.com | http://www.AsefaMusic.com

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.newyorkandalusensemble.com/
http://www.asefamusic.com/


From: Piza, Antoni
To: Meira Goldberg
Subject: tourism
Date: Friday, January 09, 2015 11:45:00 AM

http://www.cbp.gov/travel/international-visitors/esta
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 
From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 10:52 AM
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Voy un poquito tarde
 
estoy en el bus-creo que voy a llegar a y cuarto -- ¡lo siento!

--

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
http://www.cbp.gov/travel/international-visitors/esta


From: Marcel Camprubí
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Tractat medieval jueu mallorquí
Date: Saturday, April 25, 2015 11:07:03 AM

A l'atenció d'Antoni Pizà,

Em dic Marcel Camprubí i vaig estudiar musicologia a l'Autònoma de Barcelona, on vaig fer
un treball sobre Ramon Llull i la música dirigit per la Maricarmen Gómez Muntané. La
Maricarmen em va comentar que li semblava que algú a CUNY havia treballat sobre un tractat
de música mallorquí escrit per un jueu o una font similar. M'interessa la música medieval i
especialment els contactes musicals entre cristians, musulmans i jueus en el context de la
Mediterrània. M'agradaria treballar sobre la música a Mallorca durant els segles XIII i XIV i
t'estaria molt agraït si em poguessis donar alguna informació en relació a aquesta font de
música jueva.

Gràcies pel teu temps. Ben cordialment,

Marcel Camprubí

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Train
Date: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 11:01:37 AM

OK! I've been waiting a whole for a train, they just announced there's a stalled train and we have to go another way.
I'll be there eventually.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Roberto Barnard
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Tres meses
Date: Saturday, May 30, 2015 11:18:43 PM

Saludos Herr Toni! Sehr gut!  

Bueno, con novedad que la Universidad de Guadalajara me acaba de conceder un "contrato civil"
por tres meses: es un apoyo económico mínimo pero es para ayudarme tramitar mis documentos
oficiales de Licenciatura, Maestria y Doctorado.  En cuanto tengan éstos, solicitarán la plaza
(tenure-track). Por eso la ultra-mega urgencia. Jeff me dijo que ahora sí, estaba echándole ganas y
le dije muchas gracias. Aunque no le he comunicado esta información aún, para no agobiar.
Aunque debería de hacerlo. Perhaps you can...

Hay muchos problemas acá del crimen; parece Colombia en otroros tiempos. Muchos se han
largado pero muchos no podemos porque somos pobres y ganamos un tercio de lo que ustedes
ganan en Europa y los EEUU y Canadá. Pero pagamos casi lo mismo por servicios y comida.

No salió el trabajo en la community college en Washington, pero no me desanimo.

El lunes operan a mi mujer; espero y confío en que saldrá bien y está en buenas manos. 

Saludos y luego me voy allá, ojalá, para depositar el documento cuanto antes, y ver a RILM y
demás.

adeu adiós até mais au revoir ciao
rbb

-- 
https://soundcloud.com/barnard-baca

roberto.barnard@cuaad.udg.mx 
 www.qsl.net/xe1gxg  
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://soundcloud.com/barnard-baca
mailto:roberto.barnard@cuaad.udg.mx
http://www.qsl.net/xe1gxg


From: Bartomeu
To: The Foundation for Iberian Music
Subject: Tribunal tesi
Date: Thursday, May 14, 2015 8:23:14 AM

Apreciat senyor:

Com a secretari del tribunal que ha de jutjar la tesi doctoral del senyor Albert Díaz Rosselló us
comunico com a membre que en sou que la defensa de la mateixa tindrà lloc el proper dilluns
25 de maig a les 12h. al Auditori del Conservatorio Superior de Música de Les Balears
(C/Alfons El Magnànim s/n).

Moltes gràcies, rebeu una cordial salutació.

Bartomeu Jaume Bauzà

mailto:iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu


From: Luca Chiantore
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: David
Subject: Tropos Ensemble in New York, December 3, 2015
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2015 9:16:35 AM

Benvolgut Antoni,

Com estàs? Passats uns mesos, em torno a posar en contacte
amb tu només per dir-te que finalment tocarem en Nova York el 3 de
desembre, en la sala de cambra del Carnegie Hall. Encara per confirmar
farem alguna activitat més (una masterclass i un concert en Philadelphia, i
un seminari a NYU, com a mínim), i si se t’acudeix alguna altra cosa que jo
pugui fer durant aquesta estada, t’ho agrairé moltíssim, a més de l’ajut
que em puguis oferir per a la difusió d’aquest concert.

Una abraçada i moltes gràcies per tot!

Luca

 

 

 

El 16.02.2015 17:21, Piza, Antoni escribió:

Luca, nosaltres tenim dos pianos, per aixo no hi ha problema.  Pels concerts de migdia, com
te dic esta reservat pels professors i alumnes, pero si hi ha alguna cancel.lacio,
naturalmente t’ho puc dir.

 

Bona sort i seguim en contacte

 

Toni

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:davidortola@gmail.com


Antoni Pizà, Director

Foundation for Iberian Music

The Graduate Center, The City University of New York

365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016

 

From: Luca Chiantore [mailto:luca@chiantore.com] 
Sent: Monday, February 16, 2015 7:16 AM
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: RE: Tropos Ensemble in New York?

 

Hola Antoni, 

Moltes gràcies per tota aquesta informació. Ara em posaré a veure
què aconseguim. Només dues preguntes relacionades amb el cicle
vostre del que parles, els concerts de migdia: és realment
impossible trobar alguna data lliure? I, per altra banda: hi ha només
un piano o allà n'hi haura dos? Perquè el nostre concert és a dos
pianos...

Et mantindré informat i, evidentment, et faré saber si finalment
aconseguim alguna cosa i venim a tocar a NY. Quina il·lusió!

Una abraçada 

Luca

 

 

 

El 13.02.2015 00:39, Piza, Antoni escribió:

Hola Luca, efectivament he escoltat el teu magnific CD i te volia escriure per agrair-
te el regal!! Disculpa que no ho hagi fet abans.  M’ha agradat molt!  Es un projecte
molt creatiu!

 

Quant a tocar a NY tens algunes possibilitats.  Com saps no tenim pressupost ara
mateix per aquest tipus d’activitat que a mes de la despesa dels artistes hi has



d’afegir la propaganda, obrir la sala etc etc  Be, fins aqui les males noticies.  Ara
algunes idees:

 

Per aquest tipus de musica, el millor es presentar-la a sales “alternatives” com LE
POISON ROUGE, THE PROJECT ISSUE, ROULETTE, SUBCULTURE etc.  No es gens facil
perque els sobren les ofertes.  Mira les webs recpectives.

 

La sala petita del Carnegie Hall (weil Recital Hall) es pot llogar per 5000 dolars.  El
Llull, el Cervantes, Accion Cultural Española i el consulat et poden ajudar a pagar
part de tot aixo.  Molta gent fa aixo i punt.

 

Una altra possibilitat es fer-ho a la sala del Inst. Cervantes.  No tenen piano, pero
en alguna ocasio n’han llogat un per uns 600 dolars.  LA sala es petita i bona
d’omplir.

 

Per fer-ho en les nostres sales de l’edifici que tu has vist, el problema es que no
tenim public i portar-lo es molt de diners en propaganda, anuncis etc.

 

Una solucio es incloure el teu concert en alguna activitat per a la qual ja tinguem
el public (un congres, un simposi... coses aixi).

 

Tambe tenim un cicle de concerts de migdia que te el seu public, pero esta tot
acopat pels alumnes, profes etc.

 

Li pots proposar la teva idea a Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic (jvrsalovic@llull.cat) que
es la delegada del Ramon Llull a NYC.

 

Parla tambe, si vols, amb Ana Vazquez l’encarregada de cultura de l’Instituto
Cervantes cultny@cervantes.org

 

Alberto Merlo es l’encarregat de musica del Consulat d’Espanya 

mailto:jvrsalovic@llull.cat
mailto:cultny@cervantes.org


amerlo@spainculturenewyork.org

 

Tota aquesta gent te poc aconsellar.

 

Jo el que puc fer es tenir-te present i quan tinguem una activitat que hi poguem
incloure el teu concert, te puc avisar.

 

Disculpa que no pugui ser-te de mes utilitat i gracies pel CD!

 

Molts records a la Silvia!!

 

Toni

 

 

Antoni Pizà, Director

Foundation for Iberian Music

The Graduate Center, The City University of New York

365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016

 

From: Luca Chiantore [mailto:luca@chiantore.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 11:51 AM
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Tropos Ensemble in New York?

 

Benvolgut Antoni,  

Tal com saps per mitjà de la Silvia, estic actualment bolcat en
un projecte interpretatiu, el Tropos Ensemble, juntament amb
el pianista, compositor i productor valencià David Ortolà. 

mailto:amerlo@spainculturenewyork.org
mailto:luca@chiantore.com


No sé si has tingut la possibilitat d’escoltar el disc que ella et
va donar, però imaginaràs sense dubte el desig que tenim en
David i jo de presentar en nostre treball a Nova York, en la
línia de les presentacions que vam fer recentment al Palacio
de Bellas Artes de México DF, a l’Auditori del Conservatorio
Brasileiro de Música de Rio de Janeiro i al Teatro Colón de
Buenos Aires.

 La Silvia m’ha parlat de la possible disponibilitat d’una sala a
CUNY i també de no comptar amb honoraris pel concert.
Tanmateix, atès que tenim pròximament altres viatges
previstos a Mèxic, els preus proporcionalment molt raonables
del bitllets a Nova York i alguns altres possibles concerts a
Philadelphia i Miami, ens agradaría molt conèixer quines
possibilitats de calendaris i condicions es podrien donar per
tocar a Nova York.

Portar fins allà la nostra música seria la realització d’un
somni, i ens agradaria molt poder-ne parlar amb tu.
Musicalment parlant, el projecte és molt innovador, amb una
integració de composició, interpretació clàssica i producció
electrònica que està trobant una acollida molt positiva.

Actualment ja estem treballant en el següent disc, però fins al
setembre de 2015 ens dedicarem a tocar aquest primer
programa. Penses que hi hauria opció?  T’adjunto un dossier
del projecte, en anglès, per què tinguis una idea de la
proposta de concert.  

Moltes gràcies per la teva atenció i fins aviat,

Luca

 

 



From: Luca Chiantore
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Tropos Ensemble in New York?
Date: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 11:51:44 AM
Attachments: Tropos Ensemble Dossier in English 2015 LD.pdf

Benvolgut Antoni,  

Tal com saps per mitjà de la Silvia, estic actualment bolcat en un projecte
interpretatiu, el Tropos Ensemble, juntament amb el pianista, compositor i
productor valencià David Ortolà. 

No sé si has tingut la possibilitat d’escoltar el disc que ella et va donar,
però imaginaràs sense dubte el desig que tenim en David i jo de presentar
en nostre treball a Nova York, en la línia de les presentacions que vam fer
recentment al Palacio de Bellas Artes de México DF, a l’Auditori del
Conservatorio Brasileiro de Música de Rio de Janeiro i al Teatro Colón de
Buenos Aires.

 La Silvia m’ha parlat de la possible disponibilitat d’una sala a CUNY i
també de no comptar amb honoraris pel concert. Tanmateix, atès que
tenim pròximament altres viatges previstos a Mèxic, els preus
proporcionalment molt raonables del bitllets a Nova York i alguns altres
possibles concerts a Philadelphia i Miami, ens agradaría molt conèixer
quines possibilitats de calendaris i condicions es podrien donar per tocar a
Nova York.

Portar fins allà la nostra música seria la realització d’un somni, i ens
agradaria molt poder-ne parlar amb tu. Musicalment parlant, el projecte és
molt innovador, amb una integració de composició, interpretació clàssica i
producció electrònica que està trobant una acollida molt positiva.

Actualment ja estem treballant en el següent disc, però fins al setembre
de 2015 ens dedicarem a tocar aquest primer programa. Penses que hi
hauria opció?  T’adjunto un dossier del projecte, en anglès, per què
tinguis una idea de la proposta de concert.  

Moltes gràcies per la teva atenció i fins aviat,

Luca

 

 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu



Tropos Ensemble				    Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
www.troposensemble.com   			   tropos@musikeon.net


David Ortolà
Luca Chiantore


Works and sketches re-composed 
for two or more pianos with live-electronics







Posible schedule


Between March 1 and December 31, 2015


Tropos Ensemble is an open piano ensemble formed around Luca Chiantore and David 
Ortolà. It proposes re-writings of great works from the classical repertoire through a 
dynamic interaction between contemporary composition and classical performance. It 
does so following a very precise and innovative concept: letting the work -as we know 
it- initiate a dialogue with new musical material, different languages and alternative 
performing processes.


The Tropos Ensemble


Luca Chiantore, piano
David Ortolà, piano


Two grand pianos, with optional amplification and electronic effects.  
Please write to David Ortolà (davidortola@gmail.com) for technical details.  
Specific illumination is not required.
Estimated timing: 75 min, with a short intermission.. 


Performers


Technical requirements


Tropos Ensemble			   Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
www.troposensemble.com   			   tropos@musikeon.net







David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble
Tropes on D’un cahier d’esquisses de Claude Debussy (2013)


Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble
...A noise of creation... 
Multipianistic metamorphosis on Beethoven’s keyboard exercises from the “Kafka Miscellany” 
and four unpublished autographs


David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble
Tropes on Pictures at an exhibition by Modest Mussorgsky (2012-2013)
Prologue to the first part
Promenade [#1]
Gnomus
[Promenade #2]
Bydło
[Promenade #3]
Tuileries (Dispute d’enfants après jeux)
Il vecchio castello 
[Promenade #4] 
Ballet
“Samuel” Goldenberg und “Schmuÿle”


Prologue to the second part
Promenade [#5] 
Limoges, le marché (La grande nouvelle)
Catacombae (Sepulcrum romanum)
Con mortuis in lingua mortua [Promenade #6]
Baba-Yaga
The Bogatyr gate (in Kiev, the ancient capital)


Program for two pianos


Tropos Ensemble				    Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
www.troposensemble.com   			   tropos@musikeon.net







“Tuve la real sensación de estar asistiendo a 
un trascendente momento en la historia de la 
música, un momento único y mágico, en donde 
presencié cómo interaccionaban dos ejes de 
tiempo, de una manera superlativa, hasta 
metafísicamente, diría. Gracias por compartir 
esto con nosotros. Una experiencia inolvidable.” 
(Diana Lopszyc, Buenos Aires)


“Tropos es una aventura maravillosa [...] 
Merecida sala llena para un proyecto innovador, 
estimulante, creativo, fantástico por donde se 
lo mire, y un pianismo extraordinario de dos 
artistas gigantes.” (Natalia González Figueroa, 
Buenos Aires)


“Un gran trabajo, propositivo, audaz y pletórico 
de significados.” (Samuel Maynez, México DF)


Press


“Um saudável atrevimento. [...] Um caminho 
engenhoso para renovação do hoje engessado ritual 
da interpretação clássica.” (João Marcos Coelho: 
“A desconstrução do conceito do clássico”, en O 
Estado de São Paulo, 14/06/2013)


“Hoy fui al Colón a escuchar a Luca Chiantore y David 
Ortolà. Literalmente una BESTIALIDAD. Gracias a 
los dos por hacerme sentir un niño que se asombra 
ante todo lo que ocurre. Una propuesta que está 
por encima de la media, una cosa de locos donde lo 
académico se funde en lo humano.” (Pablo Aguirre, 
Buenos Aires)


“Dos mentes, dos personalidades en acción, que se 
complementan con gracia y maestría, improvisando, 
rearmonizando, usando también un lenguaje politonal 
y atonal, recursos tímbricos utilizando la electrónica, 
y rítmicos con grooves, riffs y ostinatos [...] una 
exhibición de fuerza, sensibilidad e inteligencia en el 
discurso musical.” (Albert Bover, Barcelona) 


“A sonoridade foi impressionante e valorizou em muito a performance. O cuidado nas 
articulações, nas dinâmicas, nas ressonâncias, filtradas ou não, nos contrastes rítmicos, nas 
sobreposições harmônicas, corporificaram a ideia de recomposição. O resultado foi tal como 
se Sarasvati, a deusa hindu de quatro braços, da música, das artes e da sabedoria houvesse 
comparecido ao Auditorium Tasso Corrêa, do Instituto de Artes da Universidade Federal do Rio 
Grande do Sul: o conjunto comportou-se como um só ser, com quatro braços, em um piano 
com 176 teclas.” (Guilherme Goldberg: “Tropos Ensemble e Sarasvati”, en Critica em musica, 
02/06/2013)


Tropos Ensemble			   Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
www.troposensemble.com   			   tropos@musikeon.net







The performers


David Ortolà (1975) is a composer, 
pianist, and electronic music producer. 
His music combines the sounding worlds 
he comes from –classic, electronica 
and jazz–, with the same passion and 
conviction. He has composed works for 
different contemporary ensembles, video 
productions and electronic music labels 
such as Factor City, Eleve, Loudeast, 
Turbo, Odori and his own independent 
label, Kontakte. At the piano and/or at 
the machines, he has performed his own 
creations in concert halls, in renowned 


festivals such as Sónar (Barcelona) and Observatori (Valencia), as well as in European 
clubs. He has also performed and produced with outstanding figures of techno, house 
and the experimental electronics scene such as Simon Mills (Bent/Napoleon), Nacho 
Marco, Common Factor and DJ/rupture, and publishes regularly with the bands 
Betelgeuse and Lontano / Pajaro Dune, this last one along with Jaime Romero. His 
music was at the center of the multipiano concert organised in 2011 by Musikeon 
and Clemente Pianos, where his work Efímeras (2011), for 20 pianos, was premiered.


Luca Chiantore (1966) is an Italian musician 
and scholar. He has given recitals, masterclasses 
and lectures in more than 20 countries of Europe, 
Asia, America and Africa. He received the PhD in 
Musicology from the Universidad Autónoma de 
Barcelona, focusing his research on the theory of 
musical performance and the history of the 19th 
century piano repertoire. His book Historia de la 
técnica pianística: Un estudio sobre los grandes 
compositores y el arte de la interpretación en 
busca de la Ur-Technik was published in 2001. 
In 2010 he presented Beethoven al piano: 
Improvisación, composición e investigación 
sonora en sus ejercicios técnicos, the first book 
ever published on Ludwig van Beethoven’s widely 
unknown keyboard exercises. Since 2003, he is 
the director of Musikeon (www.musikeon.net), a 
company offering musicological services and specialized musical training throughout 
Spain and Latin America. He is also a lecturer at the Escola Superior de Música 
de Catalunya (ESMUC), Musicology Department, and teaches at Katarina Gurska 
Music School in Madrid and at the Doctorate in Music of the Universidade de Aveiro 
(Portugal).


Tropos Ensemble				    Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
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Setup


During the concert, the pianos will be placed as follows.
The lid of the piano more distant to the audience is kept open, while the lid of the piano 
nearest to the audience must be removed.


(with lid)


(without lid)


Please, do not place the pianos as follows:
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Notes to the program


Interpretation, composition, improvisation and notation, popular music and classical music all 
base their apparently uncompromising differences on the same opposition between matter 
and spirit, ephemeral and eternal, which has left such a strong mark on our culture, past 
and present. Tropos Ensemble is born out of the ambition to question those categories. The 
only border that fascinates us is that which separates Before from After. Before –where 
music inherited from the past originates, and an intricate, After –generated by musicians and 
audiences when interacting with that legacy. 


Playing music of the past, whatever form it might take, is playing music of our time. Music 
naturally shows that the search for an open, dynamic and diverse present time is constrained 
only by our submission to acquired codes. It seems that we possess today the means to 
understand better than ever Luis Buñuel’s powerful prophecy. The enigmatic lock-in of a group 
of people in the movie The Exterminating Angel, mirrors a real collective confinement that will 
remain incomprehensible until we cease to erect walls on passageways that we could otherwise 
walk freely. In order to open the necessary breaches for the seeds of new worlds and new ways 
of thinking to sprout, these acquired codes must be acknowledged and willingly infringed upon. .


Instead of conceiving the score as an enclosed and sacred object, eternal in its state of 
ideal perfection, we like to think of it as an open piece, able to lend itself to a variety of 
formulations. This idea has often been favored by contemporary musicologists, not only in 
reference to modern-days creations but also in the examination of the practical relationship 
that our ancestors might have had with the music they were creating. 


Medieval polyphony, Lutheran choir and nineteenth-century paraphrases all arose from similar 
processes. The long journey of the Greek word trope (τρόπος) through European culture is marked 
by the ideas of “multiplicity” and “change”. In classical rhetoric, tropes would highlight the 
double meaning of specific turns of phrases or add nuance to existing expressions. In medieval 
monody, the trope was a melisma or a commentary added to pre-existing material. Even modern 
philosophy has redeemed the word trope for its link with “diversity” and “impermanence” of 
meanings, in the frame of the nominalist reaction to the problem of universals.


This is what we endeavour with Tropos Ensemble. 
Two pianos, two sensibilities, two different 
artistic profiles with a shared fascination for the 
unpredictable occurrences that classical repertoire 
is able to unveil when combined with creative 
processes belonging to other musical genres. Two 
pianos behaving as a mixing desk, equalizing, filtering, 
editing and developing the legacy of tradition. As 
layers add up, musical material of our creation 
interferes with the original pieces, sometimes 
engaging in a dialogue, adding a commentary, or 
just confronting them. And just as in electronic 
music, where sound quality prevails on any other 
parameter, a certain flexibility of structures and 
textures is combined with dynamic precision and 
carefully set filters.
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Diversity, impermanence, and 
interaction between contrasting 
materials able to shed a new light on 
our musical heritage: that is what 
we intend to achieve in our public 
performances. And that is the spirit 
we wanted to infuse our new CD with. 
This album, titled A noise of creation 
and released in September 2014, 
includes the whole program of this 
concert, in the same order we present 
it in live performances.


Again, the superimposition of layers of sound from 
heterogeneous origins draws the axis of our proposal. 
While one piano predominantly sticks to Mussorgsky’s 
score, the second piano introduces new material, often 
in stylistic opposition. This synthesis of languages sails 
in the wake of Mussorgsky himself, as the original piece 
irrefutably blends prophetic glances at the future together 
with notably archaic modal effects. This masterpiece is also 
a brilliant metaphor for the whole perceptual process: the 
visitor of an “exhibition” walks from one picture to the next 
accompanied by the changeable sounds of the Promenade, 
until being engulfed by the last painting, becoming himself 
part of the scene. 


Luca Chiantore y David Ortolà


We start with our Tropes on D’un cahier d’esquisses, a short piano piece published by Claude 
Debussy while giving its final form to one of his most relevant symphonic works: La Mer. The 
version we present here exposes the thematic link between these two works and emphasizes 
a fascination with watery elements. Meanwhile, breaches are chiseled in between the modular 
structure of Debussy´s score for new musical material to sprout and grow into a game of 
layers that blurs the boundaries between old and new.


The next work, ...un bruit de création..., is a joint composition in which we combine more 
than thirty sketches of Ludwig van Beethoven, These sketches belong to four unpublished 
manuscripts and to the stunning Kafka Miscellany, a collection of drafts brought on the 
musicological front scene by Joseph Kerman´s studies. The content of those private notebooks 
is so astonishing –including atonal passages and even a boogie-woogie– that the fragments 
which seem further away from Beethoven´s aesthetics are actually those written by his own hand! 
Another way of apprehending the countless perspectives still to be revealed by an unabashed 
approach to historical sources…


With Pictures at an exhibition, the task of proposing new readings is inextricably intertwined 
with a strong tradition in performance. It is Ravel´s orchestration that brought worldwide 
fame to the piece, and the original piano version has been the object of often contradictory 
readings. We have chosen to explicitly allude to some of these interpretations that made 
history.
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Tropos Ensemble is a project by Luca Chiantore and David Ortolà that proposes re-
writings of great works from the classical repertoire through a dynamic interaction 
between contemporary composition and classical performance. In this lecture, both 
musicians will present in a pleasant and understandable way the background as well 
as the meaning and purpose of this project.


Optional activities (I): 
TROPOS: A DIALOGUE WITH HISTORY
A lecture by Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà 


Length: 90 minutes 
Addressed to: music students and general audience 
Technical requirement: projector for a Power Point presentation. If two pianos are 
available, the lecture could include live examples.
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Optional activities (II): 
PIANO MASTERCLASS or PIANO SEMINAR 
by Luca Chiantore


Well known as a scholar and piano teacher, 
specially in the Spanish-speaking countries, Luca 
Chiantore is the author of relevant books on piano 
performance. 


In recent years, he has given masterclasses in 
more than fifteen countries of Europe, America and 
Asia. He is the artistic director of the Advanced 
Piano Courses of Musikeon, in which have studied 
several young Spanish and Latin American concert 
pianists. 


In Luca Chiantore’s masterclasses, musicological 
knowledge and practical issues interact constantly. 
Classes are intended both for pianists and chamber 
ensembles.


Technical requirements: 
projector for a Power Point 
presentation and one or two 
grand pianos.


Length: between four and eight 
hour, with option to arrange a 
longer course directly with the 
professor.
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Performances and commentaries by David Ortolà.
Length: 90 minutes.
Addressed to composers and advanced music students
Technical requirements: projector for a Power Point presentation and a grand piano..


Optional activities (III): 
CONTEMPORARY COMPOSERS AND  
THE CREATIVE PROCESSES OF ELECTRONICA AND TECHNO
Concert-lecture by David Ortolà, with live performances 
of piano works by J. Messina, F. Tristano and D. Ortolà


in recent years, classical-music composers have showed an increasing interest in 
compositive structures of the electronic dance music: overlapping sound layers, 
texture development, and a progressive conception of a stuff based on the combination 
of different rhythm-melodic elements. In this concert-lecture, the following works will 
be performed:


Justin Messina (1980): NY Tectonics (2006)
Francesco Tristano (1981): Ground Bass / Chaconne (1994-2004)
David Ortolà (1975): Grooves #1 (2012)
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The investigation about the resources of 
the piano and its technique accompanied 
Beethoven during all his life. Starting from 
his own Doctoral research, 


Luca Chiantore has published in 2010 an 
extensive book on this subject, Beethoven al 
piano (Barcelona: Nortesur Musikeon). This 
book is focused on the exercises that the 
composer wrote for his personal use, a key 
source to rethink Beethoven’s relationship 
with piano performance. 


These exercises are an amazing window 
over the instant in which his works were 
created and offer a lot of stimuli to improve 
our understanding of the whole Beethoven’s 
legacy.


Technical requirements: projector for a Power Point presentation and one or two 
grand pianos.


Optional activities (IV): 
BEETHOVEN AND HIS KEYBOARD EXERCICES 
Improvisation, compositional process and sound research 
A lecture by Luca Chiantore


Activity can have three different formats: 
1. A lecture with examples to the piano, in charge of Luca Chiantore (duration: 90 
minutes).
2. The same lecture, followed of a masterclass on works by Beethoven (lessons of a 
minimum of 90 minutes each, up to a maximum of 4, in one day).
3. A 20-hour course with theoric sessions and masterclass, in 3 or 4 days. 


Tropos Ensemble			   Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà
www.troposensemble.com   			   tropos@musikeon.net







CD Tropos Ensemble: 


A noise of creation
compositions on works and sketches by 
Debussy, Beethoven, Mussorgsky


International release: September 1st, 2014


[track 1]  
David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble 
Tropes on Claude Debussy’s D’un cahier d’esquisses 


[track 2]  
Luca Chiantore & David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble 
…un bruit de création… 


[tracks 3-18]  
David Ortolà / Tropos Ensemble 
Tropes on Modest Mussorgsky’s Pictures at an Exhibition 


Label: 
Columna Música


Worldwide distribution: 
Naxos Global Logistics 
Japan: Sarabande
Spain & Portugal: Sémele


Recording: 
Nov 26-28, 2013, 
Auditori de Torrent (Spain)
Pianos Steinway D


Recording & mixing: 
Fernando Brunet
Editing and mastering: 
David Ortolà
Executive production:  
Luca Chiantore


Total timing: 64’00’’


This first CD of Tropos Ensemble will be presented with concerts in Spain, Portugal, Italy, 
Brazil, Argentina, Mexico, United States of America and other countries. 
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MUSIKEON
Amparo Sales
C/ Honorato Juan, 13 
46007 Valencia (Spain)
tropos@musikeon.net


Luca Chiantore: luca@chiantore.com
David Ortolà: davidortola@gmail.com


www.troposensemble.com


Contact
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From: Piza, Antoni
To: Mary Ann Newman
Subject: trucada
Date: Thursday, February 12, 2015 10:52:00 AM

Bon dia, tens un moment per parlar?  Jo soc al despatx 212 8171819… et volia fer una consulta
 
Merci
 
Toni
 
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

From: Mary Ann Newman [mailto:newm161@icloud.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 4:06 PM
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: CatArts meeting
 
clar. quin greu—a veure què diuen els altres. potser millor ajornar-ho. Et tindré al corrent.
 
 
On Feb 11, 2015, at 4:04 PM, Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu> wrote:

Aquest cap de setmana es llarg pel Presidents' Day i
Per tant sere a fora, ho sento.
 

On Feb 11, 2015, at 2:14 PM, Mary Ann Newman (via Doodle)
<mailer@doodle.com> wrote:

Mary Ann Newman reminds you to participate in the Doodle poll
"CatArts meeting."

Hi there,

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:newm161@icloud.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:mailer@doodle.com
https://doodle.com/?tmail=poll_invitecontact_participant_reminder&tlink=logo


 
Mary Ann Newman (newm161@icloud.com) has
invited you to participate in the Doodle poll
"CatArts meeting."

If you have not participated yet, please do so. If
you have already participated in that poll, please
check your answer and edit it if necessary.

Mary Ann Newman says:

Dear friends, 

It seems as if the best date for the

greatest number of people is

Saturday. I would like to invite

everyone who can still come to brunch

at my house, Saturday, February 14th,

at 11:00 a.m. to discuss CatArts. The

address is 161 West 16th Street/Apt.

6L, NE corner of 16th St. and 7th

Ave. Please confirm that you are able

to come at newm161@icloud.com.

Thanks!

All the best, 

Mary Ann

Participate now

You have received this e-mail because "Mary Ann Newman" has
invited you to participate in the Doodle poll "CatArts meeting."

Please note that this is a personal invitation that cannot be shared
with other poll participants.

Doodle AG, Werdstrasse 21, 8021 Zürich

 

mailto:newm161@icloud.com
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From: Piza, Antoni
To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
Subject: Trucada
Date: Monday, June 15, 2015 8:12:59 PM

hola jadranka, si dema dimarts tens un minut, m agradaria parlar amb tu cinc minutets. jo sere al meu despatx de les
11 a les 5. et puc trucar quan vulguis, tambe.
salut!

> On Apr 15, 2015, at 3:41 PM, Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic <jvrsalovic@llull.cat> wrote:
>
> Merci!
>
>
>
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Piza, Antoni [mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
> Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2015 3:40 PM
> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
> Subject: Re: Benet Casablancas
>
> No es fa,
>
>
>
>> On Apr 15, 2015, at 3:25 PM, Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic <jvrsalovic@llull.cat> wrote:
>>
>> Toni,
>> Benvingut i perdona que no t'hagi dit res, acabo de tornar d'un viatge jo també i vaig totalment desbordada!
>> Entenc que a la CUNY no feu res, doncs, gràcies!
>> Per casualitat, saps si l'estrena que s'havia de fer al Roulette es fa, o tampoc? Si no, no pateixis, li escric al Benet
directament.
>> Merci i abraçada,
>> J.
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> -----Original Message-----
>> From: Piza, Antoni [mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>> Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2015 2:47 PM
>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>> Subject: RE: Benet Casablancas
>>
>> Ara he trobat el teu email...  l'havia borrat per error... Com te deia, no tenim res programat.
>>
>> Salut!
>>
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
>> From: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic [mailto:jvrsalovic@llull.cat]
>> Sent: Monday, April 13, 2015 7:05 PM
>> To: Piza, Antoni
>> Subject: RE: Benet Casablancas
>>
>> Hola, Toni,
>> Recordo que em vas dir que l'estrena del Benet s'havia posposat per al mes de maig, oi? N'has tingut més
notícies, saps si es farà? Fareu res a la CUNY?
>> Per penjar-ho a la web, si de cas.
>> Gràcies i abraçada,
>> J.
>>
>>
>> ________________________________________
>> From: Piza, Antoni [APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>> Sent: Saturday, February 21, 2015 1:59 PM
>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>> Subject: Re: Benet Casablancas
>>
>> Aixi ho fare!
>> Gracies per ocupar-te d aixo
>> Salut
>>
>>
>>
>>> On Feb 21, 2015, at 1:58 PM, Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic <jvrsalovic@llull.cat> wrote:
>>>
>>> Vaja, mala sort!
>>> Ja em mantindràs informada, doncs.
>>> Gràcies!!
>>> J.
>>>
>>> ________________________________________
>>> From: Piza, Antoni [APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>>> Sent: Saturday, February 21, 2015 1:46 PM
>>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>>> Subject: Re: Benet Casablancas
>>>
>>> Sembla que roulette ha Hagut de reduir el programa, de tota manera, volem fer el seminari de composicio a
Cuny mes envant.
>>>
>>>
>>>
>>>> On Feb 21, 2015, at 12:40 PM, Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic <jvrsalovic@llull.cat> wrote:
>>>>
>>>> Vaja! I com és això?
>>>> I l'estrena, aleshores, es fa igual o ja no tampoc?
>>>>

mailto:jvrsalovic@llull.cat


>>>> ________________________________
>>>> From: Piza, Antoni [APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>>>> Sent: Saturday, February 21, 2015 12:14 PM
>>>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>>>> Subject: Re: Benet Casablancas
>>>>
>>>> Hola, el Benet  m'acaba de dir que el seu viatge s ha d'apla,car fins el maig.
>>>> Per tant no farem res.
>>>> Bon cap de setmana!!
>>>> Records al Manel
>>>> Toni
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>> On Feb 20, 2015, at 3:55 PM, Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
<jvrsalovic@llull.cat<mailto:jvrsalovic@llull.cat>> wrote:
>>>>
>>>> Toni, només per saber-ho, has pogut muntar alguna presentació amb en Benet al final?
>>>> També per si vols que ho pengi a la web i en faci la difusió...
>>>> Gràcies, abraçada,
>>>> J.
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>> From: Piza, Antoni [mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>>>> Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2015 11:16 AM
>>>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>>>> Subject: RE: Benet Casablancas
>>>>
>>>> Gracies per aquesta informacio!
>>>>
>>>> Seguim.
>>>>
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
>>>> Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2015 4:09 PM
>>>> To: Piza, Antoni
>>>> Cc: Maria Lladó Ribot
>>>> Subject: RE: Benet Casablancas
>>>>
>>>> Hola, Toni,
>>>>
>>>> Perdona el retard, he estat segrestada per tots els congressos del teatre que tenen lloc aquests dies a la ciutat!
>>>>
>>>> En Benet també ja ens ha escrit explicant l'estrena i la seva voluntat de presentar el seu llibre (o seus llibres).
>>>>
>>>> Pel que fa als espais, a més a més dels que ja coneixem (Cervantes, KJCC, etc.), se m'acudeixen en primer
lloc escoles de música (Juilliard, Manes, Manhattan), si és que hi tens entrada.
>>>>
>>>> De les llibreries la més interessant és segurament McNally Jackson
(events@mcnallyjackson.com<mailto:events@mcnallyjackson.com>).
>>>> També es podria mirar el Strand, Emily Simpson
(emily@strandbooks.com<mailto:emily@strandbooks.com>).
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>>>> O Housing Works (events@housingworksbookstore.org<mailto:events@housingworksbookstore.org>).
>>>>
>>>> Alguna Biblioteca Pública? La de Brooklyn, per exemple, tenen un programa d'actes impressionant...
>>>>
>>>> Altres???
>>>>
>>>> Ja diràs.
>>>> Una abraçada,
>>>> J.
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>> From: Piza, Antoni [mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu]
>>>> Sent: Tuesday, January 13, 2015 4:55 PM
>>>> To: Jadranka Vrsalovic Carevic
>>>> Subject: Benet Casablancas
>>>>
>>>> Hola Jadranka, com estas?  El Benet estrenara una obra el 24 de març a Rosseta de Brooklyn.  Tambe
voldriem presentar el seu llibre EL HUMOR EN LA MUSICA (galaxia guttenberg 2014).  A on es podria fer
aquesta presentacio?  (descartant Cervantes, CUNY etc.)  MacNally Jackson?  Algun altre lloc interessant?
>>>>
>>>> Com van les teves coses del Llull?
>>>>
>>>> Salut I bon any!!!!
>>>>
>>>> Toni
>>>>
>>>>
>>>>
>>>> Antoni Pizà, Director
>>>> Foundation for Iberian Music
>>>> The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
>>>> 365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
>>>>
>>>> Si heu rebut aquest correu sense ser-ne la persona destinatària us agrairem que ens ho indiqueu i suprimiu
ambdós missatges i, si és el cas, els fitxers annexos. Moltes gràcies.
>>>>
>>>> Si ha recibido este correo sin ser la persona destinataria, le agradeceremos que nos lo indique y que suprima
ambos mensajes y, si es el caso, los ficheros anexos. Muchas gracias.
>>>>
>>>> If you are not the intended recipient of this email, we kindly ask that you notify us and delete both messages
and, where applicable, all attachments. Thank you.
>>>>
>>>>
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
To: antoni_piza@yahoo.com
Subject: Try
Date: Friday, May 29, 2015 7:34:34 PM

Fffffffffttttttt
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Guillermo Castro Buendia; Kiko Mora; Piza, Antoni
Subject: tu artículo para MOS!!!
Date: Thursday, June 25, 2015 1:23:08 PM
Attachments: MOS normas editoriales.docx

05esp_GuillermoCastro.doc
Guillermo Castro KM images in email 4.19.15 The rhythmic pattern of fandango.doc
Guillermo Castro KM MG no track changes 6.23.15.doc
Castro paragraph for fandango introduction .docx

Querido Guillermo,

Esperamos que este mail te encuentre muy bien, ocupado con la promoción de tu nuevo libro! 

Muchísimas gracias por tus artículos tán interesantes y tán importantes. Yo te pido disculpa,
porque nos los mandaste todo hace 2 meses, y no he podido prestarles atención hasta ahora,
que ya estamos muy cortos de tiempo.

Incluyo a Kiko Mora, porque él ha hecho la primera revisión de tus artículos. (Sus
comentarios en lilac, los mios en rojo.)

Adjunto:

1. MOS normas
2. tu artículo revisado en español
3. tu artículo revisado en inglés con "track changes"
4. tu artículo revisado en inglés sin "track changes" (mucho más facil de leer!)
5. párrafo en inglés para la introducción

A la versión en español le faltan corregir unos detallitos: algunas de las citas deben ir
integradas al texto, y MOS quiere ISBN/ISSN en la bibliografía - por favor, ve las normas y
nuestros comentarios. ¿Quisieras meter ilustraciones musicales en la version web de tu
artículo? Si nos los mandas, los entregaremos con las actas a MOS.

Con todo cariño y respeto, tu version inglés no hace ni sombra a tu version en castellano. (It is
a hot mess!) Yo he hecho lo que he podido, pero haría falta más tiempo de lo que dispongo
ahora para que tu traducción te represente bien, en mi opinion. Si quieres publicarlo en MOS,
por supuesto lo incluimos, aunque tendrás que hacer algunas revisiones importantes, como
añadir las notas y las citas que faltan. 

Pero para que lo pienses Guillermo, Antoni y yo tenemos planeado publicar una selección de
articulos de MOS en EU en inglés. Si quisieras esperar, yo me ofrezco para dialogar contigo
para mejorar la traducción para esta edición.

Yo propongo que por el momento trabajemos el parrafo adjunto para la introducción en inglés
para que represente tu argumento con fuerza y presición.

Dínos que piensas, Guillermo. 

con un saludo respetuoso y un abrazo fuerte,

Meira, Antoni, y Kiko 

mailto:guillermo@guillermocastrobuendia.es
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Please send your presentations of 6,000 words maximum to this email by April 17, 2015. We will send them all together to Música Oral del Sur.



Here are editorial norms:

Aquí de Música Oral del Sur las normas editoriales a seguir:

1. Su extensión por favor que se limite a 6,000 palabras. Tipo de letra: Times New Roman. Tamaño: 10 pts. Interlineado sencillo. 

1. Se aceptan trabajos en cualquier lengua. Se deben incluir dos resúmenes de un máximo de diez líneas cada uno en el idioma del artículo y el otro en inglés (si el artículo original está en ingles se facilitará el resumen en español). Se incluirán también un mínimo de tres palabras clave tanto en el idioma del artículo como en inglés (si el artículo original está en ingles se facilitarán en español). Si el autor lo desea es posible incluir versión del artículo completo en otro(s) idioma(s). 
 

2. Incluir una breve reseña curricular del autor de no más de 5 líneas que indique su afiliación institucional actual. 
 

3. Las notas se presentarán a pie de página (Tipo de letra: Times New Roman. Tamaño: 9 pts.)
 

4. Las citas textuales irán entrecomilladas dentro del texto si no ocupan más de tres líneas. En caso contrario se escribirán en párrafo aparte dejando el correspondiente espacio, con una letra de tamaño 9 pts. y sin comillas. Toda cita o mención a textos específicos deberá ir seguida de la correspondiente referencia. Las referencias deben hacerse en el cuerpo de texto según el sistema autor-fecha: (Morris 1971: 287-294), Blacking (1976: 31). 
 

5. Todos los gráficos, imágenes y ejemplos musicales deben enviarse en formato jpg. Se insertarán en el texto en el sitio correspondiente, numeradas e identificadas con un título.
 

6. Las referencias bibliográficas se reunirán al final del trabajo, por orden alfabético. No deben aparecer en la lista libros que no sean citados o mencionados en el texto. 
 

7. Modelos de referencias bibliográficas será siguiendo la norma internacional ISO 690 y ISO 690-2:

Monografías
Apellidos, Nombre (autor/es, iniciales o nombre/es completo de los diferentes autores separados por ;). Título (en cursiva). Edición. Lugar de edición: Editorial, año. Número de ISBN. 

Revistas
Título (en cursiva). Responsabilidad de la revista. Edición. Identificación del fascículo (fechas y/ o números). Número normalizado (ISSN). 

Artículo de revista 
Apellidos, Nombre (autor/es, iniciales o nombre/s completo de los diferentes autores separados por ;). Título del artículo. Título de la revista (en cursiva). Año, volumen, número, páginas.

Documentos multimedia (Conjunto de diferentes soportes)
Apellidos, Nombre (autor/es, iniciales o nombre/es completo de los diferentes autores separados por ;) o nombre de la entidad responsable. Título (en cursiva) [Designación del tipo de material]. Edición. Lugar de publicación: Editorial, año. 

Música impresa o manuscrita
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Evolución Rítmica en el Fandango Español: Ritmos binarios y ternarios

Guillermo Castro Buendia 


Centro de Investigación Flamenco Telethusa

Resumen


En España el fandango tiene carácter polirrítmico. Por un lado, el patrón rítmico del canto de naturaleza binaria compuesta (6/8) semejante a la jota, y por otro, el ritmo de su acompañamiento de tipo ternario (3/4) se funden para crear uno de los estilos más singulares de la música popular española. En las publicaciones de fandangos en España desde principios del siglo XVIII hasta finales del siglo XIX, podemos detectar una evolución en la forma de acompañamiento que creemos importante analizar y estudiar para conocer mejor la naturaleza musical de este género tan popular. Nos referimos precisamente a esa naturaleza polirrítmica que ha llevado a los diferentes músicos a escribirla unas veces en compás binario compuesto y otras en ternario.

Palabras clave: fandango, rondeña, malagueña, granadina, ritmo binario, ritmo ternario.


Abstract


 In Spain, the fandango has a polyrhythmic character. On one hand is the compound-meter rhythmic pattern of the singer (in 6/8, similar to Jota), and on the other hand is the musical accompaniment in triple-meter rhythm (3/4). These rhythms merge to create one of the most unique styles of Spanish popular music. In fandangos published in Spain from the early-18th to the late-19th century, we can detect an evolution in the accompaniment that, upon close analysis, allows us to better understand the nature of this musical genre. In this presentation, I focus on the polyrhythmic nature of fandangos, which has led to a number of musicians to write it sometimes in compound meter and other times in triple meter.


Keywords: fandango, rondeña, malagueña, granadina, duple-meter rhythm, triple-meter rhythm.
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 Flamenco Telethusa de Cádiz.

Introducción

El fandango es uno de los géneros musicales más extendidos en la música popular española y en el flamenco. Desde su aparición a finales del siglo XVII
 como un tipo de baile, viene sufriendo sucesivas transformaciones, generando diversas variantes asociadas a ciertas zonas geográficas y también bailes de escuela bolera. En el siglo XVIII se convierte en el baile nacional por excelencia, siendo bailado en toda España y por todas las clases sociales. A principios del siglo XIX surgen nuevas variantes denominadas rondeñas y malagueñas y algo después las granadinas, estilos que han tenido una importante proyección en el flamenco. En este trabajo, estudiaremos sus peculiaridades rítmicas, que se distinguen por tener un carácter polirrítmico, algo que ha llevado a los diferentes músicos a escribirla unas veces en compás binario compuesto y otras en ternario.

Naturaleza musical del fandango


El carácter musical del fandango es ternario
; veamos el ritmo básico de su canto
:
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Imagen 1: Ritmo básico del canto del fandango

Si bien, tal y como dice Miguel Manzano, lo suyo sería escribirlo al menos en compases ternarios de agrupación binaria, como la jota. Esto significaría pasar de un 3/8-3/8 a un 6/8, o de un 3/4-3/4 a un 6/4, dependiendo de la velocidad de interpretación. Esta forma de escritura facilitaría la comparación de los fandangos documentados desde el XVIII con otros cantos de naturaleza semejante, como la jota. 


Ritmo básico del canto de la jota establecido por Miguel Manzano:
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Imagen 2: Ritmo básico del canto de la jota

A su vez, el fandango tiene un carácter musical polirrítmico
, ya
 que el patrón rítmico del canto, de naturaleza binaria compuesta (6/8) admite a su vez la escritura ternaria (3/4) en algunas de sus estrofas, presentando un ritmo de acompañamiento en base a la fórmula 3/8, 6/8, y también 3/4. 

Manzano recopila en sus estudios tres formas de escritura para el canto del fandango
:
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Imagen 3: Formas de escritura para el canto del fandango


A la hora de interpretar un fandango, Miguel Manzano señala que por un lado está el ritmo del canto, que debería representarse en 6/8, aunque debido a su polirritmia admite también el 3/4; y por otro lado está el ritmo de los instrumentos que acompañan según los acentos indicados en la parte superior en este esquema:
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Imagen 4: Ritmo básico del canto del fandango con acentuación instrumental

Lo que produce en palabras de Miguel Manzano (2000: 663): “[…] una mezcla superpuesta de un ritmo binario 3+3, que acentúa la primera nota de cada grupo, con otra 2+2+2 que acentúa cada uno de los tres pares de figuras (corcheas […])”. Manzano hace una observación muy importante al respecto del posible origen de este esquema rítmico del fandango, afirmando que procede directamente de la cuarteta octosilábica
, antes de que la fórmula se ampliase con preludios e interludios instrumentales.

Si comparamos la escritura del fandango en 6/8 con una de las plantillas más comunes de la jota, la llamada por Miguel Manzano con el número V: tipo fandango, veremos que son prácticamente idénticas
:
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Imagen 5: Plantilla rítmica de la jota coincidente con la del fandango


Este ha sido el motivo de que unas y otras se hayan podido contaminar de elementos ajenos. Manzano habla del polirritmo del fandango como punto de unión entre él y la jota, afirmando que tanto uno como la otra han podido contaminarse gracias al ritmo común de algunas de sus modalidades de canto. Tanto la jota ha podido absorber el ritmo del fandango como pudo hacerlo el fandango en la misma medida
.

Ahora bien, para abordar un estudio histórico completo del fandango, al faltarnos las fuentes musicales de verdadero origen popular que serían deseables, y disponer en su mayor parte de fuentes instrumentales de origen académico, se hace muy difícil saber exactamente qué era lo que se cantaba a principios del XVIII como fandango, y por ello también se complica su posible comparación con otras músicas. No obstante, hemos detectado una evolución en su forma de acompañamiento que creemos importante analizar y estudiar a fondo para conocer mejor la naturaleza musical de este género tan popular. Nos referimos precisamente a esa naturaleza polirrítmica que ha llevado a los diferentes músicos a escribirla unas veces en compás binario compuesto y otras en ternario.

Veamos cómo se ha ido escribiendo el fandango a lo largo de la historia. 

El fandango en las fuentes musicales

En 1705 tenemos tres fandangos en tablatura
. El primer ejemplo se puede escribir perfectamente en 6/8, debido a la forma de rasgueo y los acentos que podemos deducir de su práctica. Aunque se indique 3 en la tablatura, los ciclos cada dos compases son evidentes, es más, es cuando lo interpretamos cuando nos damos cuenta de ello de forma clara:
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Imagen 6: Fandango rasgueado de 1705

El segundo fandango puede escribirse en 3/4:
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Imagen 7: Fandango punteado de 1705 escrito en compás ternario

Aunque es posible igualmente hacerlo en 6/8:
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Imagen 8: Fandango punteado de 1705 escrito en compás binario


Son las mismas notas, sin embargo, la forma de acentuar cambia de 3 pulsos por compás a 2. El proceso de cambio es fácil, por eso es frecuente encontrar la hemiolia en el fandango y otros estilos, como la jota:
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Imagen 9: Transformación de la escritura del fandango del compás binario al ternario

La escritura en 3/4 es la que más nos encontramos en las fuentes académicas, siendo este ritmo común al de la seguidilla:
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Imagen 10: Ritmo del fandango común a la seguidilla en compás ternario

También podemos oír este otro:
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Imagen 11: Variante del ritmo del fandango en compás ternario común a la seguidilla 

Igualmente el llamado “toque abandolao
”:
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Imagen 12: Ritmo del fandango llamado “abandolao” 

Estas formas son también las que hoy escuchamos en su acompañamiento popular y flamenco, pero puede que no fuese el más frecuente en su origen. 


El ejemplo de fandango de Santiago de Murcia (ca.1732)
 es muy sofisticado en comparación con otras fuentes musicales de su misma época. Presenta ya gran parte de su escritura a 3, forma de escritura rítmica quizás de origen académico, aunque no estamos totalmente seguros de esto. No obstante, todavía tiene algunos pasajes que recuerdan al 6/8 (página 3, compases 51-3, entre corchetes):
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Imagen 13: Fandango de Santiago de Murcia. Compases 51-53.

Y los últimos cuatro compases finales:
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Imagen 14: Fandango de Santiago de Murcia. Compases finales.

En el fandango “Tempestad grande amigo” de José de Nebra (1744)
, podemos encontrar el polirritmo de forma muy clara. Además disponemos del canto, que aunque escrito a 3, presenta hemiolia. Veamos:
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Imagen 15: Fandango de José de Nebra “Tempestad grande amigo”.

Aunque esté escrito en 3/4, toda la introducción del violín º1 está interpretada en 6/8 con un patrón rítmico derivado del canto del fandango. El bajo está en 3/4, y el canto comienza de forma anacrúsica para caer en un posible 6/8 con sucesión alterna en 3/4. Así:
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Imagen 16: Fandango de José de Nebra “Tempestad grande amigo”. Compases 5-8.

En este ejemplo de José de Nebra no aparece en ningún momento el llamado toque “abandolao”, o la influencia del ritmo de la seguidilla, quizás sea un ejemplo lejano de lo que pudo ser el fandango popular llevado al teatro de forma más o menos recreada, pero conservando aún elementos populares de su musicalidad. 


Pablo Minguet e Yrol (1754)
 tiene un fandango escrito a 3 (3/8):
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Imagen 17: Fandango de Pablo Minguet e Yrol

Se puede escribir en 6/8 debido a sus ciclos armónicos y a la naturaleza de sus rasgueos:
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Imagen 18: Fandango por patilla de Pablo Minguet e Yrol

Nótese cómo el ritmo de seguidilla no podría escribirse en el ejemplo de Pablo Minguet en 3/8, a no ser que agrupemos los ciclos rítmicos cada dos compases (o sea en 6/8) y practiquemos la hemiolia (6/8=3/4):
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Imagen 19: Transformación de la escritura del fandango del compás binario al ternario

Scarlatti presenta en su fandango la escritura en 3/4. Pero hay una sección escrita en 3/8 (Presto, cc. 67-80) que bien pudiera haberse indicado en 6/8: 
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Imagen 20: Fandango de Scarlatti. Compases 64-75

Scarlatti ya claramente escribe la mano derecha de su fandango en 3/4. Sin embargo, la mano izquierda todavía tiene reminiscencias del 6/8 anterior. Por ejemplo los compases 10-13:
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 Imagen 21: Fandango de Scarlatti. Compases 7-15.

Y los cc. 106-108:
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Imagen 22: Fandango de Scarlatti. Compases 103-110.

El ejemplo de fandango del manuscrito M/1250 de piezas para clave de la BNE encuadrado en la 1ª mitad del siglo XVIII, no parece tener mucha herencia del 6/8, salvo la mano derecha en los compases 3 y 5:
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Imagen 23: Fandango del manuscrito M/1250 de la BNE.

Sin embargo, en la misma recopilación, el “Fandanguito de Cádiz” no sólo presenta escritura alterna de 6/8-3/4, también aparecen las dos escrituras en un mismo compás en diferentes manos, es decir la polirritmia:
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Imagen 24: Fandanguito de Cádiz del manuscrito M/1250 de la BNE.

El fandango de Antonio Soler y Ramos conserva algunas reminiscencias del 6/8 en los cc. 47-50:
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Imagen 25: Fandango de Antonio Soler y Ramos

El ejemplo de Richard Twiss (1772/3)
 está escrito enteramente en 6/8, aunque bien podría escribirse parte de él a 3. Por ejemplo los cc. 7-9:


[image: image30.png]L]

[

e

I i ——

o )]

o

B
i
L

e

I
r " —

4

ey

| I B — |
P B B B B

i
o T
L

o

y ot

I

] ] ==







Imagen 26: Fandango de Richard Twiss

El fandango de Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán (1773)
 se puede transcribir en compás de 3/4 y 6/8, aunque creemos que es más correcta ésta última forma por la dirección del rasgueo de la mano derecha, que sugiere esta acentuación:
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Imagen 27: Fandango de Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán

Quizás Murcia y Scarlatti, al ser personas del ámbito académico, refinaron el fandango popular rasgueado hacia la forma actual en 3/4 (6/8=3/4), mientras en ambientes populares se practicaba la otra (Pablo Minguet, Richard Twiss, Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán, el canto en José de Nebra). Pudo ocurrir esto a lo largo del siglo XVIII, una vez que los académicos comenzaron a utilizar el fandango para construir obras basadas en variaciones melódicas sobre un patrón armónico. También creemos que su estilización por los maestros de danza tuvo mucho que ver en este proceso de cambio. Juan Antonio de Iza Zamácola “Don Preciso” aseguraba en la década de los cuarenta del siglo XVIII que el maestro don Pedro de La Rosa (1982: 13) “[…] redujo las seguidillas y el fandango a reglas fijas […]”
, lo que es síntoma de su adaptación al baile, lo más seguro que al esquema de la seguidilla, pero con pasos más sencillos tal y como decía el maestro de danza Antonio Cairón
.

El fandango de Luigi Boccherini (1788/98) presentará el llamado toque “abandolao” en los instrumentos de cuerda frotada, pero no en la guitarra. La edición de Ruggiero Chiesa (Suvini-Zerboni ref. 7504) hecha a partir de los originales que copió François de Fossa presenta esta escritura para la guitarra en la siguiente sección de rasgueos:

[image: image32.png]ol |
g i
o |
Y
ﬁ L__ ) ‘
1 R e
N
ll Ao
H'Hﬁlr EEY =
o
. il
Y
¥ )
Jd (=
Mo
M p-
. i
ol |
4 iiipl
o] |
4]
‘ L__ X
X A=
N
[ N
M =l = e
fU (W] S| He | IESTIR N
&N B TN T N
\







[image: image33.png]b N TN | [
1]
L
HL,
e e T [~
= " ISJ
=|_ o1 Ea le—
i
]
N fnd W [ e
| |
T Nt ™[4~
L
s 5
N
o ® ¥ o [ 10—
AL ¥
T
o . | _|1ﬂ- ”H_
.
el _
J A
Qo b
e H —WNA_
o o ;ﬁﬁ.- A
4 4 |4 14
NG NG B NG
A\ (







Imagen 28: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 16-25.

Esta primera sección de rasgueos (cc. 16-23, nº 2-3) tiene un ritmo cercano al llamado “abandolao”, pero le falta la subdivisión de la segunda corchea del primer tiempo. El ritmo abandolao, que estará presente en el acompañamiento de las cuerdas más adelante, no aparece nunca en la guitarra. Con esto no decimos que no se practicara en este instrumento, pero tampoco podemos asegurar que así se hiciera. Lo que sí podemos decir es que ese peculiar ritmo sí se practicaba en el mundo académico a finales del XVIII
. Aparece de forma clara en los compases 158-165 (nº 21-22) en el violín 1º:
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Imagen 29: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 158-160.

También en los cc. 100-107 (nº 13-14), en el violonchelo
:
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Imagen 30: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 98-103.


En este mismo pasaje aparece en la guitarra una escritura en 6/8, momento que aprovechamos para retomar el asunto que estábamos estudiando sobre la polirritmia. Si volvemos a los cc. 20-23 expuestos más arriba veremos en la viola la escritura en 6/8 mientras el resto de instrumentos hacen diferentes figuraciones basadas en el 3/4. También podemos verlo en cierta forma en la guitarra en los cc. 49 y ss. (nº 6), aunque dependerá de cómo acentuemos lo escrito:

[image: image37.png]\p _Lr :ru /| Al
[l L s
(o I e
N ol e -
Ly
N.Il |, BN | I
o] mll [ g
& m-d L e H <N
.J ﬁ o | ” B -
ol o W
= i
by N ol |
I .
Thipi e (YT
A o \MH.
.| ﬂ Ty oL » -
\. 17 |_HE ‘ll —I g
Gl I I T -
\FH o o IAJ
I NHH| e I
.FJ J —I Ao
il Ul
sl (<l e el
o NN A _l, )
| - .m
i Al T
% Mi w S . (T S
o =
J A 1NN
R
QNG NG BE [ N
A







Imagen 31: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 49-52.


El ritmo típico del fandango (común a la seguidilla) lo encontramos en el forte del compás 7:
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Imagen 32: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 5-7.

Las acentuaciones típicas del compás del fandango en el pulso 3º las encontramos en el compás 60 (nº 8), ver violín 2º y guitarra:
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Imagen 33: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 59-61.

También en los violines de los compases 92-107 (nº 12): 
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Imagen 34: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 92-94.

Y en los trinos del Vl. 1º y figuraciones del Vl. 2º, en los cc. 150 y ss. (nº 20):
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Imagen 35: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 150 y ss.

Como aspecto interesante a señalar está la indicación del uso de castañuelas en el compás 151 anterior. En los compases 178 y ss. (nº 24) también tenemos trinos en el 3º tiempo del compás:
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Imagen 36: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 178-180.

El fandango encontrado en la Catedral de Albarracín (de ppios. XIX)
 está claramente escrito en 6/8 (cc.17 y ss.):
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Imagen 37: Fandango de la Catedral de Albarracín

Algunos pasajes del fandango de Salvador Castro de Gistau (ca.1810)
 también pueden escribirse
 en 6/8 (cc. 16, 20-21):
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Imagen 38: Fandango de Salvador Castro de Gistau. Compases 16-21.

También los cc. 40-45:
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Imagen 39: Fandango de Salvador Castro de Gistau. Compases 37-45.


Y los cc. 83-87:
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Imagen 40: Fandango de Salvador Castro de Gistau. Compases 81-86.


Parece que la intención del compositor es un ritmo a 3. Salvo en los rasgueos, donde está más presente el binario, forma probablemente conservada en la práctica popular, donde la guitarra rasgueada se mantenía como forma habitual de acompañamiento.

En el Fandango. Canción española meridional para danzar de Narciso Paz (1813), encontramos en la parte del canto una estructura rítmica heredera del fandango popular del XVIII, en la forma 6/8-3/4:
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Imagen 41: Fandango de Narciso Paz. Parte del canto.


Podemos encontrarla también en la parte instrumental anterior al canto, dentro de algunas figuraciones de la mano izquierda del piano (cc. 7-12):
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Imagen 42. Fandango de Narciso Paz. Parte instrumental.


En el Fandango intermediado de la rondeña para fortepiano (ca.1830)
 se encuentra un canto construido con una estructura heredada del compás alterno de 6/8-3/4:
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Imagen 43. Fandango intermediado de Rondeña.


En el Fandango de Dionisio Aguado (1834-5) encontramos figuraciones en 6/8 en el tercer sistema de la página 5:
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Imagen 44. Fandango de Dionisio Aguado. Tercer sistema página 5.


También en el último sistema de esa misma página (ver el registro grave):
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Imagen 45. Fandango de Dionisio Aguado. Último sistema página 5.


En casi toda la página 6:
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Imagen 46. Fandango de Dionisio Aguado. Página 6.


Y en gran parte del allegro final (ver el bajo, pág. 10): 
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Imagen 47. Fandango de Dionisio Aguado. Allegro final.


En los ejemplos de rondeña-malagueña que se publican desde mediados del XIX en adelante (como la de Francisco Rodríguez Murciano, Sebastián Iradier, Julián Arcas u otros) ya no aparece esta polirritmia, quizás por eso también tenga algo que ver el cambio de nombre. Sólo Rafael Marín presenta en malagueñas y granadinas pasajes en 6/8 en las partes de rasgueo, el resto está claramente en 3/4. Este es un fragmento de las malagueñas de Rafael Marín (pág. 106 de su método)
:
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Imagen 48: Malagueñas del método de guitarra de Rafael Marín.


Quizás esta escritura se deba a la relación del flamenco con las formas folclóricas que fue heredando durante su desarrollo. Podemos encontrar esta práctica en la introducción de unas jaberas grabadas por El Mochuelo, en una taranta grabada por Antonio Chacón y en unos fandangos de Lucena cantados por El Niño de Cabra
. 

Eduardo Ocón
 (entre 1854 y 1867)
 presenta el Fandango con ritornelo con algunos fraseos del violín en el habitual 3/4. Sin embargo, la guitarra se limita a rasguear de forma muy elemental:
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Imagen 49: Fandango con ritornelo de Eduardo Ocón

Núñez Robres (1866) escribe la granadina en compás de 3/8, aunque bien se podrían agrupar los compases cada dos, formando uno de 6/8:
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Imagen 50: Granadina de Lázaro Núñez Robres

Esta forma de escribir en 3/8 las diferentes modalidades de fandangos será la más frecuente en los recopiladores de cantos populares del siglo XIX. 

En esta malagueña de Isidoro Hernández de la colección Ecos de Andalucía (ca. 1880) la escritura en 6/8 sería muy adecuada, aunque esté en 3/8:
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Imagen 51: Malagueña de la colección Ecos de Andalucía de Isidoro Hernández

Sin embargo, en otras ocasiones nos encontramos la escritura de 3/4 para piezas similares. En ellas, los valores rítmicos son más largos, aunque los diseños rítmicos son los mismos (corchea=negra). Esta es otra malagueña del mismo autor que aparece en la colección Flores de España (1883):
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Imagen 52: Malagueña de la colección Flores de España de Isidoro Hernández

Los fandangos escritos por Isidoro Hernández están en 3/4, aunque con diferente rítmica. Este ejemplo es del Cancionero Popular (1874), donde podemos apreciar el ritmo típico del fandango, y en el último compás, el ritmo del fandango llamado “abandolao”:
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Imagen 53: Fandangos de la colección El Cancionero Popular de Isidoro Hernández

No obstante, en este fandango de la colección Flores de España, al indicarse un tempo de allegretto para la blanca con puntillo, en la práctica, auditivamente se produce la escucha de un 3/4 muy rápido (negra 198), lo que hará que se perciba como un 3/8:
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Imagen 54: Fandango de la colección Flores de España de Isidoro Hernández

Este es el comienzo del canto en este mismo fandango:
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Imagen 55: Canto del fandango de la colección Flores de España de Isidoro Hernández

Los ejemplos que figuran en 3/8, como esta rondeña de la serie La Gracia de Andalucía (188?), podían haberse escrito agrupados en forma binaria (6/8), lo que coincidiría con la escritura del fandango de muchos ejemplos del siglo XVIII y XIX:
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Imagen 56: Rondeña de la colección La Gracia de Andalucía de Isidoro Hernández

Independientemente del recorrido de la melodía, si observamos el patrón rítmico de estos dos ejemplos veremos que es el mismo expresado en diferentes valores: pulso de negra o de corchea. Si escribiésemos esta rondeña en 3/4 (pulsos de negra en lugar de corchea) tendríamos una escritura similar a la del fandango anterior. Escribiendo todo en compases de 3/8 con agrupación binaria (6/8) nos saldría la fórmula rítmica del fandango que hemos visto desde el principio escrita muchas veces en 3/4:
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Imagen 57: Transformación de la escritura del fandango del compás binario al ternario

Parece que será en el XIX cuando se consolide de forma definitiva en el mundo académico la escritura del fandango en 3/4, forma que debió ser influyente en ambientes populares (aunque aún se pudiera cultivar la anterior), ya que es la que nos encontramos hoy en la mayoría de interpretaciones. Este ritmo debió abrir un nuevo camino a los autores “populistas”, quienes tomaron el modelo ternario como referencia para sus creaciones. Partiendo de una base rítmica ya consolidada, abrieron nuevas vías expresivas basadas en un compás ternario, con poca herencia ya, o nada, de la hemiolia, aunque todavía con una agrupación binaria de sus compases como base subyacente y utilizando estructuras melódicas populares para sus composiciones.


Veamos ahora un fandango tildado de “verdadero” por Isidoro Hernández en su colección La gracia de Andalucía: 
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Imagen 58: “Verdadero fandango” de la serie La Gracia de Andalucía de Isidoro Hernández

Escrito en 3/4, todavía presenta una cierta herencia del 6/8 en la mano izquierda. Claramente las figuraciones en su mayoría están en 3/4, con la fórmula rítmica típica del fandango, sobre todo en el segundo sistema, donde al final aparecen tresillos que recuerdan al toque “abandolao”. En este ejemplo no podríamos agrupar dos compases de 3/4 como en los casos anteriores, porque está construido de la forma tradicional polirrítmica: 6/8 ó 3/4 en un mismo compás. Sin embargo, en el resto de ejemplos (salvo el otro fandango del Cancionero Popular) sí podemos agrupar dos compases ternarios, ya aparezcan en 3/8 o 3/4, porque su construcción musical parte de una estructura formada por una serie de dos compases ternarios. Esta es la parte de canto del mismo fandango anterior:

[image: image65.jpg].

7
los o - ji_tosde mi ea-_ra.....

it o

"
ca 4.,

[ 1 10N

mi

retard,

con el canto.

=y

Los o _ ji-tos de

_CANTO.

{ry
J







Imagen 59: Canto del “Verdadero fandango” de la serie La Gracia de Andalucía de I. Hernández

Como vemos, su carácter melódico de 6/8 se transforma en 3/4 debido a la acentuación en el tercer tiempo. El ritmo del acompañamiento está claramente construido ya en un 3/4. Recordamos el esquema ya visto antes sobre el canto del fandango y su acompañamiento:
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Imagen 60: Ritmo básico del canto del fandango

Por lo tanto, si escribiésemos en compases ternarios de agrupación binaria todas las formas de canto relacionadas con los fandangos, ya sean malagueñas, rondeñas, granadinas etc., sin aflamencar, obtendríamos una forma rítmica estructurada en compases de 6/8 ó 6/4, según su velocidad, forma común a los cantos de jota, con una extensión melódica de 2 compases, la forma vista arriba. O en su defecto, si lo escribiésemos en un compás ternario, obtendríamos 2 compases de 3/4 ó 3/2, no cuatro como normalmente vemos en su extensión. 


De la siguiente forma se ha venido escribiendo en 3/8 como hemos visto:
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Imagen 61: Escritura del fandango en 3/8

O de esta en valores de negras en 3/4 (negra=corchea anterior) en un ejemplo de “Fandango” de la serie Ecos de Andalucía (ca. 1880) de I. Hernández:
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Imagen 62: Escritura del fandango en 3/4

Veamos ahora un ejemplo de fandango de la zona de Málaga (Comares)
 que hemos transcrito en 3/4 con pulsos de negra:
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Imagen 63: Fandango de Comares

Si nos fijamos en el acompañamiento, el ritmo típico del fandango se realiza cada 3 pulsos, no cada 6, tal y como correspondería a la escritura tradicional, mostrada en el ejemplo anterior de I. Hernández. Si agrupásemos este ejemplo de forma binaria (6/4), veremos que el patrón rítmico no es negra-dos corcheas-negra / 3 negras, sino dos ciclos completos de 3 pulsos en la forma conocida como de “seguidilla” o “de fandango”:
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Imagen 64: Fandango de Comares en agrupación binaria


En los ejemplos de Huelva
 se conserva la forma más antigua en 6/4 (ritmo ternario de agrupación binaria con cambios armónicos desplazados):
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Imagen 65: Fandango de Huelva


[image: image72.png]Copla 1

T
P B I

T
i

aa—_a

> > x>
Fa__

X

o —

mir yo me. aco bs ta | ba

a dor

>

X

>

X

a

>

x

>
Do

x

33

®por ver sitoa bormee si|_a

>

SIS T O o A s S D S U D s N

Sol7

%

X

p
3







Imagen 66: Fandango de Huelva en agrupación binaria


El toque de Huelva en el fandango


Como característica musical importante dentro del grupo de los fandangos, encontramos en los estilos onubenses el llamado “toque de Huelva” en la guitarra, forma de acompañamiento en la que encontramos el uso de una resolución armónica que no coincide con el acento del primer tiempo del compás, resolviendo en el segundo o tercer tiempo. Igualmente encontramos una síncopa entre el tercer tiempo y el primero del compás siguiente que es típica de estos estilos:
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Imagen 67: Acompañamiento en el Toque de Huelva 


Hemos realizado la transcripción en compás de 3/4, aunque según su rapidez puede valer igualmente una en 3/8. Al agruparlos cada dos compases se crea un compás binario compuesto: 6/4. Esta forma de fandango de Huelva hereda el antiguo acompañamiento binario compuesto que hemos visto en ejemplos unas veces escritos en 6/8 y otras en 3/8, aunque en este último caso, como ya dijo Miguel Manzano, lo más correcto es escribirlo en ciclos de 2. El patrón rítmico más típico del fandango presenta en su forma vocal esta misma síncopa entre el pulso 3º y 4º compás (en 3/8):
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Imagen 68: Patrón rítmico típico del fandango


Las interpretaciones más flamencas de estos fandangos onubenes ralentizan el tempo con bastante frecuencia para facilitar el alargamiento melódico requerido por los cantaores
. Son las variantes populares las que conservan un tempo más rápido, asociado a los pasos de baile que acompaña el fandango.


Conclusiones


Es el canto del fandango el que ha conservado más o menos invariable su estructura rítmica, basada en un ritmo ternario de agrupación binaria. Coincide en este aspecto con uno de los tipos de jota más extendidos en la Península.

Su acompañamiento actual es mayormente ternario, pero en su origen debió ser igualmente binario compuesto, como el de la jota y como en los estilos hoy llamados “de Huelva” (aunque en estos últimos no nos lo parezca debido a su lentitud). Sin embargo, al no conservarse fuentes musicales escritas de música verdaderamente popular en el siglo XVIII y casi todo el XIX no podemos saber esto con exactitud. No obstante, hay que suponer una práctica de este tipo de fórmulas rítmicas en estratos populares, con uso del rasgueo como forma común y extendida diferente a la académica, forma que debió heredar el flamenco. 

Aún teniendo el fandango un carácter polirrítmico, parece que terminó adoptando la plantilla rítmica ternaria, no sabemos si el motivo ha sido aportación académica o por influencia de la danza estilizada, aunque parece probable. A principios del XVIII, poco tiempo después de su documentación en España, encontramos piezas escritas utilizando la forma binaria o la ternaria. Igualmente fue frecuente encontrar las dos plantillas rítmicas en una misma pieza a lo largo del siglo XVIII y principios del XIX, momento en el que se debió ir perdiendo la práctica binaria en favor de la ternaria, llegando a desaparecer definitivamente en el siglo XX en los estilos llamados de “Málaga”, como rondeñas y malagueñas, donde universalmente se practica un ritmo ternario conocido como “abandolao”, parece que derivado del bolero. En las formas conocidas como “verdiales”, de forma muy acelerada se introducen dos fórmulas ternarias “tipo fandango” donde antes se practicaba una. La forma más antigua se conserva en cierta forma sólo en los de Huelva con una peculiar estructura armónica en este último caso.
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�Citas entrecomillada en el texto, notas a pie de p.



�Una nota sobre la traducción: Peter Manuel me ha avisado que “binario” y “ternario” no se traducen como “binary” y “ternary”, que son términos referentes a la poesía en ingles, si no en “duple” y “triple-meter”. Pero si estamos hablando de 6/8 me parece que “duple-time” no sería correcto, porque significaría que el compas esta en dos, como 4/4 o 2/4 – Sobre este punto haría falta una conversación entre tu, yo como traductora, y un musicólogo como Antoni o Peter…



�De igual manera, en ingles el toque abandolao nunca se define, pero para que se comprenda tu articulo en ingles es uno de los términos que hay que reparar y explicar…



�Estas diciendo que el toque abandolao, tan arraigado en el flamenco de hoy, refleja influencias académicas de la evolución de una acentuación hipotética primitiva, binaria como la jota, hacia una acentuación ternaria, tipo seguidilla-academica (porque supongo que la seguidilla primitiva popular le puede haber pasado lo mismo?)??? Para mi, aquí esta el grano – muy super interesante – de tu articulo. Si estoy correcto en lo que he entendido, me gustaría ponerlo en la introducción, y como revisadora te aconsejaría que este argumento lo articules con fuerza y al principio, y en el abstracto!!!



�Esta sección es muy larga. ¿quizás se beneficiaria por una nueva sección para el s.XIX?
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Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish fandango: Binary and Ternary Rhythms
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Abstract


In Spain, the fandango has a polyrhythmic character. On one hand is the binary rhythmic pattern of the singer (6/8, similar to Jota), and on the other hand is the musical accompaniment in ternary rhythm (3/4). These rhythms merge to create one of the most unique styles of Spanish popular music. In fandangos published in Spain from the early-18th century to the late-19th century, we can detect an evolution in the accompaniment that, upon close analysis, allows us to better understand the nature of this musical genre. In this presentation, I focus on the polyrhythmic nature of fandangos, which has led to a number of musicians to write it sometimes in binary meter and other times in ternary meter.


Keywords: fandango, rondeña, malagueña, granadina, binary rhythm, ternary rhythm.


Resumen


En España el fandango tiene carácter polirrítmico. Por un lado, el patrón rítmico del canto de naturaleza binaria compuesta (6/8) semejante a la jota, y por otro, el ritmo de su acompañamiento de tipo ternario (3/4) se funden para crear uno de los estilos más singulares de la música popular española. En las publicaciones de fandangos en España desde principios del siglo XVIII hasta finales del siglo XIX, podemos detectar una evolución en la forma de acompañamiento que creemos importante analizar y estudiar para conocer mejor la naturaleza musical de este género tan popular. Nos referimos precisamente a esa naturaleza polirrítmica que ha llevado a los diferentes músicos a escribirla unas veces en compás binario compuesto y otras en ternario.


Palabras clave: fandango, rondeña, malagueña, granadina, ritmo binario, ritmo ternario.
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Introduction



The fandango is one of the most widespread musical genres in popular Spanish music and flamenco. Since its appearance as a dance form at the end of the seventeenth century, it has been through many transformations, engendering diverse variants associated with specific geographic zones, and also the escuela bolera, the classical school of Spanish dance.
 In the eighteenth century the fandango became the national dance par excelence, dance all over Spain and by all social clases. At the beginning of the nineteenth century, new fandango variants called “rondeñas” and “malagueñas” arose, and somewhat later came the “granadinas,” all styles which have obtained an important presence as flamenco forms. In this article we will examine the fandango’s rhythmic particularities, distinguished by their polyrhythmic carácter, which has led some musicians to write it in compound duple-meter and others in triple meter.

Musical character of fandango


The fandango has a ternary rhythm. This is the basic pattern when singing (Miguel Manzano):
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Image 1: Basic Rhythm of fandango when is singing
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Image 2: Rondeña inside the colletion La Gracia de Andalucía of Isidoro Hernández (188?)

But, it is more correct if we write in groups of two, like jota. Thus, 3/8-3/8 become 6/8, or 3/4-3/4 become 6/4, depending on the speed of the interpretation. 


This is the basic pattern of jota (Miguel Manzano):
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Image 3: Basic Rhythm of Jota when is singing
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Image 4: Melody of “Authentic fandango” of Isidoro Hernández in La Gracia de Andalucía (188?) written in ¾ time. 

At the same time the fandango has a polyrhythmic character, due to the rhythmic pattern of the singing: in duple meter (6/8), that also admits triple-meter notation (3/4) in some strophes; the accompaniment uses this rhythmic formula: 3/8, 6/8, and also 3/4. 

Miguel Manzano compiles three ways of writing for the melody of fandango:
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Image 5: Three ways of writing for the melody of fandango

In the interpretation of the fandango style, we have, on one hand, the song’s rhythm in 6/8 or 3/4, and in the other hand, the instrumental rhythm, with these dynamic accents in the upper register
:
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Image 6: Rhythm of fandango when singing with instrument accentuation
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Image 7: Melody of “Authentic fandango” of Isidoro Hernández

If we compare the fandango notated in 6/8 with some of the most frequent rhythmic patterns in the jota style (the V type classified by Manzano), we can see a similar structure:  
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Image 8: Rhythmic pattern of jota similar to fandango 

Now, let's examine the notation of the fandango through history.

Published fandangos through history

In 1705 we have three different fandangos recorded in tablature. The first one is possible to write in 6/8, due to the form of strumming, even though the time signature’s upper numeral is three. 
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Image 9: Strummed Fandango in 1705


The second fandango can be written in 3/4:
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Image 10: Plucked fandango in 1705 written in ternary time

But, it is possible in 6/8:
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Image 11: Plucked fandango in 1705 written in binary time

We have the same notes, but the accentuation is different: we exchange the three beats to a  measure for two beats:
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Image 12: Transformation of fandango from binary time to ternary time

Most academic sources notate the fandango in 3/4. The following rhythm is similar to the seguidilla style:
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Image 13: Fandango rhythm similar to seguidilla in 3 time.

We can also find this one
:
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Image 14: A variation of fandango rhythm also similar to seguidilla in 3 time.


And this one, the called “abandolao playing”, similar to bolero style (a slow seguidilla):
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Image 15: Fandango rhythm called “abandolao playing”

These rhythmic forms are used in popular and flamenco fandangos today, but we should not assume this holds for the original fandangos

The fandango of Santiago de Murcia (ca.1732) is very sophisticated if we compare it with different sources of the same period. It was notated in threes, a rhythmic structure which may be of academic origin, although I am not entirely sure. Nonetheless, it still contains some passages that recall the 6/8 (page 3, measures 51-3, signed with brackets
):
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Image 16: Fandango of Santiago de Murcia. Measures 51-53.

Final bars:
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Image 17: Fandango of Santiago de Murcia. Final bars.

In the fandango “Tempestad grande amigo” by José de Nebra (1744), we can find the polyrhythmic formula of the fandango. The melody has a hemiolic character (3:2 two notes in the time of three or the reverse) in a score written in triple meter: 
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Image 18: Hemiolia (3:2)


[image: image19.png]Voz

VI.1°

Bajo

n /_\
A - X X e
:@Z e e Y
e
__ jAy  qué
A i ZEFEE
] 2] ] 2] P
Q) LJ | . i —_ LJ . i L’-
lam Mi lam Mi
a\° \ ? \ \ ? \
= —— = — ——p
| r |







[image: image20.png]voz 1

vOzZ 2

1

ﬁo

ti

Que_es

pa ro

Pa

A
]

A

o

pa ro Pa pa

Pa

rem_

lam

A 7

A 7

ju lal jAy qué

Bru

la

la Bra ju

Bra ju

lam

e )°







Image 19: Fandango of José de Nebra “Tempestad grande amigo”. Measures 1-8.

The introduction of the first violin is in 6/8 with a rhythmic pattern similar to sung fandango. The bass is in 3/4, and the melody of the singing begins with an anacrusis, falling into a possible 6/8 followed by 3/4 in succession.

There is no “abandolado touch” in this example; no seguidilla style either. Maybe this is an ancient form of popular style, copied for composers and taken to the theatre with a popular inspiration.

Pablo Minguet e Yrol (1754) has a fandango written in triple meter (3/8):
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Image 20: Fandango of Pablo Minguet e Yrol

We can write it in 6/8 due to his harmonic cycle and strummed interpretation:
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Image 21: Fandango “por patilla” of Pablo Minguet e Yrol

It is not possible to write the seguidilla rhythm in this example of Pablo Minguet in 3/8, we need to make a group with two measures: 6/8 and use hemiolia (6/8=3/4):
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Image 22: Transformation of the fandango writing from a binary time to the ternary time

Scarlatti wrote his fandango in 3/4. Nevertheless, the left hand has a reminiscence of 6/8 notation. Measures 10-13:
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 Image 23: Fandango of Scarlatti. Measures 7-15.

Measures 106-108:
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Image 24: Fandango de Scarlatti. Measures 103-110.

 In the manuscript M/1250 Pieces for harpsichord (first half of eighteen century) of the National Library of Spain, the “Fandanguito de Cádiz” has hemiolic character written in a polyrhythmic vertical form:

[image: image26.png][ IgH
@

aal

"I
—

?e
=

=

| #_'
;?j%

Y

=~
L 1 1 1

=

_?::i_

S

=

-
@
aal
"I
—

?e
=

| #_'
=

o
o)







Image 25: Fandanguito de Cádiz of manuscript M/1250 in the National Library of Spain

The fandango of Antonio Soler y Ramos (before 1783) has some parts in 6/8. Measures 47-50:


[image: image27.png]|

ﬁ -
vl e
mi y
e

1
HTE
mi y
R

WK— n

Mnmwwu A







Image 26: Fandango of Antonio Soler y Ramos

The example of Richard Twiss (1772/3) is written entirely in 6/8, but some parts admit triple-meter notation, for example measures 7-9:
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Image 27: Fandango of Richard Twiss

The fandango of Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán (1773) can be written in 3/4 or 6/8 time, but we think that 6/8 time is better; because the strummed form indicated suggests this accentuation:
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Image 28: Fandango of Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán

We think that in the eighteen century people practiced this form in 6/8 in vernacular settings, while in academic sources the composers tend to prefer 3/4. The codification in an academic ballet of the popular dances could be the motive for this preference in the world of classical music and dance.  Juan Antonio de Iza Zamácola “Don Preciso” claimed in 1799 that in 1740 the master Pedro de La Rosa “reduced the seguidillas and fandango to fixed rules”.

The fandango of Luigi Boccherini (1788/98) presents the “abandolao playing” in the string instruments, but not in the guitar. This is the Ruggiero Chiesa edition (Suvini-Zerboni ref. 7504
) done from the original ones that François de Fossa copied. Look at the guitar:
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Image 29: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 16-25.

We can see the “abandolao playing” in measures 158-165; in first violin. 
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Image 30: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 158-160.

In Cello; measures 100-107 (nº 13-14):
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Image 31: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 98-103.

In some sections, the notation appears in 6/8: Measures 20-23 in viola: 
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Image 32: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 20-23.


Measures 49 and following (nº 6); in guitar: 
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Image 33: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 49-52.

The typical rhythm of fandango similar to seguidilla, we can find it in the forte of measure 7:
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Image 34: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 5-7.

The typical accentuation on beat three of fandango rhythm, we can find it in measure 60 (nº 8), in second violin 2º and guitar:
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Image 35: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 59-61.

Also in the violins in measures 92-107 (nº 12): 
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Image 36: Fandango de Luigi Boccherini. Compases 92-94.

In the trills of Vl. 1º y and figurations of Vl. 2º, in measures 150 and following (nº 20):
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Image 37: Fandango of Luigi Boccherini. Measures 150 and following

The fandango of Cathedral of Albarracín (Beginning of the 19th century) is written in 6/8 time: 
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Image 38: Fandango of Cathedral of Albarracín

Some measures of the fandango of Salvador Castro de Gistau (ca.1810) can be written in 6/8 (measures 16, 20-21):
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Image 39: Fandango of Salvador Castro de Gistau. Measures 16-21.

Also in the measures 40-45:
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Image 40: Fandango of Salvador Castro de Gistau. Measures 37-45.


And measures 83-87:
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Image 41: Fandango of Salvador Castro de Gistau. Measures 81-86.


In Fandango. Canción española meridional para danzar by Narciso Paz (1813), we can find a popular form of the fandango of the eighteenth century, with a 6/8-3/4 rhythmic pattern. See the left hand in the instrumental section. Measures 7-12:
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Image 42. Fandango of Narciso Paz. Instrumental part

If we look at the melody of Fandango intermediado de la rondeña para fortepiano (ca.1830) we can find a rhythm based in this formula 6/8-3/4:
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Image 43. Fandango intermediated with Rondeña.


In the Fandango of Dionisio Aguado (1834-5) we can find 6/8s in some parts of the triple-meter notation (polyrhythmic character): 
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Image 44. Fandango of Dionisio Aguado. Third staff on page 5.


Also in the last staff (same page). Look at the bass line:
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Image 45. Fandango of Dionisio Aguado. Last staff on page 5.


Page 6:
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Image 46. Fandango of Dionisio Aguado. Página 6.


Final Allegro. Look at the bass line (page 10): 
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Image 47. Fandango of Dionisio Aguado. Final Allegro

In the examples of rondeña-malagueña published in mid-nineteenth century (Francisco Rodríguez Murciano, Sebastián Iradier, Julián Arcas and many others) there is no polyrhythmic writing. Only Rafael Marín, in his guitar method (1902) presents malagueñas and granadinas sections with 6/8 writing in the strummed parts, the rest of the music is clearly in 3/4 time. Malagueñas of Rafael Marín (page 106):
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Image 48: Malagueñas of Rafael Marín´s Guitar Method.


We can find this kind of interpretation in recordings of “El Mochuelo”, in a taranta of Antonio Chacón and fandangos of Lucena singing by “El Niño de Cabra”
. 

In this malagueña of Isidoro Hernández in the collection Ecos de Andalucía (ca. 1880), the notation, originally in 3/8, would be very appropriate 6/8:
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Image 49: Malagueña in the colección Ecos de Andalucía of Isidoro Hernández (ca.1880)

Nevertheless, we can find 3/4 writing for similar pieces. The rhythmic is the same, but in larger notes (eight note=quarter note). This is another malagueña of the same author in the collection Flores de España (1883):
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Image 50: Malagueña in the collection Flores de España of Isidoro Hernández

The fandangos written by Isidoro Hernández are in 3/4 time, but with different rhythm. This example is from Cancionero Popular (1874), where we can appreciate the typical rhythm of fandango, and in the last measure, the “abandolao playing”:
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Image 51: Fandangos inside the collection El Cancionero Popular of Isidoro Hernández

Nevertheless, in this fandango inside the collection Flores de España, the tempo for the allegreto is: dotted half note=66. In the practice, we have: quarter note=198, similar to other pieces in 3/8 time:
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Image 52: Fandango inside the collection Flores de España of Isidoro Hernández

This is the begining of the singing in the same fandango:


[image: image56.jpg]=
i

4 A
A A 4 |
1L A Hl
AT %U
ol -
sollll A
..m o.vﬁ AT
m. o
=4l
24l
T
2 o] M
2]
240 Al
[ YR Hi IS .







Image 53: Melody of the fandango inside the collection Flores de España of Isidoro Hernández

The pieces written in 3/8 time, like this rondeña in the collection La Gracia de Andalucía (188?), would be written in binary time: (6/8), like some fandangos in the 18th and 19th century:
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Image 54: Rondeña inside the collection La Gracia de Andalucía of Isidoro Hernández

The rhythmic pattern of the melody of this rondeña is similar to the other fandango, although the pulse is different: quarter note pulse as opposed to eightth note pulse. If we write this rondeña in 3/4 time, we would have a similar notation to the previous fandango. If we write everything in 3/8 time, grouping them in groups of two (6/8) we would have the typical formula of fandango seen many times in 3/4:


[image: image58.png]Transformacién del fandango de 6/8 a 3/4







Image 55: Transformation of fandango from binary time to ternary time

Not until the nineteenth century, it seems, did the notation of the fandango in 3/4 time become customary in academic circles. And given the fact that this particular rhythmic schema is widely played today, it also seems that this rhythmic convention may have an important influence on popular interpretations, as well.

This is the “Authentic fandango” of Isidoro Hernández inside the collection La Gracia de Andalucía (188?):
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Image 56: “Authentic fandango” by Isidoro Hernández in La Gracia de Andalucía (188?) written in ¾ time. 

Written in 3/4 time, he still presents a certain influence of the 6/8 time in the left hand. But most of the figures are in 3/4 time, consistent with the typical form of fandango in academic pieces. In the final bar we can see the “abandolao playing”. In this case, we can´t make groups of two with two bars of 3/4, because it is written in the polyrhythmic form: 6/8 or 3/4 in the same bar. Nevertheless, in the other examples (except the fandango of Cancionero Popular) we can make groups out of two three-beat measures, regardless of whether they are written in 3/8 or 3/4, because their musical construction is based on dyads of three-beat measures. Here is the song melody from the same fandango by Isidoro Hernández:
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Image 57: Singing of “Authentic fandango”. I. Hernández

As we can see, the melody character in 6/8 can be transformed to 3/4 simply by changing the accentuation: adding an accent in the third pulse (thinking in 3/4). The rhythm of the accompaniment is clearly in 3/4. Recalling the previous scheme
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Image 58: Basic rhythm of the singing fandango. Polyrhythmic formula
.

In other words, we have 2 bars extension in fandango formula, it doesn´t matter if it is written in 6/8 or 3/4. But normally, we see a type of writing in 4 bars in 3/8 time: 
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Image 59: The fandango writing in 3/8

Or this one in 3/4 time (“Fandango” in the collection Ecos de Andalucía (ca. 1880) de I. Hernández):
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Image 60: The fandango writing in 3/4

Let's see now an example of fandango of Málaga (Comares) transcribed in 3/4 with quarter note pulse:
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Image 61: Fandango of Comares

We have 4 bars of three here as well. But if we look the accompaniment, the typical rhythm of fandango is played in 3 pulses, not in 6 (the traditional form). If we make groups with 2 bars (6/4), the rhythmic pattern is not quarter - 2 eights - quarter note, we have two complete patterns of 3 pulses of “fandango formula” (or “seguidilla formula”):
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Image 62: Fandango of Comares in a binary ensemble 

In the region of Huelva
 we can find the ancient form in 6/4 time (ternary rhythm in binary ensemble), with a particular harmony changing:
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Image 63: Fandango of Huelva
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Image 64: Fandango of Huelva in a binary ensemble

The Huelva playing in fandango


In the region of Huelva there is a particular style of fandango, with a personal way of accompaniment, where the harmonic resolution of the chord is not in the first pulse of the bar. The resolution is in second or third pulse. We can also find syncopation between the third pulse and the first pulse of the next bar:
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Image 65: Accompaniment in Huelva fandango

Our transcription is in 3/4 time, but, depending on the speed of the interpretation, it can also be valid in 3/8. This particular way of playing inherits the ancient accompaniment of fandango in binary formula (6/8, or 3/8+3/8).  The typical pattern of singing fandango presents a similar syncopation between the third pulse and the fourth pulse (in 3/8):
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Image 66: Typical rhythm formula of singing fandango

In a flamenco playing of the fandango of Huelva, the speed can be slower, because the singer needs liberty in the interpretation of the melody
. We can find rapid tempos in the popular examples, as well as in the popular dance.

Conclusions

Fandango singing has maintained its rhythmic structure, more or less, through the centuries. It has a similar formula to one type of jota style.

Current fandango accompaniment is mainly triple meter (3/4), but it was  originally in duple meter like the jota and fandangos de Huelva (6/8). Although it is very difficult to know exactly, because we don´t have sources of authentic popular music in the past, it seems reasonable to posit a continuous practice of this rhythmic formula in vernacular settings, with strummed playing, different than fandango styles practiced in academic circles. This formula continues in flamenco music. 

The fandango’s polyrhythmic character changed the rhythmic pattern of the accompaniment, using a triple-meter accentuation. We don´t know if it is an academic or dance influence, but either is possible. At the beginning, and throughout the eigthteenth century, we can find pieces written in duple or triple meter. It was also frequent to find both rhythmic formulas in the same piece throughout the eighteenth and into the early-nineteenth century. Today, the duplet models have lost ground in favor of the triplet ones, disappearing definitively in the 20th century styles called “of Malaga,” such as rondeñas and malagueñas, which are played in a triplet rhythm called “abandolao”, similar to the bolero (slow seguidilla). In the contemporary styles known as verdiales two rapid ternary formulas are present (fandango pattern) whereas early styles usually used only one. The ancient forms remain in Huelva styles of fandango, with a particular harmonic structure. 
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�En el original en castellano hay un párrafo introductorio que aquí no está. Debe unificarse el criterio



�Las notas a pie de página del artículo en español son más numerosas que las del artículo en inglés.



�¿???? No estoy segura de la traduccion



�cuales son las fuentes de estos ejemplos?



�Quien es el autor de estos trozos de partitura? “We find” quiere decir que lo encontraste en algún lugar sin citar su autor…



�p. 3 de que??? 



�Porque aquí la cita?



�Porque es este imagen numero 60 en la versión español? 



�Falta editorial y año de publicación



�Falta ciudad de publicación, en lugar de país. Lo más seguro es que la ciudad sea Urbana..



�Falta editorial
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Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish fandango: Compound and Triple-Meter Rhythms


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


Keywords: fandango, rondeña, malagueña, granadina, compound meter, triple-meter rhythm.


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
 In the eighteenth century the fandango became the national dance par excelence, dance all over Spain and by all social clases. At the beginning of the nineteenth century, new fandango variants called “rondeñas” and “malagueñas” arose, and somewhat later came the “granadinas,” all styles which have obtained an important presence as flamenco forms. In this article we will examine the fandango’s rhythmic particularities, distinguished by their polyrhythmic carácter, which has led some musicians to write it in compound-meter and others in triple meter.

Musical character of fandango


The fandango has a triple-meter rhythm. This is the basic pattern when singing (Miguel Manzano):
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

At the same time the fandango has a polyrhythmic character, due to the rhythmic pattern of the singing: in compound meter (6/8), that also admits triple-meter notation (3/4) in some strophes; the accompaniment uses this rhythmic formula: 3/8, 6/8, and also 3/4. 

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

[image: image6.png]D






Image 6: Rhythm of fandango when singing with instrument accentuation

[image: image7.jpg]ritord,

_GANTO.

t
&
qm
b
=
TH S
Rl 2
e
@
N2
b =
55N
4l 2
s
Fy
R @
=
>3
g
2
Pa 2
2
f e
n.ul A
Lﬁ il =
Azm o

-y
”

.
T
T

_ el

LY

=

se2fee

con el canto.,







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
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Image 10: Plucked fandango in 1705 written in triple-meter time

But, it is possible in 6/8:
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Image 11: Plucked fandango in 1705 written in compound meter

We have the same notes, but the accentuation is different: we exchange the three beats to a  measure for two beats:
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Image 12: Transformation of fandango from compound to triple-meter

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
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Image 22: Transformation of the fandango writing from compound- to triple-meter

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


[image: image45.jpg]tanj il _, 1
V)
b N vs
. |
W TR b
0y '
rn i w la
\
A W \ﬂl, 1
|y __
u- . * ,Ik.
hies ﬂ \
Eh, 9
iR I | i
h(AL]| B
i p X
K §
.
1y
Aol M
i _7
I} N
Nl |
IR I
I .y
i ™
M ollel
™
qdu -
N )
AL s ﬂ
N N~






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

The pieces written in 3/8 time, like this rondeña in the collection La Gracia de Andalucía (188?), would be written in compound meter: (6/8), like some fandangos in the 18th and 19th century:
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Image 54: Rondeña inside the collection La Gracia de Andalucía of Isidoro Hernández

The rhythmic pattern of the melody of this rondeña is similar to the other fandango, although the pulse is different: quarter note pulse as opposed to eightth note pulse. If we write this rondeña in 3/4 time, we would have a similar notation to the previous fandango. If we write everything in 3/8 time, grouping them in groups of two (6/8) we would have the typical formula of fandango seen many times in 3/4:
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Image 55: Transformation of fandango from compound to triple meter

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
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Image 62: Fandango of Comares in a compound-meter ensemble 

In the region of Huelva
 we can find the ancient form in 6/4 time (triple-meter rhythm in compound-meter ensemble), with a particular harmony changing:
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Image 63: Fandango of Huelva
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Image 64: Fandango of Huelva in a compound-meter ensemble

The Huelva playing in fandango


In the region of Huelva there is a particular style of fandango, with a personal way of accompaniment, where the harmonic resolution of the chord is not in the first pulse of the bar. The resolution is in second or third pulse. We can also find syncopation between the third pulse and the first pulse of the next bar:
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Image 65: Accompaniment in Huelva fandango

Our transcription is in 3/4 time, but, depending on the speed of the interpretation, it can also be valid in 3/8. This particular way of playing inherits the ancient accompaniment of fandango in compound meter (6/8, or 3/8+3/8).  The typical pattern of singing fandango presents a similar syncopation between the third pulse and the fourth pulse (in 3/8):
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

Current fandango accompaniment is mainly triple meter (3/4), but it was  originally in compound meter like the jota and fandangos de Huelva (6/8). Although it is very difficult to know exactly, because we don´t have sources of authentic popular music in the past, it seems reasonable to posit a continuous practice of this rhythmic formula in vernacular settings, with strummed playing, different than fandango styles practiced in academic circles. This formula continues in flamenco music. 

The fandango’s polyrhythmic character changed the rhythmic pattern of the accompaniment, using a triple-meter accentuation. We don´t know if it is an academic or dance influence, but either is possible. At the beginning, and throughout the eigthteenth century, we can find pieces written in compound or triple meter. It was also frequent to find both rhythmic formulas in the same piece throughout the eighteenth and into the early-nineteenth century. Today, the compound-meter models have lost ground in favor of the triplet ones, disappearing definitively in the 20th century styles called “of Malaga,” such as rondeñas and malagueñas, which are played in a triplet rhythm called “abandolao”, similar to the bolero (slow seguidilla). In the contemporary styles known as verdiales two rapid triple-meter formulas are present (fandango pattern) whereas early styles usually used only one. The ancient forms remain in Huelva styles of fandango, with a particular harmonic structure. 
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� For broad historical information on the fandango, I refer the reader to Guillermo Castro Buendía, Génesis musical del cante flamenco. De lo remoto a lo tangible en la música flamenca hasta la muerte de Silverio Franconetti (Sevilla: Libros con duende, 2014), 187ff. 



� El Mochuelo –Javeras– “A mí me pueden mandar”, guitar ¿Antonio López?, ¿1907?, Odeón 41115. Antonio Chacón –Taranta 2 (1)– “Una pena impertinente”, 1909, Odeón 68092. Guit. Juan Gandulla Habichuela. Niño de Cabra –Fandangos de Lucena–, 1914, ¿Ref.? Guit. ¿Ramón Montoya? Transcription in CASTRO BUENDÍA, Génesis musical del cante flamenco… Op. Cit. Pages. 312 ff.



� “Viva Campillo y Ardales”, 1982, Hispavox 7991642.



� The Toronjo Brothers and their Band –Fandangos de Alosno– “Por ver si te aborrecía”. 1961, Hispavox HH 11-47.



� For example the fandangos alosneros sung by Camen Linares “A la Virgen de la Bella” in Antología, 1996.







�De Antoni, contestando mi pregunta sobre como traducir “binario” y “ternario”: La terminologia es confusa



6/8 generalmente en ingles es “compound meter”



3 / 4  = triple meter



2 / 4 or 4/4 = duple meter (some people use quadruple, but not everyone…)







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







[Type text]
[Type text]
[Type text]


Guillermo Castro Buendía




[bookmark: _GoBack]In his article “Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish fandango: Compound and Triple-Meter Rhythms,” Guillermo Castro Buendía essays a close musicological reading of the polyrhythms of fandangos published in the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. These polyrhythms overlay the 6/8, or compound rhythm, characteristic of flamenco fandangos as sung today, with 3/4, the triple-meter characteristic of many Spanish folk dances, such as the jota. Castro tracks the evolution of fandango accompaniment from the earliest published notations of 1705 through the nineteenth century and into flamenco styles of the present day, building on Miguel Manzano’s insight that the fandango’s polyrhythmic character evidences its intersection with the jota, a shared space of mutual influence.[footnoteRef:1] If both jota and fandango-related singing in Spain today both emphasize the 6/8, by focusing on the instrumental accompaniment Castro argues that the toque abandolao, a lilting triplet strum that colors the sound of much of today’s flamenco, “reflects academic influences in the evolution from a hypothetical root accentuation in compound time, like jota, toward a triple-meter accentuation” as found in the seguidilla (a popular form which, like the fandango, was absorbed into the academy and onto the theater stage over the course of the eighteenth century). Castro analyses Santiago de Murcia’s 1732 fandango, “sophisticated in comparison with other musical sources of the same era” and “primarily written in threes,” a rhythmic structure that, Castro argues, “may be of academic origin.” He then examines the oscillations between rhythmic “tunings” in the 1744 fandango “Tempestad grande amigo” de José de Nebra (1744), the song written in 3/4 but with hemiola, or an accentuation in twos pulling against the triplet, and the accompaniment, also written in 3/4, but “interpreted in 6/8”—“a rhythmic accentuation derived from the fandango song.” Castro argues that the polyrhythmic accentuations in Nerja’s 1744 fandango “may represent faint traces of the vernacular fandangos recreated, but still conserving elements of popular music,” in eighteenth-century theaters. “Perhaps Murcia [1732] and Scarlatti, members of the academy, refined the strummed popular fandango, leading toward the fandango’s contemporary accentuation” in triplets, while in the streets and plazas of the eighteenth century, as transcribed by Pablo Minguet [1737], Richard Twiss [1772/1773], Juan Antonio de Vargas y Guzmán [1773], as well as in the song part of Nebra’s fandango [1744], the compound 6/8 accentuation was more prominent. By the second half of the eighteenth century, Castro observes, concertized and theatricalized fandangos in the works of Francisco Rodríguez Murciano, Sebastián Iradier, Julián Arcas, and others had changed both their name, becoming “rondeñas” and “malagueñas,” and had lost their polyrhythmic wavering between 3/4 and 6/8 in favor of a more straight-forward triplet accentuation. In Nerja’s 1744 fandango, Castro argues, we find traces of the compound rhythms of the primeval popular fandangos that were “recreated” in the fandangos of eighteenth-century performances at court and in theaters. Further, in the lilting triplets of contemporary flamenco, we find quotations of this eighteenth-century academicization of both popular music and dance.  [1:  MANZANO, Mapa Hispano de Bailes y danzas…, Op.Cit. Pág. 673. Señala multitud de casos de jotas con la plantilla rítmica tipo V del fandango en el norte peninsular.] 












PS Asunto de nada, ¿conoces el trabajo de Rolando Pérez Fernández? (Perez, Fernandez R. A.
La Binarización De Los Ritmos Ternarios Africanos En América Latina . Ciudad de La
Habana, Cuba: Casa de las Americas, 1987.) Súper interesante, porque habla de la evolución
en el s. XIX en las Américas del poliritmo tresillo a una acentuación en 2, al contrario del
proceso que documentas en España.

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell



From: Piza, Antoni
To: Straker, Kathryn
Subject: Tuesday at 11am
Date: Monday, January 05, 2015 2:54:00 PM

Happy new year Katie!
 
I forget if you’re back.  If you are, we’ll get back to work Tuesday at 11am.  If not, next Tuesday.
 
Have a great week!!
 
Antoni
 
 
 
 
 
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
Subject: tuesday
Date: Monday, February 09, 2015 12:02:16 AM

Hi Antoni,

Just to remind you, I'm on jury duty standby this week, which means that every day after 5, I have to call and find
out if I have to go in the next day. I don't have to go Monday. For monday, they call numbers 0-1900. I'm number
2900. So, I'm guessing I'll have to go in Tuesday. I HOPE I don't, but I won't know until after 5 on Monday. I'll let
you know as soon as I know.

Katie

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Piza, Antoni
To: Straker, Kathryn
Subject: Tuesday
Date: Monday, February 16, 2015 3:31:00 PM

Hi Katie, let me know if you have your jury duty… Otherwise I’ll see you at 11am.
 
I would like to work on this:
 
--post about Meira’s new book
--let’s work on the email list.  I forgeit if we bought the sofware etc…
--there’s some filing to be done
--let’s work on new tryptychs for upcoming events
 
Best
 
Antoni
 
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu


From: La Meira
To: Michelle Heffner Hayes; Piza, Antoni; Carlota Santana; art
Subject: Tufts called to schedule a phone interview!!!
Date: Thursday, January 22, 2015 11:55:02 AM

...that has never happened before! I'm very excited. Thank you all for your support...

besos, M

-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com

mailto:mhayes@ku.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:carlota@flamenco-vivo.org
mailto:artg@cs.nyu.edu
http://www.lameiraflamenco.com/


From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: two questions:
Date: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 12:21:34 PM

Siento molestarte, Antoni!

can Gabriela use rosin on the Segal stage? can she, Adam and Claudia rehearse in the Segal
sometime on Thursday?

besos

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Sander, Karen
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Ubrist - Nov 10
Date: Wednesday, June 17, 2015 11:39:13 AM

Is this confirmed now?
 
K
 
Karen Sander
Director of Public Programs
The Graduate Center
City University of NY
365 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10016
212-817-7132
ksander@gc.cuny.edu
 

mailto:ksander@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:ksander@gc.cuny.edu


From: Celia Novis
To: editor@mundoclasico.com
Subject: un artículo de su posible interés
Date: Tuesday, June 09, 2015 6:25:56 PM

Estimado Sr. Carreira,

 

soy Celia Novis, periodista y cineasta establecida en Nueva York. Les escribo por lo
siguiente: la Foundation for Iberian Music, asociada a The City University of New
York (CUNY) y dirigida por el mallorquín Antoni Pizà, lleva más de 10 años
promoviendo y difundiendo internacionalmente con éxito las músicas del
Mediterráneo, Latinoamericanas y de las culturas caribeñas. Su labor es muy
apreciada en los EEUU, especialmente en Nueva York.

 

En estos momentos son noticia porque el próximo 21 de junio estrenan en Nueva
York una composición de Javier Arias que interpretará el famoso instrumentista
madrileño Julián Elvira, primer flautista de la Banda Sinfónica Municipal de Música de
Madrid. Esta composición es un encargo de la Foundation for Iberian Music, que
cada año encarga a un músico de renombre una obra para ser estrenada en Nueva
York. Otros años fueron nombres de la talla de Benet Casablancas, Paquito
D’Rivera, Tania León y un largo etcétera.

 

Estoy desarrollando un artículo sobre este estreno inminente en Nueva York y sería
muy importante si ustedes ofrecieran a la Foundation la posibilidad de publicar la
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda,  MUNDO CLÁSICO es un referente y
estamos convencidos de que la enorme comunidad hispanohablante de Nueva York
(y de EEUU en general) que aún no les conoce, sentirá interés por seguir a un medio
de su calidad.

 

Muchas gracias por la atención y espero noticias suyas.

 

Un saludo,

 

Celia Novis

----

mailto:editor@mundoclasico.com


Celia Novis

Filmmaker, Scriptwriter and Journalist

www.somiantproductions.com
www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com

http://www.somiantproductions.com/
http://www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com/


From: Celia Novis
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: un dubte
Date: Friday, June 12, 2015 2:50:14 PM

Hola Toni, 
em dius a un mail que adjunti la foto de Julián però al titular nomenem a Javier Arias. És una
mica raro. Vols que posi també una petita foto d'Arias? O canvio el titular?

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


From: Meaghan Burke
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: UN International School - Cello Teaching Position
Date: Saturday, May 02, 2015 5:52:45 PM
Attachments: Meaghan Burke Teaching Artist Resume.doc

Dear Antoni,

My friend Laura Cocks (flutist) from the CUNY Grad Center forwarded me your notice about
seeking a cello teacher for the United Nations International School, and I would be very
interested in applying!  I am a cellist and teacher, currently on faculty at the North Carolina
Governors' School gifted summer program and NYC's own Harmony Program, as well as
teaching private lessons.  In my performing career, I play primarily chamber music (with a
focus on contemporary work), as well as various creative projects involving my own music for
cello and voice.  I hold degrees from Yale, Konservatorium Wien University (Vienna), and
Manhattan School of Music (contemporary performance program).

Please see my resume for further information; you can also consult my website
(www.meaghanburkemusic.com) for playing samples and more information.  And of course
feel free to give me a call at 914-330-4610 to discuss!  This sounds like a wonderful
opportunity, and I'd love to apply for the position if it's still vacant.

I look forward to hearing from you!  Have a wonderful weekend.

Best regards,
Meaghan

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.meaghanburkemusic.com/

                                                                                                             Meaghan Burke

65 E 19th St. Apt. 3A / Brooklyn, NY 11226 / (914)-330-4610

meaghan.s.burke@gmail.com / www.meaghanburkemusic.com



Teaching Experience


Workshops

· Artist-in-Residence with Dead Language, Queensland Conservatorium, Brisbane, Australia, 2013

Taught master classes for strings, chamber groups, jazz and contemporary music ensembles; focus on improvisation and interpreting non-standard notation

· Workshops with Cadillac Moon Ensemble with student performers and composers at CUNY Graduate Center, University of Massachusetts Dartmouth, Mansfield University, Queens College, NYU, 2013-2014

Advised young composers on instrumental writing, notation, form, etc. through rehearsals and performances; gave instrumental master classes

Teaching Positions

· Harmony Program, Lead Teacher, NYC, 2014-present

Teach group cello class to middle school students in Harlem; act as liaison between school administration, program teachers, parents, and students

· Individual U, Mentor in Music, German, Writing, NYC, 2011-2014

Mentor students struggling in normal school environments on various subjects related to music and languages; focus on improving Executive Function

· Soyulla Artists, Teaching Artist, NYC, 2013-present

· Private Cello Teacher, NYC, 2011-present


· Fulbright Teaching Assistant, Baden, Austria, 2006-2008

Taught classroom English and Anglophone culture in two Austrian high schools 


Writing/Translation


-     German/English Translator for a forthcoming book of Peter Ablinger's complete 
       
        writings, Wolke Verlag (publication slated for January 2016)



-      Lyrics writer for songs for the Austrian film “Local Heroes” (2013)

Education

· Manhattan School of Music (May 2013)



       Master of Music in Contemporary Performance


· Konservatorium Vienna University (October 2010)


Master of Arts in Cello Performance with Distinction

Master’s Thesis on “Reading the Unrealizable: Visions of Utopia, Enlightenment, and Destruction in Scriabin, Cage, Fluxus, and Braxton”

· Yale College (May 2006)


Bachelor of Arts in Music cum laude

· Major Teachers: Fred Sherry, Bernard Greenhouse, Christoph Stradner, Ole Akahoshi; additional study with Andreas Lindenbaum, Pierre Strauch, Erik Friedlander (jazz/improvisation), Lucy Shelton (voice)

Performance Experience


     Solo

     The Stone (NYC)


     Joe's Pub (NYC)


     St. Peter's Church (NYC)
     Austrian Cultural Forum London


     La Marbrerie (Paris)
     Alte Schmiede (Vienna)


     Museumsquartier (Vienna)


     Porgy and Bess (Vienna)


     Les Archives (France)


Chamber
Carnegie Hall (Weill Hall)


Le Poisson Rouge (NYC)
Roulette (NYC)
Birdland (NYC)


Brisbane Powerhouse (Australia)


Musikverein (Vienna)


Ruprechtskirche (Vienna)


Orpheum (Vancouver, Canada)


KKL Lucerne (Switzerland)


Festivals (select)



- Lucerne Festival Academy, Switzerland, 2012, 2014




- Avant Music Festival, NYC, 2014-2015




- Performa13 Performance Art Festival, New York, USA, 2013




- Festival of Toy Music, Brisbane, Australia, 2013




- Chelsea Music Festival, New York, USA, 2012




- Samos Young Artists Festival, Greece, 2012


- La Carrière de Normandoux, France, 2012


- Moving Sounds Festival (Austrian Cultural Forum NYC), 2012




- Popfest Vienna, Austria, 2011-2013


Performances/Collaborations with:

Sir Simon Rattle, Matthias Pintscher, Peter Eötvös, John Zorn, Fred Sherry, Erik Friedlander, Butch Morris, Muhal Richard Abrams, Isabel Mundry, Rafael Cendo, FLUX Quartet, Philippe Manoury, IRCAM, Morton Subotnick, Joan LaBarbara, et al.

World Premieres (chamber and solo works - select)



    - Georg-Friedrich Haas ...in progress... 

    - Muhal Richard Abrams Dialogue Social

 
    - Alex Temple Switch: A Science Fiction Micro-Opera for singing cellist,



      flute, violin, percussion



    - Anne LeBaron Breathtails for baritone, shakuhachi and string quartet (with FLUX)

    - Andreas Trobollowitsch jabuticabas (choreographic solo cello work)


    - Leah Asher Threads for solo cello; Leda for string quartet (graphic scores)


      Projects/Ensembles (select)


- The Rhythm Method - contemporary, virtuosic string quartet (recent/upcoming 
  performances at Austrian Cultural Forum NYC, Joe's Pub, mise-en music festival)



- Dead Language - collaboratively composing new music trio (residency at 
   
  Queensland Conservatorium, performances in NYC, Seattle, Brisbane)



- Forever House – avant-grunge chamber rock band (lead singer and cellist)


 
- ensemble mise-en – NYC-based contemporary chamber orchestra






From: Maria Luisa Martinez
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Un par de cosas antes del fin de semestre
Date: Sunday, May 10, 2015 3:04:06 PM

¡Hola Antoni!

¿Estarás en algún momento esta semana en GC para pasar a verte y darte una cosilla? Creo
recordar que vuelves a España pronto (¿esta semana?).

Imagino que estarás muy liado, pero quería preguntarte si podrías avalar por escrito mi
estancia en CUNY. También necesitaría un certificado o escrito que avale mi participación en
el congreso de Fandango (imagino que esto también se lo puedo pedir a Meira). Todos estos
documentos me sirven para completar mi Plan Anual de Actividades de Doctorado durante
este curso académico, que es una de esos incordios que se inventan para tenernos entretenidos.

Si ahora no te viene bien, puedo esperar a tu vuelta, aunque claro, ya estarás de vacaciones...
Bueno, dime cómo lo hacemos.

Un abrazo fuerte,

Maria Luisa Martínez Martínez
Spanish Government Teacher
United Nations International School - MLD Dpt.
24-50 FDR Drive, NY, NY 10010
mmartinez2@unis.org

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:mmartinez2@unis.org


From: Celia Novis
To: Bernat Puigtobella; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Una altra proposta per Núvol
Date: Friday, June 12, 2015 3:07:04 PM

Hola Bernat,

 

sóc la Celia Novis altre cop. T’escric aquesta vegada perquè la Foundation for Iberian
Music ha encarregat una obra al compositor Javier Arias per què l’estreni en
exclusiva a Nova York el proper 22 de juny.

 

Aquesta composició  la interpretarà el famós instrumentista Julián Elvira, primer
flautista de la Banda Simfònica Municipal de Música de Madrid. Aquesta obra és un
encàrrec de la Foundation, que, com ja sabeu, cada any demana a un músic de
renom una obra per ser estrenada a Nova York. Altres anys van ser noms de la talla
de Benet Casablancas, Albert Guinovart, Paquito D'Rivera, Tania Lleó i un llarg
etcètera. Apart, la Foundation està organitzant una gran celebració sobre el centenari
de Granados (2016) i una altra sobre Ramon Llull i la musica (2016), amb la voluntat
de donar més visibilitat i importància a la cultura catalanoparlant  als EEUU. 

 

Estic desenvolupant un article sobre aquesta estrena imminent a Nova York i seria
molt important si vosaltres oferissiu a la Foundation la possibilitat de publicar la
notícia a la vostra web especialitzada, com vàreu fer l’altre vegada amb La Capella
de Ministrers. Sens dubte, Núvol és un referent per nosaltres i per això tornem a picar
a la vostra porta.

 

Moltes gràcies per l'atenció i espero notícies teves.

Salutacions,

----

Celia Novis

Filmmaker, Scriptwriter and Journalist

www.somiantproductions.com
www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com

mailto:puigtobella@gmail.com
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.somiantproductions.com/
http://www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com/




From: Moisès Bertran
To: moises bertran
Subject: Una Fantasia per a Contrabaix
Date: Friday, June 19, 2015 11:14:09 AM

Benvolguts, vull compartir amb tots vosaltres el vídeo que el contrabaixista gallec Carlos
Méndez ha penjat a youtube de la seva interpretació de la meva obra "Una Fantasia per a
Contrabaix i Banda". 
 
https://www.youtube.com/user/carlosmendezCB

Solista: Carlos Méndez
Director: Juan Miguel Romero
Banda Municipal de Música de Santiago de Compostela

Teatro Principal. Santiago de Compostela, 26 d'abril de 2015

Una feina impecable!! La meva absoluta admiració!!!

Moisès Bertran

mailto:mbertran@hotmail.com
https://www.youtube.com/user/carlosmendezCB


From: Aurelia Pessarrodona
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: una pregunta
Date: Tuesday, February 17, 2015 6:57:39 AM

Benvolgut Antoni,

T’escric perquè la Marijose Ruiz Mayordomo i jo ens estem organitzant per anar al congrés
sobre el fandango a NY, però tenim problemes per escollir l’allotjament. Coneixes tu algun lloc
que sigui econòmic i, si pogués ser, a prop del lloc on es farà el congrés? Moltíssimes gràcies.
Salutacions i fins aviat,

Aurèlia

Enviat des de: Correu del Windows

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Douglas Riva
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Una pregunta
Date: Thursday, March 05, 2015 2:02:27 PM

Buenas,

No recuerdo si hemos establecido fechas concretas para el simposio o no.  A la gente de
Voices of Ascension les gustaría tener el concierto con Cant de les estrelles alrededor de las
mismas fechas. 

Avísame cuando puedas.

Un abrazo,

D

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Celia Novis
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: una proposta (per prioritzar)
Date: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 10:34:50 AM

Hola Toni,
estic mirant els llistats que m'has passat. M'has de dir sisplau quants articles vols que surtin en
total, per no posar-me a enviar molts emails i que després hi hagi 10 que vulguin un article
(per un dir). Em vares comentar que els 4 que ja he contactat (Ritmo, Mundo Clásico, Doce
Notas i Scherzo) són prioritaris. M'ajudaria molt que dels tres llistats em diguessis els que
t'interessen més, per prioritzar. Què et sembla si em sel·lecciones 4-5 que t'interessin molt dels
llistats per veure què ens diuen i si no contesten anem a per nous? 
Ja em diràs. Jo, ara per ara, començo a escriure l'article per Ritmo, ja que ens han confirmat
que el volen, vale? I quedo a l'espera que em diguis els 4 ó 5 més que vols que contacti dels
teus llistats i així fem el que tu mateix em vas dir ahir: prioritzar.
Ja em dius algo.
Moltes gràcies!
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
To: codalario@codalario.com
Subject: Una propuesta desde Nueva York para publicar
Date: Monday, June 15, 2015 5:31:27 PM

Buenas tardes,

 

soy Celia Novis, periodista y cineasta establecida en Nueva York. Les escribo por lo
siguiente: la Foundation for Iberian Music, asociada a The City University of New
York (CUNY) y dirigida por el mallorquín Antoni Pizà, lleva más de 20 años
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
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda, CODALARIO es un referente y estamos
convencidos de que la enorme comunidad hispanohablante de Nueva York (y de
EEUU en general) que aún no les conoce, sentirá interés por seguir a un medio de su
historia y calidad. Muchas gracias por la atención y espero noticias suyas.

 

Un cordial saludo,

 

Celia Novis

----

Celia Novis

Filmmaker, Scriptwriter and Journalist

mailto:codalario@codalario.com


www.somiantproductions.com
www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com

http://www.somiantproductions.com/
http://www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com/


From: Celia Novis
To: gloriacollado@docenotas.com; diaadia@docenotas.com
Subject: una propuesta desde Nueva York para publicar
Date: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 12:50:49 PM

Buenos días,

 

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
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda, DOCE NOTAS es un referente y estamos
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

mailto:gloriacollado@docenotas.com
mailto:diaadia@docenotas.com


www.somiantproductions.com
www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com
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From: Celia Novis
To: redaccion@sineris.es
Subject: una propuesta desde Nueva York que quizás les interese
Date: Monday, June 15, 2015 5:32:46 PM

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
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda, SÍNERIS es un referente y estamos
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

mailto:redaccion@sineris.es


www.somiantproductions.com
www.onvampyresandothersymptoms.com

http://www.somiantproductions.com/
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From: Celia Novis
To: mmorate@grupov.es; miguelmorate@audioclasica.com
Subject: una propuesta para publicar en AUDIO CLÁSICA
Date: Thursday, June 11, 2015 10:23:53 AM

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

 

En estos momentos son noticia porque el próximo 22 de junio estrenan en Nueva
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
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda, AUDIO CLÁSICA es un referente y
estamos convencidos de que la enorme comunidad hispanohablante de Nueva York
(y de EEUU en general) que aún no les conoce, sentirá interés por seguir a un medio
de su historia y calidad. Muchas gracias por la atención y espero noticias suyas.

 

Un cordial saludo,

 

Celia Novis

----

Celia Novis

Filmmaker, Scriptwriter and Journalist

mailto:mmorate@grupov.es
mailto:miguelmorate@audioclasica.com
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From: Celia Novis
To: redaccion@scherzo.es; luisunen@arrakis.es
Subject: una propuesta para publicar
Date: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 12:49:30 PM

Estimado Sr. Suñén,

 

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
noticia en su web especializada. Sin duda, SCHERZO es un referente y estamos
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

mailto:redaccion@scherzo.es
mailto:luisunen@arrakis.es
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From: Microsoft Exchange
To: johnjonasgruen@gmail.com.
Subject: Undeliverable: Carlos Surinach interview at NYPL
Date: Thursday, April 30, 2015 12:57:07 PM
Attachments: Carlos Surinach interview at NYPL.msg
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: unos pequeños cambios...use this version please!
Date: Sunday, March 15, 2015 5:09:56 PM
Attachments: preliminary program_3 plantilla 3.16.15.pdf

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
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INTRODUCTION 
Spaniards, Indians, Africans, and Gypsies:   


The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance 
 
 


I saw this dance from Cádiz, still famous after so many centuries for its voluptuous steps, 
which you can see danced even today in all neighborhoods and all houses in this city, 


with incredible applause from those attending: 
it is not celebrated only among Gypsies and other people of low caste, 


but also among honorable and well-born gentlewomen. 
— Manuel Martí Zaragoza, Deacon of Alicante, 17121 


 
In The Mestizo Mind: The Intellectual Dynamics of Colonization and Globalization, Serge Gruzinski notes “the difficulty we 
experience even ‘seeing’ mestizo phenomena, much less analyzing them.”2 The fandango emerged in the early eighteenth 
century as a popular dance and music craze across Spain and the Americas. While in parts of Latin America the term 
“fandango” came to refer to any festive social dance event, over the course of that century in both Spain and the Americas 
a broad family of interrelated fandango music and dance genres evolved that went on to constitute important parts of 
regional expressive culture. This fandango family comprised genres as diverse as the Cuban peasant punto, the salon and 
concert fandangos of Mozart and Scarlatti, and—last but not least—the Andalusian fandango subgenres that became core 
components of flamenco. The fandango world itself became a conduit for the creative interaction and syncretism of music, 
dance, and people of diverse Spanish, Afro-Latin, Gitano, and perhaps even Amerindian origin. As such, the fandango 
family evolved as a quintessential mestizaje, a mélange of people, imagery, music and dance from the Americas, Europe, 
and Africa.3 Emerging from the maelstrom of the Atlantic slave trade with its cataclysmic remaking of the Western world, 
the fandango in its diverse but often interrelated forms was nurtured in the ports of Cádiz, Veracruz, Sao Paolo and 
Havana, and went on to proliferate throughout Old and New Worlds.  Widely dispersed in terms of geography, class, and 
cultural reference, the fandango’s many faces reflect a diversity of exchange across what was once the Spanish Empire. 
 


This conference proposes to bring these cousins together, and to wonder how one form can shed light on another. 
Born in transit between the Americas and the Iberian Peninsula, the fandango was swept along by industrialization and 
the growth of cities, the birth of capitalism, and the great emancipatory processes that would lead, over the course of the 
eighteenth and nineteenth centuries, to independence in the Americas. From the celebrations of humble folk to the salons 
and theaters of the European elite, the fandango multiplied. With boisterous castanets, strumming strings and dexterous 
footwork, flirtatious sensuality and piquant attitudes, the costume of peasants and Gypsies done in elegant fabrics for 
Spanish aristocrats, the fandango absorbed dance and music ideas of “Gypsies and other people of low caste” into the 
heart of Spain’s national identity. The period of its greatest popularity, from approximately the mid-eighteenth to the 
early-nineteenth century, straddles the tipping point of the Spanish colonial enterprise from ascent into decline. With 
Gluck’s Don Juan (1761), Mozart's The Marriage of Figaro (1786), Rossini's The Barber of Seville (1816), and Petipa’s Don 
Quixote (1869), the narrative of Spain as represented by the reviled conquistadores, Torquemada’s Inquisition, and Jesuit 
missionaries (the “dogs of God”), was replaced with the image of Spain as a land of festive bandits and swarthy, 
gleaming-eyed Gypsies.  


 
As the emblem of majismo, an aristocratic fashion for imitating the underclass, the fandango, emerging in the 


Americas among enslaved Africans and decimated indigenous peoples, was embraced and absorbed by Spaniards who 
raised this dance of the Indies in resistance to the minuets of the French. With its empire crumbling, Spain, once the 


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
1 Aurelio Capmany, “El baile y la danza.” In Francesch Carreras y Candi, Folklore y costumbres de Espan ̃a: II (Barcelona: Casa Editorial Alberto Martín, 
1931), 248. 
2 Serge Gruzinski, The Mestizo Mind: The Intellectual Dynamics of Colonization and Globalization (N.Y.: Routledge, 2002), 2. 
3 José Antonio Robles Cahero, “Un paseo por la música y el baile populares de la Nueva España” (Hemispheric Institute Web Cuadernos, March 6, 
2010), http://www.hemisphericinstitute.org/cuaderno/censura/html/danza/danza.htm (accessed February 13, 2014).	
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colonizer, was now the object of the colonizing gaze—as Dumas is reputed to have said, “Africa begins at the Pyrenees.” 
In the ultimate reversal, the fandango was a symbol of freedom of movement and of expression, a danced opposition to 
the academic conscriptions and modes of the Spanish court. 


 
The process of creolization took place on both sides of the Atlantic, and it took place through surprising alliances, 


such as the black and white slaves—fandangueros—of Cádiz in 1464, or the Gypsies whom Swinburne described in 1776 
dancing a variant of the fandango, the Mandingoy—recalling not only the Mandinka people of West Africa, but also a 
runaway slave community in 18th-century Mexico.4 In each universe where the fandango took root, it developed 
differently, as classical music, flamenco, son jarocho, joropo, punto…  


 
What is the full array of the fandango? How has the fandango participated in the elaboration of various national 


identities; that is, what are the politics of representation of the various fandangos? How do the fandangos of the 
Enlightenment shed light on musical populism and folkloric nationalism as armaments in the revolutionary struggles for 
independence in the 18th and 19th centuries? What are some of the shared formal features—musical, choreographic, or 
lyric—that can be discerned in the diverse constituents of the fandango family in Spain and the Americas? How does our 
recognition of these features enhance our understanding of historical connections between these places? How does the 
fandango manifest the recurrent reflections, cultural assimilations, appropriations, elisions, accommodations and 
rejections of the postcolonial Latin world? What are the political economies of fandango performances—how do local, 
cross-class, and transnational transactions activate the process of mestizaje? Can we track the great flows, effusions, 
migrations, and transformations of culture through a close examination of the local and specific histories of the fandango? 
How do fandango music and dance embody memory? How do they collapse past and present, creating performances that 
simultaneously echo the magical or sacred practices of their ancestors and appeal to a commercial audience? How may 
we read, as Terence Cave has described, the performance of mestizaje and the negotiations of hegemonic gender codes in 
intermediate forms like the minuet afandangado, or a fandango on eggs?5 What is the genealogy of the fandango’s stringed 
instruments, instrumental and vocal techniques, rhythm, verse, melodic structures, and improvisational syntax? What 
does the movimiento jaranero in Chicano communities across the U.S. as well as in Mexico have to do with the process of 
decolonialization?  


Many questions, and here begins the conversation… 


K. Meira Goldberg & Antoni Pizà 
Organizing Committee  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
4 José Luis Navarro García, Semillas de ébano: el elemento negro y afroamericano en el baile flamenco (Sevilla: Portada Editorial, S.L., 1998), 59, 199, citing 
Municipal Archives of Jerez de la Frontera, September 14, 1464, folio 118; Henry Swinburne, Travels through Spain, in the Years 1775 and 1776 (Dublin: 
Printed for S. Price, R. Cross, J. Williams [and 8 others], 1779), 353–54; Patrick J. Carroll, “Mandinga: The Evolution of a Mexican Runaway Slave 
Community, 1735–1827,” Comparative Studies in Society and History, vol. 19, no. 4 (1977): 488–505. 
5 Terence Cave, Mignon's Afterlives: Crossing Cultures from Goethe to the Twenty-First Century (Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2011). 
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PROGRAM 


Friday, April 17, 2015 9:30 am – 7pm 
 


9:30 – 10:00  Welcome Breakfast at Segal Theater, Ground Floor 
 
 


CUNY GC Segal Theater   10:00 – 11:30  CUNY GC Room 9204 10:00 – 12:00 
Embodied Memory and Sonic Spectre: Tracing Rhythm,  
Gesture, Syntax, Melody, and Verse 


 The “Emancipation of Music:”6 19th & 20th Century 
Fandango, Flamenco Formation, and National Identity  


Chair: Antoni Pizà  Chair: Estela Zatania 
 
“The Fandango in Mozart’s The Marriage of Figaro: The Prism 
of Revolution in the Enlightenment.” Craig Russell, 
California Polytechnic State University 


  
“The physical forms and cloaked politics of flamenco 
fandangos.” Estela Zatania, Deflamenco.com 


 “‘When Fandango Hits the Border, When Music Comes to 
Town’: Mobilizing Music, Participatory Cultures, and 
Translocational Community-Building in the 21st century.” 
Wilfried Raussert, Bielefeld University, Center for 
InterAmerican Studies 
 


  “Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish fandango: Binary 
and Ternary Rhythms.” Guillermo Castro Buendia, 
Centro de Investigación Flamenco Telethusa 
 


“Fandango in the Franco Era: the Politics of Classification.” 
Theresa Goldbach, University of California, Riverside 
  


 “The Fandango in Nineteenth Century Flamenco: The 
Untold Story.” 
José Miguel Hernández Jaramillo, Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México 


  “Musical Relationships Between Spanish Malagueñas 
and Fandangos in the Nineteenth Century.” Lénica 
Reyes Zúñiga, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de 
México 


	
  


	
   	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
6 Antonio García de León Griego, El mar de los deseos: el Caribe hispano musical: historia y contrapunto (Mexico:  Siglo XXI, 2002).	
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CUNY GC Segal Theater 11:30 – 1:00  CUNY GC Room 9204 12:00 – 1:00 
18th & 19th Century Fandango Globalization: The Ida y 
Vuelta of the Black Atlantic7 


 Fandangos in the Age of Enlightenment 


Chair: Peter Manuel  Chair: Nancy Heller 
   
“The Fandango as a Family of Musical Forms in the Afro-
Hispanic Atlantic.” Peter Manuel, CUNY Graduate Center 
  
“The Fandango as an Example of the Circulation of 
Culture between Mexico and the Caribbean.” Ricardo 
Pérez Montfort, Centro de Investigaciones y Estudios 
Superiores en Antropología Social – CIESAS 
 


 “Spanish and Hispanic American Depictions of Dancing in 
El velorio del angelito.” Nancy G. Heller, University of the 
Arts (Philadelphia, PA) 
 
“Luigi Boccherini’s ‘afandangado’ quintets: sound, form 
and plot.” Matteo Giuggioli, Zurich University Institute of 
Musicology 
 


“The Fandangos of Southern Spain in the Context of other 
Spanish and American Fandangos.” Miguel Ángel 
Berlanga, Universidad de Granada 
 


  


 
 


1:00 – 2:00  Lunch Break 
 


  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
7 Paul Gilroy, The Black Atlantic: Modernity and Double Consciousness (Cambridge, MA:  Harvard, 1993). 
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2:00 – 3:00  Segal Theater 


 


Keynote Address  


 


Tonadilla and Fandango: How a Genre and a Practice Intersect and Diverge 
By 


Elisabeth Le Guin, University of California, Los Angeles 
 


 
Photo: Lindsay Johnson 


 
 
Elisabeth Le Guin is a performer and musicologist whose dual allegiances manifest as a series of 
dialogues, in tones and words, between theory and practice. As a Baroque cellist, she was a founding 
member of Philharmonia Baroque Orchestra and the Artaria String Quartet, and appeared in over 40 
recordings; she continues in this capacity, while aspiring ever more earnestly to the condition of an 
amateur. In more recent years she has become involved in the movimiento jaranero, a transnational 
grassroots musical activism in Mexico and Mexican immigrant communities in the USA. 
 
As an academic, Professor Le Guin has published two books with the University of California Press: 
Boccherini's Body: an Essay in Carnal Musicology, in 2006, and The Tonadilla in Performance: Lyric Comedy in 
Enlightenment Spain, in 2014. In this capacity, she received the American Musicological Society’s Alfred 
Einstein and Noah Greenberg Awards, as well as grant support from various national and international 
organizations including the ACLS, The UC Presidents’ Research Fund, the Institute for International 
Education (Fulbright program), UCLA's International Institute, the Program for Cultural Cooperation 
between Spain and United States Universities, and the UC Humanities Research Institute. Le Guin has 
taught at UCLA since 1997, with a particular focus on undergraduate advising, the teaching of writing, 
international education, and the integration of performance with scholarship. She succeeded in re-starting 
UCLA´s Early Music Ensemble in 2009 after a 15-year hiatus, and has served two terms as Study Center 
Director for the UC Education Abroad Program in Mexico City. Dr. Le Guin’s abstract is on page 17.  
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CUNY GC Segal Theater 3:00 – 4:30  CUNY GC Room 9204 3:00 – 4:30 
Fandango on the European Stage – Critical Reception 
and Choreographic Adaptations 


 Movimiento Jaranero and “Cosmopolitics”8 


Chair: Lou Charnon-Deutsch  Chair: Michelle Habell-Pallán 
“’Like Salamanders in a Flame’ The Early European 
Love Affair with the Fandango.” Lou Charnon-Deutsch, 
Stony Brook University 
 


 “Women Who Rock the Fandango: Lessons in 
Convivencia.” Michelle Habell-Pallán, UW Libraries 
Women Who Rock Oral History Archives University 
of Washington, and Iris Viveros, Gender, Women, & 
Sexuality Studies, University of Washington. 
 


“The Fandango in 19th Century Theory and on European 
Stages: Henri Justamant’s Les Conscrits Espagnols.” 
Claudia Jeschke, University of Salzburg; Derra de 
Moroda Dance Archives at the University of Salzburg 
 


 “Sonic (Trans)Migration: Rhythmic Intention in 
Zapateado.” Martha Gonzalez, Scripps College  
 


«Ceci n’est pas un fandango.» Michael Malkiewicz, 
Mozarteum University Salzburg 
 


 “Yo no soy marinero, soy capitán: Contemporary 
sociopolitical uses of fandango and son jarocho.” Rafael 
Figueroa Hernández, Universidad Veracruzana, 
comosuena.com 
 
 
 


   


 
4:30 – 4:45  Coffee Break 


 
CUNY GC Segal Theater 4:45 – 6:00  CUNY GC Room 9204 4:45 – 5:30 
Diasporic (Re)Cycling – Cultural Flow, Transmission, 
and Reconception 


 The Abanico of Fandango: Throughout The Americas 
 


Chair: Walter Clark  Chair: Nancy G. Heller 
 
“An Introduction to Popular Spanish Music in the 19th 
Century USA.” Kiko Mora, Universidad de Alicante 


  
“Brazilian Fandango: traditionalism, identity and 
policies of cultural heritage.”Allan de Paula Oliveira, 
West Parana State University (UNIOESTE) 


“The Malagueñas of Breva, Albéniz, and Lecuona:  
From Regional Fandango to Global Pop Tune. Walter 
Clark, University of California, Riverside 
 


  
“Mitote, Fandango y Mariacheros.” Álvaro Ochoa 
Serrano, El Colegio de Michoacán 


“The Revels of a Young Republic: Revolutionary 
Possibilities of the Fandango in Timothy Flint’s 1826 
Francis Berrian.” Paul D. Naish, Guttman Community 
College, CUNY 


  
 
 


	
  


	
   	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
8 “‘When Fandango Hits the Border, When Music Comes to Town’: Mobilizing Music, Participatory Cultures, and Translocational Community-Building 
in the 21st century.” Wilfried Raussert, Bielefeld University, Center for InterAmerican Studies. 
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CUNY GC Segal 
Theater 


6:00 – 7:00  CUNY GC Room 
9204 


5:30 – 7:00 


 
The Elevation of the Folk – Fandango on the Concert 
Stage 


  
Border Crossings: Fandango as Emblem of 
Transnational, Postcolonial Identity 


Chair: Brook Zern  Chair: Bruno Bartra 
 
A Talk Illustrated at the Piano: Enrique Granados' 
Fandango del Candil and Manuel de Falla's Danza de la 
Molinera. Adam Kent (piano), Brooklyn College  
 


  
“The Fandango as a Space of Resistance, Creativity, and 
Liberty.” Nubia Flórez Forero, Universidad Del 
Atlántico - (Avalado), CEDINEP 
 


A Talk Illustrated by Dance: The Use of Castanets in 
The Fandango of Doña Francisquita, by Amadeu Vives, 
choreography by José Molina. Gabriela Granados 
(dance), American Bolero Dance Company, Adam 
Kent (piano), Brooklyn College  
 


 “Vaivenes, del Cuerpo al Verso: On the Expressive and 
Political Anatomy of the New Years Eve Topada in 
Xichú, Guanajuato.” Alex E. Chávez, University of 
Notre Dame  
 


A Talk Illustrated at the Piano: Musical Aspects of the 
Colombian and Venezuelan Joropo. Claudia Calderón 
Sáenz (piano), pianollanero.com; Fundación Editorial 
Arpamérica 
 


 “Son Jarocho in New York: Jarana and Fandango as 
Symbols of a New Mexican identity.” Bruno Bartra, The 
Graduate Center, CUNY 
 


	
  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


7:00 – 9:00 GRAN FANDANGO, WITH RADIO JAROCHO 
SEGAL THEATER 
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PROGRAM 
Saturday, April 18, 2015 10:00 am – 3:30pm 


 
10:00 – 11:15  Fandango as a Prism of Enlightenment9 
Chair: K. Meira Goldberg 


“Changing Places: Toward the Reconstruction of an Eighteenth Century Danced Fandango.” Thomas Baird, Historical 
Dance Specialist, K. Meira Goldberg, Visiting Research Scholar, Foundation for Iberian Music, Paul Jared Newman, 
guitarist, and Elisabet Torras Aguilera, dancer 
 
“Choreological Gestures in Iberian Music of the Second Half of the Eighteenth Century: a Proposal for Historically 
Informed Interpretation of the Fandango.” María José Ruiz Mayordomo, Universidad Rey Juan Carlos / Compañía de 
Danza “Esquivel”; Aurèlia Pessarrodona, Università degli Studi di Bologna 
 
“Emergence and Transformations of the Fandango.”Alan Jones, Independent Scholar 


11:15 – 11:30 Mutis: Sonia Olla, Ismael de la Rosa Fernández, & Rafael Brun - Flamenco Fandangos 


11:30 – 1:30 Fandango as Praxis 
Chair: Raquel Paraíso 


“Frozen Footwork: Folklórico Falters Following Fandangos Footsteps.” Erica Ocegueda, Arizona State University 


“Envisioning the Nation through Dance: The Teaching and Performance of the Jarabe Tapatío in 1920s and 1930s Mexico 
within the Educational System.” Gabriela Mendoza García, Independent Scholar 
 
“Re-contextualizing Traditions and the Construction of Social Identities through Music and Dance: un fandango en 
Huetamo, Michoacán.” Raquel Paraíso, Independent Scholar 
 
“The Fandango as Fiesta and the Fandango within the Fiesta: Tarima, Cante and Dance.” Jessica Gottfried, Instituto 
Veracruzano de la Cultura / Universidad Veracruzana Intercultural 
 
“The Fandango as Improvised Music and Poetry: the Trovo of Alpujarra.” Reynaldo Fernández Manzano, Centro de 
Documentación Musical de Andalucía, Asociación Española de Documentación Musical (AEDOM) 
 


1:30 – 2:15  Light Lunch Break/ Tente en Pie 


2:15 – 3:45 Cosmopolitics II: Fandango as Resistance and Rebeldía in Contemporary Flamenco 
Chair: Tony Dumas 


“Fandangos de Huelva: Voices of Women.” Loren Chuse, Independent Scholar 


“Fandango and the Rhetoric of Resistance in Flamenco.” Tony Dumas, SUNY Brockport  


“El Fandango en Málaga: Del Cante Bailado Al Cante Desgarrado.” Ramón Soler Díaz, ethnomusicologist 


“Cante Libre is not free – contrasting approaches to fandangos personales.” John Moore, University of California, San Diego 


4:00 – 5:00 Fin de Fiesta/ Mojiganga – Film Screening 


Flamenco de Raíz. Válgame Dios que alegría tiene esta gente, que fatigas tengo yo (una historia crítica y social del flamenco): Álvarez 
 A documentary by Vicente Pérez Herrero, of Tiempos Difíciles Films. Álvarez is a cantaor and street sweeper from Málaga. 
An outstanding interpreter of fandangos, a friend of Camarón and other flamenco greats, Álvarez is not known by the 
general public but known among flamenco cognoscenti as an artist among artists, a source for knowledge and inspiration. 
Suggested donation: $10. 


  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
9 “The Fandango in Mozart’s The Marriage of Figaro: The Prism of Revolution in the Enlightenment.”  Craig Russell, California Polytechnic State 
University  
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ABSTRACTS 
 


THOMAS BAIRD (Historical Dance Specialist), 
K. MEIRA GOLDBERG (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), PAUL JARED NEWMAN (guitar), and 
Elisabet Torras Aguilera (dance), “Changing 
Places: Toward the Reconstruction of an 
Eighteenth Century Danced Fandango.” 
 
The fandango, as a dance craze adopted by the 
aristocracy of 18th century Spain and propagated in elite 
concert halls and salons, derived from the communal 
celebrations of the lowest rungs of Spanish and Spanish-
American society. Indeed, as Craig Russell describes, the 
fandango’s widespread popularity is inextricably linked 
to the great social, economic, and cultural shifts of the 
Enlightenment, with its elevation and representation of 
the popular. Yet the popular fandangos, interpreted in 
aristocratic settings and recorded in the cifras of court 
musicians, dance treatises, libretti of ballets, operas, and 
tonadillas, as by elite observers and foreign tourists, have 
themselves been lost to time. Therefore, we endeavor to 
engage with the question that Alan Jones poses: is it 
possible to reconstruct a fandango from an 18th century 
Spanish ball? What can primary sources tell us about the 
movement vocabulary, the choreography, and the 
rhythms of the fandango? Beyond that, how can we 
kinesthetically grasp the supposed lasciviousness that, 
along with the fandango’s representation of the popular, 
universally characterizes this dance? In this research, 
Thomas Baird and K. Meira Goldberg move toward the 
18th century from opposite directions: Thomas, as an 
historic dance specialist steeped in the ethos of the 
courtly style, Meira, as a flamenco dancer and historian 
grounded in the world of the popular, Jared, performer 
and scholar of both Baroque and flamenco guitar, 
Elisabet, trained in the Escuela Bolera. We seek here to 
explore and catalog the insights, intuitions, questions, 
and possibilities gleaned from our dialogue with the 
sources and with each other.  
 
BRUNO BARTRA (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), “Son Jarocho in New York: Jarana 
and Fandango as Symbols of a New Mexican 
identity.” 
 
In the past decade, a New York-based music scene 
surrounding son jarocho music from the Mexican State of 
Veracruz has started to develop. It is linked to a middle 
class diaspora of Mexican professional musicians who 
perform and teach, in concert with impresarios whose 


upscale restaurants in Manhattan and Brooklyn provide 
performance venues for these artists. Bands like Radio 
Jarocho and Jarana Beat lead a scene that has a two-fold 
agenda. On one hand, the bands perform a fusion of the 
genre with rock, but, on the other hand, they always 
play an acoustic segment in which they try to organize a 
traditional "fandango" (a traditional dance-party), 
having the "jarana" guitar and the dancing "tarima" as 
central elements of identity and authenticity. Integrating 
musicians from all-over Latin America, this community, 
in contrast to the traditional working class migrant 
Mexicans, is trying to find a niche within the New York 
world music community, in an attempt to construct an 
alternative Mexican-American, a “friendly” and 
professionalized Other.  
 
MIGUEL ÁNGEL BERLANGA (Universidad de 
Granada), “The Fandangos of Southern Spain 
in the Context of other Spanish and American 
Fandangos.”  
 
Some years ago, historical and (ethno)musicological 
research documented the great number of musical 
phenomena denoted by the word “fandango.” But from 
the conceptual and musical point of view there yet 
remain some unanswered questions. Is it useful to 
propose a general definition of the fandango that would 
include all the musical phenomena known by this 
denomination? I propose here to demonstrate that it is 
indeed useful to propose a universal meaning for the 
word “fandango.” (Or, at least, as universal as possible.) 
For this definition to be valid, we must assume that it 
should include in a convincing way all of the diverse 
meanings of this word, in the present as well as in the 
past. In this regard, from a strictly formal point of view, 
the most characteristic features of the fandango music of 
southern Spain are compared with those of other 
fandangos from both sides of the Atlantic.  
 
CLAUDIA CALDERÓN SÁENZ (Fundación 
Editorial Arpamérica), “Musical Aspects of 
the Colombian and Venezuelan Joropo.”  
 
The word Joropo encompasses a Colombian and 
Venezuelan tradition that includes village fiestas, poetry, 
singing, music, and dance in a form of popular 
expression that is constantly evolving. Improvised 
creativity flourishes within existing structures and 
defined patterns of style. Joropo’s origins date from 
Iberian music of the 17th and 18th centuries, such as the 
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many fandangos, folías, peteneras, jotas and Andalusian 
malagueñas. These roots were flavored with the 
influence of eight centuries of Arabic occupation, and 
then transformed in America by the mixing of African 
and indigenous elements under the burning sun of the 
Orinoco Basin, and the infinite largeness of its horizons 
and savannas. Joropo’s roots include the music of sailors 
and troubadors who arrived in Spanish galleons, taking 
root in Caribbean and South American soil and 
developing into a powerful and vigorous tradition. Over 
time, joropo even became a symbol of national identity 
in Venezuela, and in eastern Colombia. There are three 
regional styles of joropo defined by instrumental and 
stylistic differences: eastern joropo and central joropo in 
Venezuela and the llanero joropo, from the plains along 
the Orinoco River, which is found in both countries and 
is very popular, due to its many recordings, extensive 
radio airplay and an abundance of festivals and 
competitions. 
 
GUILLERMO CASTRO BUENDIA (Centro de 
Investigación Flamenco Telethusa), 
“Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish 
Fandango: Binary and Ternary rhythms.”   
 
In Spain, the fandango has a polyrhythmic character. On 
one hand is the binary rhythmic pattern of the singer 
(6/8, similar to Jota), and on the other hand is the 
musical accompaniment in ternary rhythm (3/4). These 
rhythms merge to create one of the most unique styles of 
Spanish popular music. In fandangos published in Spain 
from the early-18th century to the late-19th century, we 
can detect an evolution in the accompaniment that, upon 
close analysis, allows us to better understand the nature 
of this musical genre. In this presentation, I focus on the 
the polyrhythmic nature of fandangos, which has led to 
a number of musicians to write it sometimes in binary 
meter and other times in ternary meter. 
 
LOU CHARNON-DEUTSCH (SUNY Stony 
Brook), “’Like Salamanders in a Flame’: The 
Early European Love Affair with the 
Fandango.”  
 
This talk examines European travelers’ evolving 
perception of the fandango from the early 18th century to 
the end of the 19th century. Early travelers deemed 
Spain’s greatest attraction to be its Moorish past, 
lamenting the decay and backwardness of the 
present.  Mostly they condemned the “lasciviousness” of 
the fandango, but beginning in the late 18th century and 
especially 19th century male travelers became enthusiasts 
of the dance that they compared with the Cadiz dances 
in the first century.  Towards the end of the 19th century 


French travelers especially became enamoured of the 
sensuousness of fandango dancers. In 1889 Spain sent a 
group of dancers to the Universal Exposition in 
Paris.  Writer Catulle Mendès, waxing poetic about the 
excitement produced by “exotic” human displays at the 
Exposition dancing the fandango, said their movements 
were “like salamanders in a flame.” 
 
ALEX E. CHÁVEZ (University of Notre Dame), 
“Vaivenes, del Cuerpo al Verso: On the 
Expressive and Political Anatomy of the New 
Years Eve Topada in Xichú, Guanajuato.”  
 
This paper discusses the little-known Mexican music of 
huapango arribeño, with attention to its topada 
performance in Xichú, Guanajuato. There, two 
ensembles engage in both poetic dueling and musical 
flyting (performative dueling) in the town central plaza 
from dusk until dawn while thousands of spectators 
ring in the New Year. The highly public and 
impermanent expenditure and excess at play, it is 
argued, animate stories and desires of movement and 
connection that grow sharply political in relation to the 
transnational political economies in which many of the 
participants are positioned. In pursuit of this claim, this 
paper details the multi-voiced poetic and musical 
grammar of the topada space of vernacular performance. 
 
LOREN CHUSE (Independent Scholar), 
“Fandangos de Huelva: Voices of Women.”  
 
The many genres of fandango for which Huelva is well 
known, from the regional forms such as Fandangos de 
Alosno to fandangos naturales or personales, have been 
created and performed by women singers since the early 
twentieth century. Well-known letras, (lyrics) of 
fandangos by earlier singers María “La Conejilla” and 
“La Juana María de Felipe Julián,” both from Alosno, 
continue to be performed by singers today. Renowned 
singer Carmen Linares and local cantaor Plácido 
González, from Huelva, have both recorded the cante of 
María Conejilla.  Tina Pavón, a cantaora from Huelva, 
has also specialized in fandangos. Tina Pavón was a co-
founder of the Peña Flamenca Feminina de Huelva, 
which has become known for its performance and 
recordings of fandangos of a number of regional genres. 
María José Matos, one of the pioneers of a growing 
group of women flamenco guitarists, learned to play 
guitar at the Peña Flamenca Feminina and was the 
original accompanist for the performing group of the 
peña. Younger women singers today are carrying on this 
tradition. Singer Argentina, also from Huelva, has made 
a name for herself in recent years, as a featured singer at 
the Noche Blanca de Flamenco in Córdoba in 2013. 
Another younger singer, Rocio Marquéz, has received 
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much attention over the past few years for both her 
interpretations of fandangos de Huelva as well as her 
masterful command of the Cante de las Minas. This 
paper will present the work of these women singers 
within the context of the genre as a whole. Based on 
interview material, recordings and media sources, I will 
discuss the important participation of these women 
singers and guitarists in creating, maintaining and 
innovating the tradition. 
 
WALTER CLARK (University of California, 
Riverside), “The Malagueñas of Breva, 
Albéniz, and Lecuona:  From Regional 
Fandango to Global Pop Tune.”  
 
The “Malagueña” immortalized in renditions by Roy 
Clark, Liberace, and the Boston Pops was the creation of 
Cuban composer Ernesto Lecuona.  And yet, as even 
flamenco purist Donn E. Pohren conceded, Lecuona’s 
work conveys much of the essence of the folkloric 
malagueña, a regional variant of the fandango first 
popularized by Juan Breva in the late 1800s and 
immortalized in the classical canon by Isaac Albéniz.  It 
is clear that Lecuona was familiar with and influenced 
by Albéniz’s pianistic malagueñas, and his Suite 
Andalucía, in which the famous “Malagueña” appears, 
owes an obvious debt to Albéniz’s very similar 
collections of songs and dances.  This paper explores the 
history of the malagueña from Breva to Lecuona, then 
examines its impact in the realm of global popular 
culture, in which its basic musical ingredients form a 
sort of “museme” that has “gone viral” in representing 
Spain and Spanish culture. 
 
TONY DUMAS (SUNY Brockport), “Fandango 
and the Rhetoric of Resistance in Flamenco.”  
 
On June 25, 2014, three flamenco singers interrupted 
proceedings of the Spanish Parliament in Andalusia. 
Representing the guerrilla protest group Flo6x8, their 
goal was to draw attention to a ballooning two-thirds 
unemployment rate, oppressive austerity politics, 
governmental corruption, and a drastic rise in 
corporatocracy. Their vehicle of protest: the 
fandango. This paper examines the role of the fandango 
as a voice of resistance and protest within flamenco—a 
genre that has been historically stifled, surveilled, and 
censored since its inception. Several scholars consider 
flamenco’s political sentiment to be too “invisible,” 
subtle, or personal to qualify as protest music. Although 
this certainly characterizes much of flamenco’s 
repertoire, I respectfully contend that an ambivalence 
toward capitalism and sentiments of protest and dissent 
form the core of flamenco’s ethos. Working from R. 
Serge Denisoff’s model of protest music, I hope to show 


that flamenco does indeed encourage activism (magnetic 
protest) and that it identifies the marginalizing social 
conditions of Andalusia’s working-and-underclass 
(rhetorical protest). As such, I suggest that flamenco 
exemplifies a broader range of protest music; a protest 
music that demands attention and empathy and that can 
even transcend cultural borders. In the words of a 
Flo6x8 dancer, “flamenco captures perfectly how we feel 
about the crisis. You can use it to express desperation, 
rage, pain, and the desire to change things.” 
 
REYNALDO FERNÁNDEZ MANZANO (Centro de 
Documentación Musical de Andalucía, 
Asociación Española de Documentación 
Musical [AEDOM]), “The Trovo of Alpujarra: 
The Fandango as Improvised Sung Poetry.”  
 
The fandango has been a widely established popular 
music and dance throughout Latin America and Spain, 
and has been present in classical music from the 
eighteenth century onward. Its development has 
constituted one of the most distinguished branches and 
forms of flamenco, and has become an identifying sign 
of the Spanish world for Romantic tourists and later 
composers. The Trovo of Alpujarra constitutes one of the 
principal forms of the region of the provinces of Almería 
and Granada, linked to the verdiales of the hills of 
Málaga and other manifestations. With a poetic base of 
quintillas (five-line stanzas) and musical accompaniment 
of violin, guitar, and castanets, to which may be added 
the bandurria and the lute, a tournament upon a theme 
chosen by the audience, where one defends and another 
attacks, is improvised. 
 
RAFAEL FIGUEROA-HERNÁNDEZ (Centro de 
Estudios de la Cultura y la Comunicación de 
la Universidad Veracruzana), “Yo no soy 
marinero, soy capitán: Contemporary 
Sociopolitical Uses of Fandango and Son 
Jarocho.”  
 
The popular fiesta known as fandango, with roots in the 
intercommunication of Latin America and Spain during 
the three hundred years of the colonial period, has 
become, since the last quarter of the twentieth century, a 
very powerful tool for the creation of a transnational and 
transcultural social movement known as movimiento 
jaranero, that has transcended its natural region in 
southern México and gained followers in practically 
every major city in México, important Hispanic 
communities in the United States and modest, but 
significant, enclaves in Europe. Following the traditional 
musical and lyrical rules of son jarocho, an increasingly 
large group of people has been using the fandango as a 
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way to participate in social protest in various ways: a) by 
creating and/or maintaining identity among subaltern 
groups, b) by spreading social and political ideas 
through lyrics based on traditional forms and c) by 
directly participating on rallies and demonstrations, 
among others. 
 
NUBIA FLÓREZ FORERO (Universidad Del 
Atlántico [Colombia], Grupo de Investigación 
CEDINEP), “The Fandango as a Space of 
Resistance, Creation and Freedom.”  
 
This contribution aims to show how a cultural matrix of 
musical, danced, and festive elements was constructed 
all around the Fandango, a result of cultural exchange 
instigated by the encounters of the different cultures in 
America: natives, the cultures of enslaved Africans, and 
those of the Spanish and European conquerors. The 
Fandango as a matrix generates many musical and 
danced rhythms throughout the Americas. The dance 
forms, music, and the festivity usually share the same 
name in every region where they are present. In the 
particular case of the Colombian Caribbean, these round 
spaces of men and women that sing, dance and play 
percussion instruments (drums, preferably) are also 
called “Tamboras” (drums) or “Bailes cantados” (sung 
dances), among other names. In the USA we find the so-
called “Ring Shouts,” which are very similar to the 
Fandangos, Tamboras, and sung dances, although there 
is an absence of drums. My intent is to show how the 
following factors were involved in this cultural matrix: 
1) the discovery and conquest of America and the 
resulting cultural exchange; 2) slavery and intensive 
commerce of slaves brought from Africa to the American 
colonies; 3) the evangelization of the colonies that 
involved both native cultures and enslaved cultures. 
Finally, I want to posit the hypothesis that the Fandango 
as an expression of popular culture works as a 
laboratory for cultural exchange and that it emerges 
from cultural syncretism generated as resistance devices 
against religious domination. Thus, it is present during 
religious festivities of the colonizers. The cultural matrix 
of the Fandango is seen here as an anthropological space 
of freedom amidst the slavery and subjugation of the 
cultures that inhabited America. 
 
MATTEO GIUGGIOLI (Zurich University 
Institute of Musicology), “Luigi Boccherini’s 
‘afandangado’ Quintets: Sound, Form and 
Plot.”  
 
In a previous article I have shown in which way and 
how deeply the fandango, as topos, may affect the 
chamber music of Boccherini. Based on the analysis of 


the Quintet in C minor, Op. 10, n. 3 (G 267), that article 
doesn't suggest any definitive interpretation, but it 
presents an open ending, because of the need, in my 
opinion, of analyzing this phenomenon through a larger 
number of compositions by Boccherini in order to 
understand its wide range. In this paper I would like to 
start identifying traces of the fandango in a group of 
chamber works by Boccherini. My aims are essentially 
twofold. The first is to observe how the features of the 
fandango merge in the style of the composer, 
contributing to define an original sound experience in 
the context of European instrumental music of the 
second half of the 18th century. The second aim is to 
observe how the fandango affects the musical form and 
how Boccherini puts it into action with other topoi 
creating plots rich with cultural implications. 
 
THERESA GOLDBACH (University of California, 
Riverside), “Fandango in the Franco Era: the 
Politics of Classification.”  
 
The fandangos occupied a precarious position in the 
pantheon of flamenco rhythms during the Franco 
dictatorship. Flamenco was transitioning from the 
theatrical flamenco and ópera flamenca era, of which the 
fandangos and fandanguillos were seen as symbols for 
many purists. The era referred to as nacionalflamenquismo 
began as ópera flamenca ended and an authoritarian 
dictatorship brought its love of categories and 
classification. A renewed government tourism campaign 
searched for nationalist forms and local arts to sponsor. 
I will examine the trajectory of the fandango through the 
government sponsored “Festivales de España” 
campaign in the fifties and sixties. I will analyze how its 
roots as folk rhythm and flamenco palo provided a 
bridge between the franquista use of Andalusian imagery 
for tourist purposes and the orthodoxy of flamenco 
purists like Antonio Mairena. I will also consider the 
importance of fandango specialists like Paco Toronjo in 
assuring its survival as part of the flamenco canon. 
 
MARTHA GONZALEZ (Scripps College), “Sonic 
(Trans)Migration: Rhythmic Intention in 
Zapateado.”  
 
My talk will be informed by experiential methodologies 
shaped by my musical practices, both as (1) a Chicana 
vocalist, percussionist and composer in the Chicano rock 
band Quetzal, and (2) a participant in the transnational 
music movement Fandango sin Fronteras (Fandango 
Without Borders). My analysis is based on embodied 
knowledge generated through my shared musical 
practices in these communities rather than an objective 
formal analysis of musical notation. By interrogating 
the sonic aspect of movement, particularly the footwork 
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of zapateado Jarocho, I seek to reorient our minds in how 
we perceive both dance and music. In this sense I 
attempt to recount the many historical voices and 
dialogues that resonate in the striking of feet on wood. 
Conceiving dance as a sonic experience and or considering 
dance as an important sound source, I suggest that one 
can gain valuable insight and additional narratives 
within a culture’s historical hybrid trajectory. Ultimately 
I suggest that rhythms processed by the body are not 
just marking time in music and dance practice, but 
rather political acts rooted in resistance. 
 
JESSICA GOTTFRIED (Instituto Veracruzano de 
la Cultura / Universidad Veracruzana 
Intercultural), “The Fandango as Fiesta and 
the Fandango within the Fiesta: Tarima, 
Cante and Dance.”  
 
Working toward a definition of the fiesta and 
understanding the role of music, dance and performance 
in the different types of fiesta, the starting point for this 
paper is that the fiesta conserves, recreates and transmits 
intangible heritage. Of many musical, dance, poetic and 
festive traditions that are named fandango, this paper 
focuses on examples from 21st century traditional 
contexts in Mexico (Fandango Veracruzano, Fandango 
Istmeño), Spain (Fandangos de Huelva) and Brazil 
(Fandango Caiçara).  The Fandango Veracruzano and 
the Fandango Caiçara are fiestas that revolve around the 
tarima and the zapateado or tamanqueado dancing which 
integrate with the musical ensemble as part of the 
percussion. The spatial, social, and musical organization 
around and on the tarima structures the fiesta and the 
performance and interaction of dancers, musicians and 
public. The Fandango Istmeño, the Fandango Parao’ and 
the Fandango de Santa Eulalia take place during the 
fiesta: they are elements within its structure, they occur 
at specific moments, and they contribute to giving the 
fiesta character and identity. What role do these 
fandangos play in the spatial, social and musical 
organization? How do they contribute to determining 
the structure of the fiesta?  
 
GABRIELA GRANADOS (American Bolero 
Dance Company), “Fandango, A Dance with 
Castanets.” 
 
Castanets have always been a part of Spanish culture, 
whether in music or dance. When the Romans advanced 
into the Iberian Peninsula circa 215 BC, they brought 
back to Rome stories of seductive female dancers from 
Cádiz, the Puellae Gaditanae, who danced with honey on 
their hips and seashells in their hands. Just like the 
Seguidillas, the Fandango and the castanets have been 


inseparable partners for centuries. I will start by giving a 
brief history of the castanets. Secondly, I will 
demonstrate steps and castanet rhythms used in 
fandango dances. And finally I will dance José Molina’s 
choreography of “Fandango” from the zarzuela Doña 
Francisquita, by Amadeo Vives.  
MICHELLE HABELL-PALLÁN (University 
of Washington), and IRIS VIVEROS (Gender, 
Women, & Sexuality Studies, University of 
Washington), “Women Who Rock 
the Fandango: Lessons in Convivencia  and 
Polyrhythm.” 
 
The resurgence of fandango practices in Chican@ 
communities across the U.S. has reaffirmed forms of 
consciousness shaped by bailadoras and musicians that 
transform gender relations on and off "la 
tarima."  In particular, Seattle Fandango Project's 
practice of convivencia, what scholar & practitioner 
Martha Gonzalez describes as the co-creation of social 
space within the context of fandango, has supported 
the Women Who Rock Oral History Archive (hosted by 
the University of Washington’s Libraries Digital 
Initiatives Program), Film Festival, and 
annual Encuentro/unconference. Inspiring what we call 
archivista praxis, this presentation dialogues about the 
promise and tensions generated when scholarship, 
archive-building, graduate mentoring, media production 
and community engagement congeal 
around conviviencia practiced within fandango over the 
last 5 years. In dialogue with Gonzalez and 
bailadora Iris Viveros, we focus on Viveros's use of the 
term “polyrhythm,” that demonstrates how 
polyrhythmic participatory-based music practices like 
fandango embody sociopolitical realities and decolonial 
imaginaries that produce alternative modes of 
knowledge production, modes, which ultimately create 
a framework for supporting archivista praxis in Women 
Who Rock.  
 
NANCY G. HELLER (University of the Arts 
[Philadelphia, PA]), “Spanish and Hispanic 
American Depictions of Dancing in El velorio 
del angelito.”  
 
Some Spanish and Hispanic American paintings that 
appear to be celebratory genre scenes turn out, on closer 
inspection, to represent wakes. More specifically, they 
depict el velorio del angelito, a ritual in which a child’s 
corpse is dressed in white, adorned with a floral crown 
and paper wings, and surrounded by people who eat, 
drink, sing, and dance, often with wild abandon.  
Traditional belief held that the soul of such an innocent 
would ascend directly to Heaven…unless its wings were 
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weighted down by mourners’ tears; hence, the 
apparently festive tone of these sad gatherings.   
For centuries such velorios have been described in 
travelers’ accounts and ethnographic studies; they have 
also inspired novels, films, visual art and theatrical 
choreography. This paper will focus on the broader 
significance of several modern painted velorios that 
depict a seemingly incongruous combination of smiling 
guests engaged in various kinds of dancing, with tiny 
white coffins.  It will end with a film clip of a dance-
piece based on the velorio, performed to music that is 
clearly related—in its tonalities and harmonies--to the 
fandango. 
 
JOSÉ MIGUEL HERNÁNDEZ JARAMILLO 
(Ethnomusicology, Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México), “The Fandango in 
Nineteenth Century Flamenco: The Untold 
Story.” 
 
Contrary to what is commonly assumed, flamenco in the 
second half of the nineteenth century was significantly 
different from that of today. Much research about 
flamenco is predicated on a series of prejudices, myths 
and assumptions, sometimes self-interested, trying to 
explain the processes of flamenco in the nineteenth 
century within the parameters of today's flamenco. This 
fact has impeded the understanding of flamenco's true 
dimensions during this period. For example, today it is 
unanimously accepted that the fandango is one of the 
main musical expressions of flamenco, but, in the first 
golden age of flamenco, in the last quarter of the 
nineteenth century, we note a significant absence of 
fandango on the Spanish stage, while other musical 
expressions of flamenco were represented almost daily 
in cafes cantantes and theaters, both in Spain and in 
Europe and America. This paper will analyze the role 
that the fandango occupied in various levels of 
nineteenth-century Spanish society, from rural or 
suburban areas to performances at theatres and 
aristocratic parties, in order to reveal the processes that 
shaped the fandango within the world of nineteenth-
century flamenco. 
 
CLAUDIA JESCHKE (University of Salzburg; 
Director, Derra de Moroda Dance Archives at 
the University of Salzburg), “The Fandango 
in 19th Century Theory and on European 
Stages: Henri Justamant’s Les Conscrits 
Espagnols.”  
 
Dance theory discussed the Fandango as part of the 
Hispanomania in 19th century Europe; choreography 
displayed the use of this cultural hype on dance stages. 


‘Spanishness’ was considered to broaden the movement 
vocabulary used so far for theatrical dancing. 
Furthermore, it allowed the dancers to develop more 
expressive and personal performance modes. The ballet 
masters, thus (or as well), included a great number of 
Spanish dances into their works. Henri Justamant (1815 
– 1886), one of the most prolific choreographers of his 
time, left over 100 ‘livrets de mise en scène’, i.e., 
notations and descriptions of his many stage 
productions. These manuscripts present the 
documentation and dramaturgic usage of a great 
number of Spanish dances; a Fandango, notated in the 
ballet Les Conscrits Espagnols of 1850/51, will be the topic 
of a close reading in this lecture that intends to 
exemplify some concepts as well as practice-based 
programs of the Fandango in European (dance) culture.  
 
ALAN JONES (Independent Scholar, Paris), 
“Emergence and Transformations of the 
Fandango.”  
 
As it filtered into every level of Spanish society, the 
fandango underwent surprising changes not only in 
style and technique but also musical structure and even 
meter. The voluptuous, spontaneous and nearly 
unstructured dance described by Casanova and others 
was subjected to rules, ornamented with courtly steps 
and recast in the mold of the English country-dance and 
French contredanse. An unlikely hybrid of the fandango 
and minuet, the minué afandangado, briefly found favor, 
while the alternating copla/estribillo structure typical of 
the seguidillas durably marked the regional fandangos 
danced in Spanish villages even today. We end with a 
glimpse at the little-known fandango fever that seized 
the straight-laced town of Boston in the 1790s. Musical 
examples and a wide-ranging selection of texts are 
included. 
 
ADAM KENT (Brooklyn College), “Enrique 
Granados and Manuel de Falla: The 
Fandango through the Concert Hall to the 
Corral.”  
 
The Fandango has been an internationally recognized 
“trope” in European classical music since the early 
eighteenth century. Spanish-born and Hispanicized 
composers such as Domenico Scarlatti, Padre Antonio 
Soler, and Luigi Boccherini created a tradition of the 
fandango as a virtuoso keyboard or chamber music 
work, featuring increasingly frenzied variations over a 
simple harmonic formula, while Mozart famously 
alluded to the genre as a courtly dance in the third act of 
his Marriage of Figaro. Enrique Granados and Manuel de 
Falla, Spanish nationalist composers of the early 
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twentieth century, treated the Fandango to post-
romantic and impressionistic harmonic vocabulary and 
the outlines of sonata form. In “El Fandango del Candil” 
from his Goyescas suite for solo piano, Granados 
employs a full arsenal of late-nineteenth century piano 
techniques, much as Falla utilizes the resources of the 
Debussyian orchestra in the “Danza de la molinera” 
from the ballet El sombrero de tres picos. “Enrique 
Granados and Manuel de Falla: The Fandango through 
the Concert Hall to the Corral” examines the 
idiosyncratic ways these composers employ 
contemporary mainstream compositional approaches to 
evoke the earthy spirit of the dance’s folkloric origins. 
Live performances by pianist Adam Kent of both works 
will augment the presentation. 
 
KEYNOTE ADDRESS: ELISABETH LE GUIN 


(University of California at Los Angeles), 
“Tonadilla and Fandango: How a Genre and a 
Practice Intersect and Diverge.”  
 
There is considerable confusion about the supposed 
relationships of the Spanish tonadilla to the Hispano-
Caribbean fandango; and there is also considerable 
reason for it. It is my contention that the various things 
that have been called “tonadilla” in the history of 
hispanophone theater and song have never had a 
systematic, coherent, meaningful relationship at all to 
the even more various things that have been called 
“fandango.” At best, some mutual borrowings, fleeting, 
on the sly. 
 
The main problem with which I wish to engage here lies 
in those words “systematic, coherent, meaningful” as a 
historiographical problem concerning the possible 
relationships between genre and practice. There are 
worlds of distance here; they can be expressed in terms 
of social estate, in terms of urban and rural, peninsular 
and colonial and indigenous cultures, in terms of 
literacies. Whose system? Whose meaning? Genres 
reference and to some extent create a hegemonic world 
through which actions are disciplined and codified into 
texts, while practices can and do elude or exceed 
discipline, codification, and hegemony—and with them, 
any firm relationship to the idea of ‘history.’ 
 
My talk is a meditation on several questions. How can 
these worlds communicate? As a historical musicologist, 
I have learned that it can be fruitful, if tricky, to study 
genres like the 18th-century tonadilla for the para-
textual traces they contain of the practices that enacted 
them. It appears to be trickier still to go in the other 
direction, and study historical practices for the traces 
that the textual world may have left upon them. Diana 
Taylor’s work offers us some elegant suggestions here, 


but urgent questions still abound: Are we too eager to 
codify, to find coherence—in short, to make history—out 
of the sprawling transhistorical, transcontinental 
practice/genre complex that is summoned, kraken-like, 
by the word “fandango”? And, if historicization violates 
the nature of practices, what options remain to us as 
scholars sincerely wishing to understand them? 
 
MICHAEL MALKIEWICZ (Mozarteum University 
Salzburg), “Ceci n’est pas un fandango.”  
 
Based on the few documents that we have about the 
fandango as a social dance in the 18th century, we can 
infer that the fandango is an erotically stimulating, 
heterosexual couple dance. The music, normally played 
by a guitar, is often accompanied by castanets, which are 
played by the dancers themselves. As already outlined 
in my article about the dance scene in Le nozze di Figaro 
(Malkiewicz 2007), Mozart's fandango – represented as a 
male solo dance by Figaro, inviting another man (the 
Count) to dance with him – must be understood as an 
‘anti-fandango’, raising many questions about its 
specific meaning. At this conference, I would like to talk 
about the engraving La danse du Fandango (18th Century), 
which shows a dancing couple. The dance is free of any 
erotic elements, the dancers do not use castanets and, 
instead of a guitar player, they are accompanied by a 
male harpist, sitting on the left side of the engraving. 
Iconographic topoi teach us to ‘read’ the harpist as a 
‘representative of king David’. Both sources—Mozart’s 
Figaro and this engraving—show an untypical fandango 
and refer to a biblical subtext. The presentation of these 
two sources should evoke a stimulating discussion. 
 
PETER MANUEL (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), “The Fandango as a Family of 
Musical Forms in the Afro-Hispanic 
Atlantic.”  
 
Despite the considerable amount of astute scholarship 
on the fandango in its diverse transatlantic incarnations, 
the fandango complex remains an unruly, sprawling and 
enigmatic congeries of entities.  Confusion has been 
exacerbated by the common usage of the term 
‘fandango’ to denote any festive event, rather than one 
linked to other fandangos in terms of similarities in 
dance or music. In this presentation I seek to impose a 
certain interpretative order on a broad constellation of 
Hispanic-Atlantic musical forms, linking and arranging 
them in terms of a set of formal features that can be 
retrospectively regarded as intrinsic to a certain core 
fandango family, distinguished by a ritornello based on 
a chordal ostinato, a copla section, and other details. 
Core constituents of this complex are Andalusian 
fandangos del sur and 18th-century fandangos de salon, 
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while the complex also accommodates such genres as 
the Cuban punto de Carvajal and varieties of Mexican son 
huasteco. 
 
GABRIELA MENDOZA GARCÍA (Gabriela 
Mendoza-Garcia Ballet Folklorico), 
“Envisioning the Nation through Dance: The 
Teaching and Performance of the Jarabe 
Tapatío in 1920s and 1930s Mexico within the 
Educational System.”  
 
Early twentieth-century Mexican music scholar Gabriel 
Saldívar argues that the jarabes began with the influences 
of the Spanish zapateado dances, especially the Seguidilla 
and Fandango that were popular in the sixteenth century, 
as well as the Zambra. The colonists brought these 
zapateado dances with them to New Spain.  In his telling, 
dances such as the Fandango were transformed over time 
as a result of the influences of people who lived in 
Mexico. By 1921, one dance became so beloved that it 
was considered the national dance of Mexico—the Jarabe 
Tapatío.  My paper focuses on how Mexico’s early 
twentieth-century educational system promoted the 
teaching and performance of the Jarabe Tapatío in order 
to culturally unify the country. I argue that in early 
twentieth-century Mexico, the Jarabe Tapatío operated as 
a colonizing project that worked alongside educational 
policies designed to assimilate the indigenous and 
peasant communities while encouraging a nationalistic 
sentiment. 
 
JOHN MOORE (University of California, San 
Diego), “Cante Libre is not Free – Contrasting 
Approaches to Fandangos Personales.” 
 
Flamenco song forms are often divided into two 
categories: cante a compás and cante libre; respectively 
those with a steady rhythmic structure and those said to 
lack any regular rhythmic structure.  Most of the cante 
libre forms belong to the generalized fandangos family 
and derive ultimately from rhythmic folkloric song 
forms. Cante libre emerged in the late 19th and early 20th 
centuries, as professional singers expanded the flamenco 
repertoire by transforming these rhythmic forms into 
libre vocal showpieces, including fandangos personales, 
which are often associated with the 20th century ópera 
flamenca movement.  This talk will examine two 
contrasting approaches to rhythm in fandangos personales: 
those associated with Pepe Marchena and Manolo 
Caracol.  I propose a continuum of rhythmic expression 
– from a fairly clear structure to one that approaches 
true cante libre.  Interestingly, however, one finds 
vestiges of compás, even in the freest expression of cante 
libre. 


 
KIKO MORA (University of Alicante), 
“An Introduction to Popular Spanish Music 
in the Nineteenth Century USA.”  
 
This paper aims to analyze, using newspapers, 
magazines, and scores released by North American 
publishing houses of the era as primary sources, the 
introduction of Spanish popular music in the U.S. 
during the nineteenth century, with special emphasis in 
the New York area. My paper has a historiographical 
character, which I consider fundamental with regards to 
the supply of hard facts for a later understanding of the 
particularities of Spanish music in its contact with North 
American culture. To this historiographical 
reconstruction follows a brief analysis of the first 
Spanish musics recorded by the National Phonograph 
Company, owned by T. A. Edison. 
 
PAUL D. NAISH (Guttman Community 
College, CUNY), “The Revels of a Young 
Republic: Revolutionary Possibilities of the 
Fandango in Timothy Flint’s 1826 Francis 
Berrian.”  
 
Timothy Flint’s 1826 Francis Berrian, the first novel 
written in the United States with a Latin American 
setting, features a young Massachusetts native who 
rescues a Conde’s daughter from a band of Comanches 
and participates in Mexico’s war for independence.  A 
fandango at the woman’s estate forms a pivotal set piece 
where “old and young, parents and children, masters 
and servants” mix in a giddy dance that anticipates a 
future happy union between Mexico and the United 
States. Yet the fastidious American recoils at this display 
of cross-class informality, and the titled Mexican woman 
chastises him for his snobbery. Perhaps inadvertently, 
Francis Berrian suggests that American ideas of equality 
might be better practiced on the dance floor of 
aristocratic Mexico than they are realized in the Republic 
of America. 
 
ERICA OCEGUEDA (Arizona State University), 
“Frozen Footwork: Folklórico Falters 
Following Fandangos Footsteps.”  
 
On February 1st, 2014 I attended the second annual 
University Folklórico Summit, “Resurrecting the Roots, 
Empowering our Existence,”at California State 
University, Fullerton. The overarching goal of the 
conference was to support student leaders of Mexican 
folklórico groups from mostly California and the 
Southwest, through workshops and social events, as 







	
  
	
  


	
   19 


they worked to create efficient and sustainable 
university folklórico groups. One of the scheduled 
events was a fandango for Saturday afternoon.  The 
conference leaders asked the participants to improvise to 
fandango on top of tarimas. These folkloristas were used 
to choreographed steps and when asked to initiate 
movement they stood still and frozen.  How has the 
latest surge in fandango popularity affected Mexican 
folklorico groups in how they train and learn dances? 
How do fandango jams work to influence and 
complicate the legacy of Mexican folklórico performance 
left by the recognized grand dame of folklorico, Amalia 
Hernández?  How is fandango working to contemporize 
Mexican folklorico dance’s influence within its 
established university and high school structures? 
 
ÁLVARO OCHOA SERRANO (Centro de Estudios 
de las Tradiciones de El Colegio de 
Michoacán, “Personajes y tradiciones 
populares del Occidente de México”),  
 “Mitotl, Fandango and Mariache or Mariachi, 
a Space of Communal Fiesta.”  
 
The fandango, understood as a space of celebration in 
central western Mexico and on the Pacific coast, has 
antecedents in the Prehispanic mitotl (mitote, dance). It 
received its naturalization papers during the epoch of 
colonial New Spain, especially in the eighteenth century; 
at the same time it became a synonym of the mariache or 
mariachi in Mexican national life. In this sense, and in 
order to clearly explain, we will follow the central 
western route described above, and the coastal route 
given impetus by the attraction of the California Gold 
Rush following 1849.  
 
SONIA OLLA AND ISMAEL DE LA ROSA 


FERNÁNDEZ, FLAMENCO ARTISTS. 
 
Born and raised in Barcelona, Sonia Olla earned a degree 
in Spanish Dance and Flamenco at the “Instituto de 
Teatro y Danza of Barcelona.” Sonia has shared the stage 
with flamenco greats such as Rafael Amargo, Antonio 
Canales, Domingo Ortega, Aída Gómez, Eva la 
Yerbabuena, Rafaela Carrasco, María Pagés, La Farruca, 
Alejandro Granados and the famed Nuevo Ballet 
Español. In 2011, Sonia directed, choreographed, and 
danced the lead in “Entretiempo,” with flamenco singer 
Ismael de la Rosa Fernández at the renowned Teatro 
Lara of Madrid, and in 2014, “Tiempo Al Aire,” at Joe’s 
Pub and Lincoln Center Outdoors.  
 
Born in Seville, Spain, of Gypsy descent, Ismael de la 
Rosa Fernández grew up performing in flamenco 
festivals throughout the world with his internationally 


renowned family, “La Familia Fernández.” In 2004, 
Ismael won the National Contest of Cordoba, 
singing bulerías for famed dancer Soraya Clavijo, and 
that same year he was a finalist in the Festival de Cante 
de La Union. Ismael also regularly participates with his 
family in the celebrated Bienal de Flamenco de Sevilla. 
Ismael has worked with flamenco legends such as 
Antonio Canales, Farruquito, Marina Heredia, El 
Torombo, Leonor Moro, María Pages, and Sonia Olla. 
 
RAQUEL PARAÍSO (Independent Scholar), “Re-
contextualizing Traditions and the 
Construction of Social Identities through 
Music and Dance: A Fandango in Huetamo, 
Michoacán.” 
 
From the 1920s onwards, the post-revolutionary 
Mexican state supported intellectuals and artists in 
their quest to discover, describe, and catalog Mexican 
popular cultural expressions. Music, dance, and poetry 
were among such expressions that suffered from a 
process of selection and de-contextualization as the state 
aimed to create typical regional traditions to represent 
Mexico and Mexican identity, thus narrowing the 
country’s actual cultural diversity. Now, with a renewed 
interest in both the study and performance of these 
traditions, some are trying to bring them back to the 
social contexts in which they originated and were once 
performed, authenticating their popular nature in 
shared spaces. At popular fiestas—and in more formally 
organized events—Mexican sones have become the 
center of attention as practitioners, cultural promoters, 
and audiences are reclaiming the original context of 
their production and performance, embracing their 
music, dance, and poetry to reflect a way of 
understanding life. Thus, the fandango has become a 
statement of roots, identity, and ownership of one’s 
culture in various parts of Mexico. The revitalization of 
the son experience entails a connection with the past, 
which brings a powerful element into the practice. My 
paper deals with a fandango in Huetamo, Michoacán, as 
an example of re-contextualizing traditions and the 
construction of social identities through music and 
dance. 
 
ALLAN DE PAULA OLIVEIRA (West Parana State 
University [UNIOESTE]), “Brazilian 
Fandango: traditionalism, identity and 
policies of cultural heritage.”  
 
This talk will present a framework of the Brazilian 
fandango as it is played today. Traditionally related to 
communities that live in coastal areas of two Brazilian 
states (São Paulo and Paraná), the fandango, as a 
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complex that integrates dance and music, has a great 
importance to these communities as an element of 
traditional cultural practices. In this way, it is an 
important element to discuss locality and identity. 
Beside this, it has a central role in the internal social 
dynamics of these communities, operating as a leisure 
practice and, at the same time, regulating social 
relationships. The conference will also talk about the 
place of fandango in political debates about cultural 
heritage in Brazil for the last ten years. Public policies 
have been created in order to regulate its changes and its 
traditional role in the communities in which it is played. 
 
RICARDO PÉREZ MONTFORT (Centro de 
Investigaciones y Estudios Superiores en 
Antropología Social [CIESAS]), 
 “The Fandango as an Example of the 
Circulation of Culture between Mexico and 
the Caribbean.”  
 
This work explores the fandango as a representation of 
the fiesta and ritual of a mestizo tradition in nineteenth 
and twentieth century Mexico, the Antilles, the southern 
states of Central America, and the Atlantic Coasts of 
Colombia and Venezuela. Beginning in the second half 
of the nineteenth century and the early twentieth 
century, when the regional stereotypes of the “jarocho,” 
the “abajeño,” the “costeño,” and the Mexican 
“huasteco,” “jíbaro,” “guajiro,” “paisano,” and “llanero” 
took shape in the hinterlands of the insular Caribbean 
universe, with its coastal boundaries, this presentation 
begins with a descriptive and critical analysis of regional 
characteristics, with supposedly unique details specific 
to regional cultures. Often contradicting reality and 
more aptly considered a product of the assumptions and 
imaginings of those who describe the fandangos, I 
attempt to identify the elements that make up the fiesta 
and perhaps prove that we are seeing a circulation of 
cultural values that manifests in multiple vectors. At the 
same time, I will review the diverse iconographic 
representations that accompany the texts of these 
chronicles, with the goal of establishing how they 
generate a set of assumptions that will eventually serve 
as a resource for traditional and regional identity. In this 
way my presentation focuses on the growing distance 
between representation, lived experience, and the 
circulation of central elements imposed and revitalized 
in the territories and areas studied here. 
 
AURÈLIA PESSARRODONA (Università degli 
Studi di Bologna) and MARÍA JOSÉ RUIZ 


MAYORDOMO (Universidad Rey Juan Carlos, 
Compañía de Danza “Esquivel”), 
“Choreological Gestures in Iberian Music of 


the Second Half of the Eighteenth Century: A 
Proposal for a Historically Informed 
Interpretation of the Fandango.”  
 
Within the framework of this conference dedicated to 
the fandango, the team formed by choreologist María 
José Ruiz Mayordomo and musicologist Aurèlia 
Pessarrodona will present a study of the gestural 
language this genre, an aspect that has been almost 
completely omitted in the many studies of the fandango. 
Our proposal emerges from a cross-disciplinary 
methodology (music-dance and theory-practice) that 
analyzes the gesture of musical work gleaned from the 
“ideal” dancing body of the second half of the 
eighteenth century, establishing in this way a dialogue 
between the choreographic context of the composer, the 
bolero tradition and other eighteenth-century 
repertories. In this case our intention is to analyze the 
eighteenth-century phenomenon of the fandango with 
an appreciation of its variety (generic, functional, and 
even semantic), in order to later focus on a possible 
“paradigm” of the eighteenth-century instrumental 
fandango seen in now classic works by Nebra, Soler, 
Mozart, Gluck, and Boccherini. The principal novelty of 
our proposal lies in examining this repertory in light of 
the extant choreographic sources, transmitted only 
through oral tradition within the professional world of 
the bolero dance, and also in tracing the 
correspondences between the bolero tradition and its 
direct choreographic antecedents, such as the jácara. 
Thus, this proposal attempts to unite theorists and 
interpreters of the fandango phenomenon in a holistic 
manner, as in its era the components of the 
performance—composer, interpreter, and audience—
understood perfectly the gesture inherent in these 
danced airs because they had internalized and 
incorporated them by dancing them. Nonetheless, these 
corporeal codes, emerging from a specific cultural 
context, are usually absent in contemporary 
interpretations of eighteenth-century repertory. We 
wish, in other words, to recapture them, to restore and 
interpret these works from a choreographically and 
choreologically informed point of view. 
 
WILFRIED RAUSSERT (Bielefeld University, 
Center for InterAmerican Studies), “‘When 
Fandango Hits the Border, When Music 
Comes to Town’: Mobilizing Music, 
Participatory Cultures, and Translocational 
Community-Building in the 21st century.”  
 
What I investigate more closely in this presentation 
could be summoned up as ‘sonic cosmopolitics’ from the 
people for the people. The term I use in this context is a 
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redefinition of the classic term “cosmopolitanism” 
frequently associated with a Eurocentric view from high 
above or far away, associated with elitism and 
privileged travelers. What I argue is that sonic 
cosmopolitics offer us new alternative ways of revisiting 
cosmopolitanism at the crossroads of music and 
grassroots politics in the beginning of the 21st century. 
Music projects such as the transnational diaspora project 
Fandango Sin Fronteras and the Ginger Ninjas’ The 
Pleasant Revolution Tour are musical endeavors that are 
irreversibly connected with participatory cultures and 
recent movements of the people that pursue locally as 
well as translocally oriented grassroots politics to create 
a new civic society. 
 
LÉNICA REYES ZÚÑIGA (Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México), “Musical Relations 
between Spanish Malagueñas and Fandangos 
in the Nineteenth Century.”  
 
The fandango, as a musical expression, had a strong 
presence in the Iberoamerican musical scene in the 
eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries. Well into the 
nineteenth century, the fandango was replaced on the 
Spanish stage by other expressions that became crowd 
favorites.  One of these was the malagueña, a piece that, 
as had happened with the fandango decades earlier, 
gained an important place not only on stage but in other 
performative spaces. In the field of flamenco, the 
malagueña has been regarded as a derivative of 
fandango due to musical similarity, even though there’s 
little research to explain which musical features are 
similar. For this reason, besides the popularity of both 
musical expressions not only in Spain but also in other 
Latin American countries, I consider it important in this 
work to delve into this matter. In this paper the 
relationship between fandango and malagueña will be 
shown, detailing what musical features they share and 
which are specific to each one. Using the SAAP 
Software, musical paradigmatic analysis is applied to a 
large corpus of scores of nineteenth century Spanish 
malagueñas and fandangos. 
 
CRAIG RUSSELL (California Polytechnic State 
University), “The Fandango in Mozart’s The 
Marriage of Figaro: The Prism of Revolution 
in the Enlightenment.”    
 
From the Renaissance onward, Spanish culture had 
developed two highly differentiated strands of dance 
styles, which reflected completely different societal 
contexts—the baile reflected the peasant, commoner, and 
ruffian, whereas the danza depicted royalty, nobility, and 
high society. During the Enlightenment of the eighteenth 


century, however, several new genres arose that held 
that each person was inherently worthy, regardless of 
class, ethnicity, gender, or social status.  No dance better 
encapsulated this new egalitarian philosophy of the time 
than the fandango.  This new genre was a sort of “audible 
photograph” of “natural law”—a musical depiction of 
the “natural laws” articulated by Newton and Leibniz in 
physics and by Adam Smith, Jefferson, and Voltaire in 
government.  When Jefferson stated it was “self-evident 
… that all men are created equal,” the fandango 
proclaimed it on the dance floor. In crafting their first 
opera together, The Marriage of Figaro, librettist Lorenzo 
da Ponte and composer Wolfgang A. Mozart drew upon 
these dance genres and their cultural associations to 
perfectly reflect the conflicts between characters and 
class structures in their drama.  Based on the 
Beaumarchais play of the same name, the entire opera is 
a clash between servant and master, and to tell their tale, 
da Ponte and Mozart adeptly use the historical divisions 
between baile and danza. Using a rigorous examination of 
structural symmetries in Figaro, I will argue that one of 
the first things the creators did when sketching out their 
narrative was to place the fandango at center stage, using 
it at key moments to proclaim the triumph of intellect 
and of a transparently worthy servant over the artificial 
“worth” of an abusive count (an encapsulation of the 
Enlightenment’s essence).  Both Susanna and Figaro sing 
egalitarian messages, and it is significant that they both 
use the fandango at these key moments as their musical 
vehicle to convey their message.  
 
RAMÓN SOLER DÍAZ (Professor of 
Mathematics and Ethnomusicologist), “The 
Fandango in Málaga: From Dance Song to 
Heart-Shattering Song.”  
 
Málaga—both the capital and the province—occupies a 
place of singular importance in the birth of flamenco, a 
musical genre that began to develop in parts of 
Andalusia from earlier musical traditions in the mid-
nineteenth century. The fandango in this southern 
Spanish province manifests in a diversity of forms 
unknown in other regions. Its oldest variants are still 
practiced—with great vitality—in the pandas de verdiales, 
groups with guitars, tambourines, cymbals, song, and 
dance. They originate in the agrarian regions of the 
Málaga countryside, growing out of the roots of pre-
Christian fertility rites. Around 1860 the music of these 
danceable fandangos slowed down and lost their 
orchestration, to become, with only guitar 
accompaniment, what are now called fandangos 
abandolaos, one of the first forms of flamenco song of 
which we have notice. At the end of the nineteenth 
century the fandangos definitively lost their basic 
rhythm and the personal fandangos were born, reaching 
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the height of popularity until the end of the cafés 
cantantes (the music halls where flamenco was born), in 
the decade of the 1920s. Both the fandangos abandolaos 
and also malagueñas make up the customary repertory of 
cantaores—flamenco singers—of today. The 1920s saw 
the birth of the era of “Flamenco Opera”—an era in 
which many singers created numerous styles of 
fandangos, the earliest of which were elaborations of 
folkloric fandangos. In Málaga these fandangos, the 
fandangos personales, were widespread and popular. 
Today there lives in the city of Málaga the greatest living 
representative of fandangos personales, El Álvarez (b. 
Málaga, 1947), a singer of great expressivity who, 
despite never having worked professionally, has been 
admired by figures like Chano Lobato, Camarón, Luis el 
Zambo, and Duquende. In 2010 a full length 
documentary film directed by Vicente Pérez Herrero, 
titled Válgame Dios, qué alegría tiene esta gente qué fatigas 
tengo yo, was released by RTVE, a portrait of El Álvarez’s 
life and singing. 
 
ESTELA ZATANIA (Editor, deflamenco.com), 
and BROOK ZERN (Flamencoexperience.com), 


“The Physical Forms and Cloaked Politics of 
Flamenco Fandangos.”  
The focus of this academic gathering is "fandangos," a 
concept so vast, the word even transcends its standard 
usage within the world of music.  This presentation 
however, deals strictly with the here and now of the 
flamenco manifestations of fandangos. The reference to 
physical forms and cloaked politics, reflects not one 
combined topic, but two separate ones.  On the one 
hand, we'll look at the role of fandangos as a tacit 
symbol of non-gypsy culture, often unfairly perceived as 
a lesser or inferior branch of flamenco. Within Spain this 
has become a profoundly emotional topic, as flamenco 
followers feel compelled to choose sides in the great 
racial divide, which in turn has far-reaching 
sociopolitical underpinnings. The rest of the 
presentation will be a succinct description and 
demonstration of the music and verse-forms 
of flamenco fandangos, focusing in particular on how an 
extremely diverse rhythmic treatment makes for a wide 
emotional range, all the way from light folklore to 
extreme stylization and sophistication. 
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The Foundation for Iberian Music is a cultural and educational initiative that promotes and disseminates the classical 
and popular traditions of Iberian music, including those rooted in the Mediterranean, Latin American, and Caribbean 
cultures. 


The Foundation presents interdisciplinary programs that bridge the gap between academic and general interests, 
including: 


• Public events such as concerts, lectures, and exhibitions. 
• Scholarly activities including publications and conferences, as well as the development of a comprehensive 


archive of scores, books, and recordings. 
• Professional opportunities that foster exchange among students, scholars, performers, composers, musicologists, 


and music educators. Student employment, scholarships, dissertation grants, and fellowships will be available. 


Drawing together world-renowned musicians and scholars in the field, the Foundation for Iberian Music is the only 
endeavor of its kind entirely dedicated to the study, research, and performance of Iberian music. In addition to its general 
objectives, the Foundation aims at increasing knowledge of the reception and influence of Iberian music in the United 
States, and to further understanding of the links between folklore, contemporary popular genres, and classical music. It 
seeks insight into the multi-cultural, multi-linguistic constitution of the Iberian Peninsula, encompassing Christian, 
Islamic, and Jewish traditions. 


The Foundation for Iberian Music encourages donations from institutions and individuals through The Graduate Center 
Foundation, Inc. 


Honorary Member: 
Alicia de Larrocha (23 May 1923 – 25 September 2009) 


Advisory Board: 
Malena Kuss, University of North Texas 
Paul Laird, University of Kansas 
Peter Manuel, The City University of New York 
William Summers, Dartmouth College 


Director: 
Antoni Pizà 


Research Assistant: 
Katie Straker 


Contact Information: 
Antoni Pizà, Director 
Foundation for Iberian Music 
CUNY Graduate Center 
365 Fifth Avenue 
New York, NY 10016 


(212) 817-1819 (tel.) 
(212) 817-1569 (fax) 


iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu 
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Since its founding in 1868 the primary objective of the Centro Español – Spanish Benevolent Society is to “promote, 
encourage and spread the spirit of fraternity and solidarity among Spanish and Hispanic-American residents of this 
country. In those early years, the Society served as an essential support system for Spaniards immigrating to the United 
States, acting as their de facto home away from home in New York. While the needs of their members have changed 
greatly since that time, the Spanish Benevolent Society still remains committed to assisting individuals who come from 
Spain to seek a new way of life in New York. It has served as a meeting ground for political dissidents and 
revolutionaries, avant-garde poets and artists – including the groundbreaking director Luis Buñuel and the modernist 
poet Federico Garcia Lorca, who wrote sections of his famous anthology “Poet in New York” during his stay at the 
Society. It is even said that Picasso stopped in for a taste of home. The Centro Español – Spanish Benevolent Society 
believes in a diverse, multi-cultural Spain. It supports the expression and promotion of all her languages and customs, 
and has long been a hub of flamenco activity in New York.  The Society holds several events each week that are topical 
and relevant expressions of our diverse culture, including hosting Alegrías en La Nacional.  
 
The Spanish Benevolent Society is an American not-for-profit, 501(c)(3) tax-exempt, charitable organization. The Society 
and building on 14th street are member-owned and receives our support from membership and corporate partnerships. 
 


Alegrías en La Nacional presents A Night in Andalucia, a traditional Flamenco show called tablao. Alegrías presents the 
best local and international artists every Saturday, offering the experience of an authentic flamenco night out. Alegrías 
serves tapas, paella, sangria, wine, beer, etc.,  You can eat and drink while you enjoy the show. There are two shows per 
night scheduled at 8:30 and 10:45. Each show is one hour long. Open seating at 7:30PM. Cover price is $22, conference 
participants, students, and senior citizens get $5 off the cover price. For reservations please call (929) 312-9604 or send an 
email to info@alegrias.com. 
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Upcoming events from February 13th
 

 

PERFORMING ARTS
CAMBUYÓN

till February 22nd
@ The New Victory Theater

209 West 42nd Street, NY
10036
+ INFO

 

Join us to meet the man who supplies an entire jazz band with
his vocal cords and a cast that will dazzle you with body

complex rhythms

When it comes to making instruments out of everyday objects,
anything goes for the charismatic cast of CAMBUYÓN. Wooden
crates, recycled glass bottles and even a small matchbox find new
life in the hands and feet of this energetic ensemble.

Through body percussion, tap dance, hip hop and drumming, these
performers trade robust beats and cultural cadences to form unique
rhythms with African, Irish, Spanish and American influences. Part
dance, part music and every part exuberant, CAMBUYÓN makes
the ordinary extraordinary.

Upcoming shows:
Friday, 2/13 at 7pm
Saturday, 2/14 at noon and 5pm
Sunday, 2/15 at noon
Monday, 2/16 at noon
Wednesday, 2/18 at noon
Thursday, 2/19 at noon
Friday, 2/20 at noon and 5pm
Saturday, 2/21 at noon and 5pm
Sunday, 2/22 at noon and 5pm
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MUSIC
FLAMENCO RIOT: LA SHICA "ESA"

February 19th at 7pm
@ Instituto Cervantes New York

211-215 East 49th Street, NY 10017

 

"Esa" is a selection of the songs this award-
winning breakthrough artist has been singing
throughout her life. A work that arises from her
innermost heart, it is without a doubt the most
raw of her works, the most rehearsed and
perhaps less retouched.

"Esa" is a live concert and, at times, a musical
striptease. Guitar: José Luis Ordóñez. Purchase
tickets here.

 

 

 

 FILM
BLANCANIEVES THE FILM

February 18 & 20 at 8pm
@ Winter Garden at Brookfield Place

230 Vesey Street, NY 10281
 The acclaimed Silent Films/Live Music series will

return to the Winter Garden at Brookfield Place
in February with a slate of four Man Ray films
selected by filmmaker Jim Jarmusch.

Plus the U.S. premiere of Blancanieves by Pablo
Berger with live accompaniment (featuring
Alfonso Villalonga), the silent hit that swept
Spain's Goya awards in 2013.

 

 + INFO    + INFO  
 

 

 

 

VISUAL ARTS
FROM ANCIENT TO MODERN:
ARCHAELOGY AND AESTHETICS

till June 7th
@ Institute for the Study of the Ancient
World
15 East 84th St, NY 10028

 

The highly anticipated exhibition "From Ancient
to Modern: Archaeology and Aesthetics", opens
on February 12, 2015.

With some 50 outstanding ancient objects, and
more than 100 related documents, photographs,
and drawings, this exhibition examines the
fascinating process through which
archaeological objects are transformed from
artifacts to artworks and, sometimes, to popular
icons.

 

 

 

 

 PERFORMING ARTS
'TANGO 5 SERIES' AT THALIA SPANISH
THEATRE

till March 22nd
@ Thalia Spanish Theatre

41-17 Greenpoint Ave, Sunnyside, NY 11104
 Indulge in this performance and allow your

senses to immerse in one of Latin America's
most dynamic, playful and romantic music
genres. It's tango like you’ve never heard, seen,
felt, tasted or experienced before!

Music Composed, Arranged & Directed by Latin
Grammy winner Raúl Jaurena Produced.
Directed by Ángel Gil Orrios With Singers Marga
Mitchell and Mario Barreiro.

 

 + INFO    + INFO  
 

 +   
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   GRANT OPPORTUNITIES

SINCE LAST AUGUST, MR JUAN JOSÉ HERRERA
DE LA MUELA IS THE NEW CONSUL FOR
CULTURAL AFFAIRS OF SPAIN IN NEW YORK.

 
OPEN CALL FOR 2015 CULTURAL GRANTS IS NOW
CLOSED. PLEASE CHECK OUR LINKEDIN PROFILE TO
BE UPDATED ABOUT UPCOMING CALLS.

+ INFO  + INFO
 

FACEBOOK

 

TWITTER

  
CONSULATE GENERAL OF SPAIN IN NEW
YORK- 150 EAST 58TH STREET FLOOR 30,
NEW YORK, NY 10155

  

  MEMBER OF THE NETWORK SPAIN ARTS &
CULTURE  

  

WITH THE SUPPORT OF AECID-
COOPERACIÓN ESPAÑOLA, MINISTRY OF
FOREIGN AFFAIRS AND COOPERATION OF
SPAIN

 

  

AIR EUROPA & FREIXENET, OFFICIAL
SPONSORS OF THE FALL WINTER SEASON
2014 - 2015

 

   

 
2015 - CONSULATE GENERAL OF SPAIN IN NEW YORK. SPAIN CULTURE NY. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

 

This message was sent to apiza@gc.cuny.edu from:

Spain Culture New York | communication@spainculturenewyork.org | Consulate of Spain in New York | 150 East 58th Street
30 FL | New York , New York 10155
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Yaalah

May 21, 2015, 7pm, $13.50 Adults / $10 Seniors&Students 
The New York Andalus Ensemble presents Ya'alah, Ya'alah, an
evening of music and song from al-Andalus and North Africa. This
biannual concert at our home venue, the Elebash Recital Hall at the
City University of New York-Graduate Center, features a performance
by the large ensemble (10 vocalists, 10 instrumentalists).

Featuring: 
Dr. Samuel Thomas, artistic director, oud, vocals, nai

Vocalists: Khadidja Guendil, Prosper Lankry, Sjimon den Hollander, Judy Myers,
Fatiha Makloufi, Ola Galal, Natalie Haziza, Gail August, Ouidad Kadri, Debbie
Leiderman

Instrumentalists: Elie Massias, Dror Shahaf, Moshe Weidenfeld, Megumi
Saruhashi, Jonathan David, Nadav Remez, Daniel Ori, Nobuko Miyazaki, Matt
Hanson

For more info: NewYorkAndalusEnsemble.com/performances

From: NY Andalus Ensemble
To: The Foundation for Iberian Music
Subject: Upcoming May/June 2015
Date: Monday, May 11, 2015 3:32:46 PM
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NYAE Concert 052115
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Upcoming Performance Dates

5/21 – CUNY, Elebash Recital Hall, New York, NY TICKETS
5/31 – Greek Jewish Festival, Lower East Side Outdoors [small ensemble] 
6/1 – Sephardic Temple, Cedarhurst, Long Island, NY TICKETS 
6/14 – JCC Manhattan, Global Sunday Series, New York, NY TICKETS 
6/21 – Makin’ Music New York Festival, Gramercy Park Outdoors [small
ensemble]

For more details, click here.

www.NewYorkAndalusEnsemble.com

©2015 SRT Productions | 1717
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From: Piza, Antoni
To: Straker, Kathryn
Subject: update if needed
Date: Tuesday, February 03, 2015 12:13:00 PM

https://sites.google.com/site/fandangoconference/home

Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016

-----Original Message-----
From: Straker, Kathryn
Sent: Tuesday, February 03, 2015 10:41 AM
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
Subject: Update
Date: Tuesday, March 24, 2015 8:34:14 PM

Dear Antoni

How are you? I hope you're doing well. My work is going forward. I have been getting advice
from Prof. Ken Aigen from our music therapy department regarding my analysis of the data
and the research method in general. He specializes in qualitative research methods. He thinks I
may still have a chance to make the April 23rd deadline. I'm going to work very hard to make
it. I'll do my best to give you a draft for you to review as soon as possible, probably in couple
of weeks. 

I am also going to attend one of the two days of your conference in April (Saturday). I'm going
to register very soon. I look forward to seeing you then!

Sincerely,

Midori

-- 
Midori Larsen
Piano Studies, Ph.D. candidate
Department of Music and Performing Arts Professions
Steinhardt School of Culture, Education, and Human Development, New York University
http://steinhardt.nyu.edu/music/students/bios/larsen

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://steinhardt.nyu.edu/music/students/bios/larsen


From: Douglas Riva
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Update
Date: Wednesday, May 06, 2015 10:39:11 AM

Buenos días, Antoni

Ya instalado en Richmond.  Un proceso largo y complicado pero con un buen resultado.

Mis nuevas señas:

1350 Westwood Ave.
Unit 313
Richmond, VA 23227

804 367 5782
mobile 917 856 6467

Me gustaría saber como hemos quedado con Lyndon. 

¿Sigue trabajando contigo Katie?  Quiero cambiar y añadir cosas  al web.

Un abrazo,

Douglas

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Harewood, Althea
Subject: Updated PDF Fillable Request for Wire Transfer Form & Instructions
Date: Wednesday, March 04, 2015 11:07:30 AM
Attachments: Request For Wire Transfer.pdf

Wire Transfer Instructions (NTL).docx

Dear Fund Managers,  

Please find attached an updated PDF fillable Request for Wire Transfer Form and Wire Transfer
Instructions.

All wire transfers must be requested on the updated PDF fillable Request for Wire Transfer Form.  To
ensure legibility and accuracy, complete the PDF copy of the form before printing.  All of the required
fields (including Memo Information) must be completed and must be clear and legible.   The form must
also include the Fund Manager’s signature.  Incorrect information may delay the processing of a wire
transfer. 

As always, please call me if you have any questions.  Thank you very much.

Kind regards,

Althea

Althea Harewood
Director of Finance for Related Entities

Business Office

365 Fifth Avenue – Suite 8401

New York, NY 10016

(212.817.7662 | Fax: 212.817.1636
:aharewood@gc.cuny.edu

mailto:aharewood@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:aharewood@gc.cuny.edu



Business Office - Suite 8401    REQUEST FOR WIRE TRANSFER 


 


 


Instructions:  


1. Complete this form online and provide all the information requested (incomplete and handwritten forms will not be processed). 


2. Print a copy of your completed form and forward it to the Business Office (Room 8401), along with your Payment Request Form 


and the supporting documentation. Please be aware that no specific date can be guaranteed for foreign wires. 


 


Department Name: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 


Department Contact Person: _________________________________________ Phone Number: ______________________ 


 


Beneficiary (Payee) Information (The payee name must match the name on the bank account to be credited): 


Name: _____________________________________________ Email address: ____________________________________ 


Address: ____________________________________________________ City: _______________________________ 


State: __________________________ Zip Code: _______________ Country: __________________________________ 


Amount of Payment: __________________________________ (USD Only) 


Beneficiary Bank Information: 


Bank Name: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Bank Address: ____________________________________________________ City: _______________________________ 


State: __________________________ Zip Code: _______________ Country: __________________________________ 


Type of Wire (Select One): 


 Domestic Wire:   


ABA #: _______________________________ Account # (no spaces/dashes): _______________________________ 


 International Wire:  


SWIFT/BIC Code: ________________________________________________________________________________ 


IBAN/Acct # (IBAN required for EURO countries): ____________________________________________________________ 


Memo Information (invoice #, notification info, descriptions, etc.): ______________________________________________________ 


Check if Intermediary Bank Information Provided 


Intermediary Bank Name: _________________________________________________________________________ 


Intermediary Bank Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 


Account #: ______________________________ ABA # / SWIFT / BIC Code _________________________________ 


 


Approval: Fund Manager’s Name: ____________________________________________________________________ 


  Fund Manager’s Signature: __________________________________ Date: ________________________ 


For Graduate Center Business Office Use Only: 


Initiated By: Signature: ___________________________________________  Date: ________________________ 


Approved By: Signature: ___________________________________________  Date: ________________________ 


 



http://www.gc.cuny.edu/home
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REQUEST FOR WIRE TRANSFER AND FORM



All wire transfers must be requested on the updated PDF fillable Request for Wire Transfer Form.  To ensure legibility and accuracy, complete the PDF copy of the form before printing.  All of the required fields (including Memo Information) must be completed and must be clear and legible.   The form must also include the Fund Manager’s signature.  Incorrect information may delay the processing of a wire transfer.  



When is it appropriate to request a wire transfer?



[bookmark: _GoBack]Wire transfers are generally issued to foreign (international) payees only.  U.S. (domestic) payees are generally paid via check, unless extenuating circumstances exist.  A wire transfer may be the best payment method when:



· The vendor will have difficulty cashing a check drawn on a U.S. bank account or issued in U.S. dollars;	

· There is risk, if mailed overseas, the payment will be delayed or check may be lost in the mail.



Processing a wire transfer is manual and costly, so this payment method should be used only when it makes good business sense.



For Domestic Wires the following is needed: Beneficiary Information and Beneficiary Bank Information, including account number, ABA number/Routing number.



For International Wires the following is needed: Beneficiary Information and Beneficiary Bank Information, including SWIFT / BIC code.  Additional information may be required from some countries, but that will be requested as needed.  If the Payee bank is part of the European Community, the IBAN and SWIFT / BIC are required. 



What is the IBAN? 



· The IBAN (International Bank Account Number) is a series of alphanumeric characters which uniquely identify an account held at a bank. It can be up to 34 characters long and contains a two-character country code, two check digits, and the basic bank account number. The basic bank account number identifies the bank as well as the account holder. In printed format, spaces are inserted for readability (i.e. DE16 5003 3300 0532 0130 00). 



What is the BIC? 



· The BIC (Bank Identifier Code) is an 8-character code also known as the SWIFT address and is uniquely assigned to banks. Branch codes can be added to the BIC to further designate which branch of a bank should receive the SWIFT message. When a branch code is added, the BIC has 11 characters (i.e. BARCGB22 or DEUTDE3B400). 



Please note that additional fees may be deducted by the beneficiary bank from the final amount sent to the payee.  The Business Office has no control over these fees.







From: Julian Elvira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Urgente
Date: Monday, June 15, 2015 7:17:11 PM

Hola Antoni
Nos han timado y estamos en NY sin casa y sin saber que hacer.
Podrías ayudarnos de alguna manera?gravias. Mi número es 0034646016918
Mil gracias

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Piza, Antoni
To: Wilfried Raussert
Cc: fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
Subject: USB
Date: Saturday, June 06, 2015 2:29:00 PM

Dear Willi, thanks so much for the film snipets you sent.
 
I will be speaking with Meira soon about your proposal regarding an institutional agreement.  There
should be no problem.
 
Best wishes!!
 
Antoni
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:wilfried.raussert@uni-bielefeld.de
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com


From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: varias cosas...
Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 12:21:55 PM

Querido Antoni,

Estoy muy ilusionada con lo de Oxford -- me dijo Norm ayer que ya consiguió
evaluadores...fingers crossed!!! 

Y estoy preparando una beca para NEH, que la entrego mañana, y despues me pondré de lleno
a atender a la publicación de MOS.

(está clarísimo que la otra beca del NEH no será posible!!!)

Los ponentes me están pidiendo cartas...Vino Katy ayer? Yo tengo las cartas todas, pero hay
que imprimir, firmar, escanear, etc., no? Ella vendrá el martes que viene? Si no, puedo pasar a
la oficina y hacerlo yo.

Claudia Calderón también quiere video de su ponencia - no tengo idea como conseguir acceso
a eso...

Te llamé ahora, llamame si quieres--estoy aquí en el hotel una hora más, y luego ya me voy al
entierro. ¡Que corta esta vida!

besos,

M 

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
Subject: verdi scans
Date: Tuesday, March 17, 2015 12:47:22 PM
Attachments: grout-verdi.pdf

 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu



































From: Piza, Antoni
To: jmelo@rilm.org
Subject: Vicens biblio
Date: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 3:25:00 PM
Attachments: Items Francesc Vicens RILM.docx

Hi James,
 
This researcher and professor would like to be included in RILM.  See attachment.
 
I’ll come to see you and explain…
 
Thanks
 
Antoni
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:jmelo@rilm.org

BOOKS

· VICENS, Francesc (2013): El Cant de la Sibil·la. Patrimoni de la Humanitat, Palma: Lleonard Muntaner – ISBN 978-84-15592-83-9



· VICENS, Francesc (2012): Paradise of Love o l’illa imaginada. Música i turismo a la Mallorca del anys 60, Palma: Documenta Balear – ISBN 978-84-15432-26-5



· VICENS, Francesc (2010): I Cantaven un Càntic Nou … (AP. V,9) Els Ancians músics de l’Apocalipsi a l’art romànic hispànic, Barcelona: Publicacions de l’Abadia de Montserrat, col·lecció Scripta et Monumenta 88 – ISBN 978-84-9883-277-8



· VICENS, Francesc (2010): Diguem Visca Sant Antoni! Una aproximació musical a la festa, Palma: Documenta Balear – ISBN978-84-15081-30-2



· VICENS, Francesc (2008): Diabolus in Musica. Formes de pecat i redempció a la iconografia musical del romànic hispànic, Palma: L’Hiperbòlic – ISBN 978-84-936138-3-9



PERIODICAL

· VICENS, Francesc: “La Sibil·la globalitzada. El Cant després de la UNESCO” a Canemàs. Revista de pensament associatiu II, (2012), pp. 88-99 –ISSN – 2014-5519



· VICENS, Francesc: “La iconografía com a Font per a l’organologia medieval. L’exemple dels àngels músics del Portal del Mirador de la Seu” a Estudis Musicals XVI, 2010, pp.45-62  - ISSN 1887-0848



· VICENS, Francesc: “El tema de la Passio Christi en la iconografía musical románica: textos y contextos de representación” a Codex Aquilarensis XXI, 2005, pp.96-109 – ISSN 0214-896X







From: Piza, Antoni
To: Meira Goldberg
Subject: viernes
Date: Thursday, June 25, 2015 8:50:00 AM

Hola Meira, yo prefiero reunirnos cualquier dia la semana que viene.  Mañana viernes estare un
poco agobiado.
 
Te importa?
 
Dime que dia y que hora… a mi me viene bien cualquier dia
 
Besos
 
A
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 
From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 24, 2015 7:44 PM
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: Peter Manuel
Subject: Re: ayuda para traducción?!?!?
 
SO HELPFUL THANK YOU!!! :-D
 
On Wed, Jun 24, 2015 at 11:20 AM, Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu> wrote:

La terminologia es confusa
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


Sent: Wednesday, June 24, 2015 10:50 AM
To: Piza, Antoni; Peter Manuel
Subject: ayuda para traducción?!?!?
 

Queridos y estimados colegas,

Guillermo Castro está escribiendo de tiempos binarios - 6/8, y ternarios - 3/4. Peter dice que
no se traduce "binary" y "ternary" porque estos términos refieren a la poesía -- y "triple-
meter" sirve muy bien...pero duple sería 4/4 o algo por el estilo, no es cierto? Sería posible
decir "in twos" o "accented in twos" o algo así?

besos
--

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of
the equality of the human spirit.” 
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
Date: Friday, January 09, 2015 10:51:52 AM

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
To: Old, Constance
Subject: Wall Street journal article
Date: Wednesday, May 13, 2015 4:18:25 PM

I loved that article!! Very interesting guy!
Thanks!
I still need to read the other article on the financial times

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:cold@gc.cuny.edu


From: Piza, Antoni
To: Straker, Kathryn
Cc: La Meira (lameira2011@gmail.com)
Subject: web??
Date: Tuesday, January 20, 2015 11:33:00 AM

Meira:  do you need Katie to do any updates on the web?
 
Thanks
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com


From: World Music Institute
To: The Foundation for Iberian Music
Subject: Weekend festival celebrating Indian dance & culture
Date: Friday, April 03, 2015 3:42:40 PM

Sent by: World Music Institute
Reply to the sender

DANCING THE GODS - the weekend festival celebrating Indian dance &
culture that brought such perfomers as Nrityagram to New York City for the first
time leading to the recent inspired performance at The Met's Temple of Dendur

"The performance, presented in collaboration with the World Music Institute,
should stand as one of the most extraordinary dance events of the year." – New
York Times

If you missed this intimate event in January at The Met, please join us for a
weekend festival celebrating Indian dance & culture to see the new stars of
Indian Dance.

DANCING THE GODS 2015 

April 25, Rama Vaidyanathan & Dakshina Vaidyanathan

April 26, Prashant Shah & The Parul Shah Company

Co-curated by Rajika Puri

Skirball Center for the Performing Arts

Dance Performances, lectures/demonstrations - chat & chai - more! 

Tickets: $35, $40 Adults / $30, $35 WMI Friends / $5 Children

For tickets and information call: 212-545-7536 or visit wmi.org April 25 / wmi.org April 26

Lighting Design by Sridhar Shanmugam

WMI Presents Masters of Indian Music:
USTAD SHAHID PARVEZ KHAN

Friday April 10, 8 pm at Symphony Space

Ustad Shahid Parvez Khan is a seventh-generation sitar maestro from the illustrious Etawah Gharana
school, a centuries-old musical dynasty dating back to the moghul courts. Khan is lauded for his
technical brilliance and innovative genius and is especially praised for the vocal phrasings of his raga
improvisations. He has received numerous awards, including the prestigious Sangeet Natak Academy
Award, Padma Shri. In addition to being an inspiring performer, he is a dedicated guru. He will be joined
by Hindole Majumdar on tabla.

Tickets:
$95 VIP* / $35 Adults / $30 WMI Friends / $5 Children

*VIP $95 tickets include a reception with the artist, complimentary food & drinks

Event Information & Tickets: 212-545-7536 or worldmusicinstitute.org

Promotional Partner: Sunny Thakkar

If you have already made a purchase and would like to upgrade to VIP tickets, please call WMI Box Office at 212-545-7536 or email boxoffice@worldmusicinstitute.org 

WEDNESDAY APRIL 22, 7PM

Thalia Theatre at Symphony Space 

NORDIC FIDDLERS BLOC

Norway, Sweden and the Shetland Islands have some of the richest fiddling traditions in the world.
Representing them in this program, respectively, are Olav Luksengård Mjelva, Anders Hall and Kevin
Henderson, three of the finest young fiddlers on the international folk circuit. They play traditional tunes
and original compositions, and with strength, humor and plenty of banter, illustrate the distinct sounds
of and cultural ties among the people of the North Atlantic rim. 

http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAT-----wAIvC0
mailto:iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/f?cide=AUWASw-jg7_GAUu5Kw
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAB5wAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAB5wAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAB5wAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAGDgAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAI2gAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwAXAAAJXAAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwATAAABPAAIvC0
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwATAAAHbAAIvC0
mailto:boxoffice@worldmusicinstitute.org
http://worldmusic.pmailus.com/pmailweb/ct?d=ALtGD1YCgwASAAABtgAIvC0


King Sunny Adé &
His African Beats

30th Anniversary Season Opening Concert 

June 26, 2015 - 8:00pm
At 92nd Street Y

Often called “The African Bob Marley” legendary singer, composer, multi-
instrumentalist and master African musician, King Sunny Adé and his African Beats
return to New York for their first tour of the United States in 7 years. Adé is widely
considered one of the most influential musicians of all time and will be
accompanied by a cadre of 17 musicians and singers, and a rotation of 5 dancers. 

“Sunny Ade is Afro-pop royalty, his huge band sending out waves of percussion to support the leader’s keening vocals and supple, spidery guitar
playing.” — Chicago Tribune

This concert is co-presented by World Music Institute and 92nd Street Y.

FROM OUR FRIENDS

TABLAO SEVILLA
Flamenco Direct from Spain

World-renowned artists, Sonia Olla and Ismael Fernández come from a long lineage of
famous flamenco gypsies known as the Familia Fernández. They are excited to present
many special guest artists direct from Spain, including Ismael Fernández’s son, Ismael “El
Bola,” rising-star and one of flamenco’s most sought-after vocalists. Tablao Sevilla
provides the ultimate experience for authentic flamenco, flamenco puro.

For more info: www.soniaolla.com 

Date of Event: April 8

Roger Smith Hotel, 501 Lexington Avenue (enter on 47th St.) 

Time: Doors: 6pm / Show: 7pm 

Ticket Price: $55 General Seating (includes 1 drink) 

Purchase tickets at: www.tablaosevilla.com

212-545-7536 | worldmusicinstitute.org 

 
This e-mail was sent from World Music Institute

Immediate removal with PatronMail®
SecureUnsubscribe.
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From: Samuel Thomas
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: weinreb serenade carter donation
Date: Monday, May 11, 2015 1:31:56 PM

Hi Toni,

We should be receiving another donation of $750 in the mail soon. Please keep an eye out for 
it. I’m not sure if they stipulated NYAE on the check.

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


From: GC Community Notice
To: GC-Community
Subject: Welcome back from President Robinson
Date: Tuesday, February 17, 2015 1:29:59 PM

The Graduate Center - Office of the President

February 17, 2015

Dear Colleagues,

Welcome to faculty, students, and staff new to the Graduate Center—and welcome back to those

who begin anew. The spring semester begins at a brisk tempo, set by last fall’s momentum. With

the end of the academic year now in sharper focus, we can look ahead with real optimism.

Advanced teaching, scholarship, and research—all at the heart of the Graduate Center’s mission—

continue to thrive. Underway this semester is the Futures Initiative, a far-reaching project led by

Cathy Davidson that will develop new methods of teaching and research. The yearlong Seminar on

Public Engagement and Collaborative Research, funded by the Andrew W. Mellon Foundation, has

also begun at the Center for the Humanities, exploring how the humanities can function in public

life and as a public good.

 

Meanwhile, the Advanced Research Collaborative (ARC) welcomed its second cohort of scholars:

seven Distinguished Fellows, four of whom come from sister campuses within CUNY, and three

from universities across the United States and Europe. They join eight other ARC Fellows and will

conduct research and collaborate with 15 student fellows, under the direction of Don Robotham.

 

We are fortunate to welcome visiting faculty members, including David Papineau (Philosophy) of

King’s College London, who will teach every spring beginning this month, and Kofi Agawu (Music),

who joins us from Princeton. And by the end of the spring or early summer, a half dozen faculty

searches will be brought to fruitful conclusion.

 

Thanks to the Provost’s Office, Admissions, and admission committees, applications for our Ph.D.

and master’s programs remain very strong, in both numbers and quality. And we continue to

mailto:/O=CUNY/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=GC-CommunityD
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Initiatives-and-Committees/The-Futures-Initiative
http://centerforthehumanities.org/page/seminars
http://centerforthehumanities.org/page/seminars
http://centerforthehumanities.org/
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Degrees-Research/The-Advanced-Research-Collaborative


grow: just this past week, a proposal for a M.A. in Women’s and Gender Studies was approved,

and the M.A. in Liberal Studies Program, so ably led by Matt Gold, is attracting students as never

before, drawing upon the City’s extraordinary diversity.

 

Our appeal is enhanced by a focus on ensuring greater access and equity. I am pleased to

mention that in December we announced an application fee waiver for any student who has

graduated from a CUNY college with a bachelor’s or master’s degree, or who will have graduated

from one before starting at the Graduate Center. The waiver, effective as of last December,

applies to applications to any of the GC’s doctoral and master’s programs.

 

Because CUNY is in the final year of a five-year budget compact with the State, the future beyond

2016 is unclear. Even so, I am glad to report that Graduate Center scholarship and research are

receiving the support they deserve from other sources.

 

Grant activity is up—indeed, at a level not seen since before the financial crisis in 2008: over $9.7

million in grant funding was awarded to GC faculty, students, and staff between last July and

December. Awards range from a $1.5 million National Science Foundation grant to the

Luxembourg Income Study Center, led by Janet Gornick, to notable grants secured by Michelle

Fine, Matt Gold, Bruce Homer, Ruth Milkman, and Rod Watts. All affirm the innovative research

and dedicated efforts across the institution.

 

Much of the winning research capitalizes on CUNY’s vibrancy. For example, the Graduate Center

was awarded a grant to establish a National Language Resource Center (LRC)—one of just 15

nationwide. Overseen by Alberta Gatti of the Institute for Language Education in Transcultural

Context, it will benefit from a wealth of University partnerships and resources.

 

Challenges in raising money for the Graduate Center are considerable: our alumni base is

relatively small, and most work in the non-profit sector. That said, financial support from donors—

a critical factor in ensuring our continued success—is now showing impressive gains. Here I would

like to make special mention of the hard and effective work of our Development Office, under the

leadership of Jay Golan. The annual fund has seen a 41 percent increase over last year’s total at

the six-month mark, and a 42 percent boost among alumni specifically in year-end totals, year

over year.

 

The Development Office also played a pivotal role in establishing the inaugural Marilyn Jacobs

Gittell Chair, held by Celina K. Su, associate professor of political science at Brooklyn College. The

professorship, funded by a $2.3 million gift from SAGE Publications and its founder and executive

chairman Sara Miller McCune, enhances the GC’s stature as an interdisciplinary hub for urban and

community research.

http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Masters-Programs/Liberal-Studies.aspx?ad=mals
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/News/GC-News/Detail?id=28409
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Centers-and-Institutes/Luxembourg-Income-Study-Center
http://www1.cuny.edu/mu/forum/2014/09/30/the-graduate-center-awarded-funding-for-national-language-resource-center-lrc/
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Centers-and-Institutes/Institute-for-Language-Education-in-Transcultural-Context
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Centers-and-Institutes/Institute-for-Language-Education-in-Transcultural-Context
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/News/GC-News/Detail?id=28125
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/News/GC-News/Detail?id=28125
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/News/GC-News/Detail?id=28125
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uzxcQrDaRcQ


 

Public events resume with renewed vigor this month, reflected in the lineup organized by our new

Director of Public Programming, Karen Sander. Keynote events feature the likes of Alison Bechdel,

Bill T. Jones, Eric Bogosian, and the GC’s own Morris Dickstein and Gregory Downs, with other

panels, performances, and conversations scheduled well into May.

 

This month also marks the inaugural Provost’s Distinguished Alumna/us Lecture, with Colin Dayan

(Ph.D. ’80, Comparative Literature), whose talk is titled “Up Against the Law, or, the Impossible

Color of Separation.” I do hope to see many of you there.

 

For all the positive news that ushers in the new year at the Graduate Center, we remain mindful of

the social unrest that closed 2014. In light of these realities, we are more determined than ever to

ensure a diverse community and a community of diverse ideas, concepts I first discussed in my

Convocation address last fall.

 

I am pleased to report that we continue to make advances in these institutional priorities. Here I

especially wish to thank Robert Reid-Pharr, who chaired a diversity task force that I created last

spring. This task force has now delivered its report, and Louise Lennihan and I look forward to

working with colleagues on our shared commitment to diversity. The work of that task force is one

of several initiatives underway, including new faculty appointments and a website of important

resources, that focus specifically on fostering greater diversity and inclusion.  

 

I close by reminding you that spring culminates with our 51st Commencement on Wednesday,

May 27, at Lincoln Center. This year’s three honorary degree recipients will be announced soon.

For the first time in many years, we will also host a party in our graduating students’ honor.

 

Best wishes for a healthy and productive semester.

Kind regards,

Chase F. Robinson Signature

Chase F. Robinson 

President

 

http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/GC-Keynote-Events.aspx?utm_source=gcsite&utm_medium=news&utm_campaign=hpfeature
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29499
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29494
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29500
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29493
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29497
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/Public-Programming/Calendar/Detail?id=29880
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/News/GC-News/Detail?id=28272


From: La Meira
To: Barbara Cohen Straytner; Tanisha Jones; Michelle Heffner Hayes; art; Ruby Goldberg; amelia goldberg; Brenda

DixonGottschild; Cristina Cruces; Kiko Mora; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Whoo Hoo!!! My NYPL blog on Macarrona is finally up!
Date: Wednesday, January 21, 2015 6:59:59 PM

http://www.nypl.org/blog/2015/01/21/juana-vargas-la-macarrona-flamenco#edn11

love to all,

M

-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com

mailto:bcohenstratyner@nypl.org
mailto:tanishajones@nypl.org
mailto:mhayes@ku.edu
mailto:artg@cs.nyu.edu
mailto:rubymgoldberg@gmail.com
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mailto:bdixongottschild@verizon.net
mailto:bdixongottschild@verizon.net
mailto:cristina.cruces.caa@juntadeandalucia.es
mailto:mora.kiko3@gmail.com
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.nypl.org/blog/2015/01/21/juana-vargas-la-macarrona-flamenco#edn11
http://www.lameiraflamenco.com/


From: The Graduate Center Help Desk
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Work Order 192236 "password" has been Completed
Date: Monday, January 26, 2015 2:56:26 PM

***** Reply to this email to append information to [[WO#192236]] *****

The Work Order 192236 you opened Sunday, January 25, 2015 12:53:25 PM "password" has been
Completed by Olmeda, Rene.

If you believe this issue has not been resolved please call or email our Help Desk referencing Work Order
192236.

Please visit and log into our online KnowledgeBase https://help.gc.cuny.edu/portal/ss/ to get answers to
all your technical related questions. 

Thank you for contacting the Help Desk at the Graduate Center,

The Graduate Center Help Desk
Tel. (212) 817-7300
Fax (212) 817-1618

----------------------------------------

Fax (212) 817-1618?subject=APPEND:192236">Click on this link to submit additional information related
to this Work Order.

Fax (212) 817-1618?subject=STATUS&body=192236">Click on this link to request an updated status for
this Work Order.

Fax (212) 817-1618?subject=ALLSTATUS">Click on this link to request an updated status for all of your
recent Work Orders.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://help.gc.cuny.edu/portal/ss
mailto:Helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu


From: The Graduate Center Help Desk
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Work Order 193154 "New account creation" has been Completed
Date: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 9:03:20 AM

***** Reply to this email to append information to [[WO#193154]] *****

The Work Order 193154 you opened Friday, February 06, 2015 11:52:24 AM "New account creation" has
been Completed by Olmeda, Rene.

If you believe this issue has not been resolved please call or email our Help Desk referencing Work Order
193154.

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
Helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu

----------------------------------------

Click on this link to submit additional information related to this Work Order.

Click on this link to request an updated status for this Work Order.

Click on this link to request an updated status for all of your recent Work Orders.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://help.gc.cuny.edu/portal/ss
mailto:Helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu?subject=APPEND:193154
mailto:helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu?subject=STATUS&body=193154
mailto:helpdesk@gc.cuny.edu?subject=ALLSTATUS


From: Ignacio Olmos, Executive Director of Instituto Cervantes New York
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: You are invited to The Garden Party
Date: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 4:41:15 PM

 
Si no ve correctamente este mensaje, pulse aquí
View this email as a web page

Aquí puede darse de baja
Use this link to unsubscribe 

  More info:

www.thegardenpartyicny.com
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From: TheHealthBlog
To: The Foundation for Iberian Music
Subject: You look like a pig.. try this Recipe instead
Date: Monday, May 11, 2015 9:33:37 AM

Healthy Lifestyle News by Mayo Clinic

This Drink Will Shrink Your Waist (Anti-Fat Recipe)

May 11 - The Easy-to-make and All natural drink that is helping millions of people
struggling with obesity in the United States is finally here, Give it a try![diettpro.net]

[diettpro.net]

I've taken this for a couple of weeks[diettpro.net] and not only I losing all of my unwanted fat,
but also My blood pressure and cholesterol levels are NORMAL since then. - Lily (morbidly
obese patient)

Voted Best Recipe of 2015 by US News Health

Unfortunately, this recipe will ne available for a short time.
Read more to find out why [diettpro.net]

Get rid of all that extra Fat and live a healthy life

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__diettpro.net_p3AkYDwClveWBrpz5HtsSj8T5n9kXxI-5FUI1UB22j&d=AwMDaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=d6rvNLsRQtVkzyibckyxb8JAfa5Pr0GBet1vanXezA0&m=JHXzh3PMGkl210nDeF4V7S_jj39VwF00VCHxfe9G_a8&s=6r2GGxvlCNT1d5Zyd29oQ6IIjZjK4XWBoZGCG9ZN7XA&e=
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


 Recipe available Here (May 1st Special)

[diettpro.net]
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French Verbs
(Quickstudy: Academic)
$4.95 

French Grammar
(Quickstudy: Academic)
$6.95 

Recommendations for Items from Across Our Store

From: Amazon.com
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Your Amazon.com order of "Complete Guide to..." has shipped!
Date: Thursday, June 11, 2015 2:29:29 PM

Shipping Confirmation

Hello Antoni Piza,
"Complete Guide to..." has shipped.

Details
Order #107-1582782-1537003

Estimated delivery date:
Wednesday, June 17, 2015 -
Thursday, July 2, 2015

Shipped to:
Antoni Piza (RILM)
365 Fifth Ave...

Total Before Tax:
Shipment Total: 

$12.47
$12.47

Depending on the ship speed you chose, it may take 24 hours for tracking information to be available
in your account.

We hope to see you again soon.
Amazon.com

Unless otherwise noted, items sold by Amazon.com LLC are subject to sales tax in select states in accordance
with the applicable laws of that state. If your order contains one or more items from a seller other than
Amazon.com LLC, it may be subject to state and local sales tax, depending upon the sellers business policies
and the location of their operations. Learn more about tax and seller information.

Your invoice can be accessed here.

This email was sent from a notification-only address that cannot accept incoming email. Please do not reply to
this message.

https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572229071%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_im%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=GHKPIPLDSJPPV0TL6XZYHY6YX9WA&H=APOYNSEQIQYEA7T7EV2ZFL1FG2OA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_im
https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572229071%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=2952HUAYKARTTM7CANVTSLOMAIEA&H=FBX1JQCJBCLX71N3QNXJCPMCVLAA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti
https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572229071%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=2952HUAYKARTTM7CANVTSLOMAIEA&H=FBX1JQCJBCLX71N3QNXJCPMCVLAA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti
https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572225289%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_im%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=FC4ALZGFUS2GCN9DJZXEOYWUPAEA&H=RRPAFYFZTFI9Y7EIOS0NX1GB7GOA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_im
https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572225289%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=CLNHWCWIQEKF136VOBRBAY0CXB4A&H=AEFZCIUOK4LX4E9VI6BWH95AGVIA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti
https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fgp%2Fproduct%2F1572225289%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti%2F179-6642274-6674332&A=CLNHWCWIQEKF136VOBRBAY0CXB4A&H=AEFZCIUOK4LX4E9VI6BWH95AGVIA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_pd_te_s_qp_ti
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https://www.amazon.com/gp/r.html?C=WOBS52892R54&K=A2HAAR94DIGEBD&R=1R009U0QYLWYK&T=C&U=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fref%3Dpe_385040_128020140_TE_SIMP_&A=BAATGNN5QGS5J3YHF0LZYV6G5GUA&H=EXCTQB89AWACRAKNK4YECYGKFDCA&ref_=pe_385040_128020140_TE_SIMP_
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From: Piza, Antoni
To: Samuel Thomas
Subject: your check
Date: Tuesday, February 17, 2015 1:44:00 PM

Sam, I have your check in my office
 
Thanks
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:director@newyorkandalusensemble.com


From: Barbara Mackenzie
To: Tina Frühauf; Blazekovic, Zdravko; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Your conference
Date: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 4:49:59 PM

Dear Tina, Zdravko, and Antoni,

(Antoni knows most of this already.)

The Brook Center site is going to move to a better server, and the WordPress installation, etc., will be
upgraded. During this move and upgrade there will be a period of up to two weeks when no updates can
be made to the site easily. That two-week window will likely be from roughly 2/2 through 2/15.  If
something urgently needs to be added to the site in this period, even with the work underway, Fred Gates
can be called on to make small additions, etc. But we should only do this rarely.

Tina,  I know your conference is coming up in March. Will this cause you a problem? 

Z, any problems from your end? (Antoni--I think you have nothing specific to cause you a big problem
right not, correct?)

B.

mailto:tfruhauf@rilm.org
mailto:zblazekovic@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: proofpoint-pps@gc.cuny.edu
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Your email blocked as probable SPAM: New Message
Date: Sunday, June 14, 2015 11:50:39 AM

Proofpoint
Protection Server
Your email blocked as probable SPAM: New Message For Antoni Piza (apiza@gc.cuny.edu) 

Your message was delayed because it potentially contained spam. You must act within 24 hours or your
message will be discarded. if you choose to send the message anyway, click the "Send" link below.
However, the message may still be blocked by the recipient's spam protection. For further assistance,
please contact the Help Desk at 212-817-7300 or HelpDesk@gc.cuny.edu

Send  Block 
To: jdriva@gmail.com 
Date: 2015-06-14 11:49:50
Subject: hola

For information on using Proofpoint, please go to How to Use Proofpoint Anti-Spam Software at the
Graduate Center

Powered by Proofpoint Protection Server

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://proofmaster1.gc.cuny.edu:10020/enduser/process.cgi?cmd=send&recipient=APiza@gc.cuny.edu&msg_id=(MTU5MWQzM2FlZTQ1NzhhZWE4Mzg2NWJiZjM3YzhlMWVmNDBjZTBkOTY0ZjU=)&locale=enus
https://proofmaster1.gc.cuny.edu:10020/enduser/process.cgi?cmd=block&recipient=APiza@gc.cuny.edu&msg_id=(MTU5MWQzM2FlZTQ1NzhhZWE4Mzg2NWJiZjM3YzhlMWVmNDBjZTBkOTY0ZjU=)&locale=enus
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/CUNY_GC/media/CUNY-Graduate-Center/PDF/IT/IT%20FAQs/How-to-Use-Proofpoint-Anti-Spam-Software-at-The-Graduate-Center.pdf
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/CUNY_GC/media/CUNY-Graduate-Center/PDF/IT/IT%20FAQs/How-to-Use-Proofpoint-Anti-Spam-Software-at-The-Graduate-Center.pdf


From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni; Tony Dumas
Subject: your emails were rejected because too big
Date: Tuesday, March 17, 2015 11:47:21 PM

...so here the enlaces without the attachment...

Estimados colegas,

Check it out!

http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-global-reach-of-the-fandango/

http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/wp-content/uploads/preliminary-program_FINAL-plantilla-
3.17.15.pdf

And please like us on Facebook! https://www.facebook.com/pages/Foundation-for-Iberian-
Music/136456856386092

Everything else is proceeding apace. For Friday presenters, we have a computer at the Grad
Center, so easiest for us is to bring your presentation on a flash drive. For Saturday presenters,
we do not have a computer at the Nacional. Would it be possible for the chairs of that day: me,
Raquel Paraíso, and Tony Dumas, to lend your laptops to the other panelists?

con un fuerte abrazo and so looking forward to next month,

Meira y Antoni

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:gtrcello@gmail.com
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-global-reach-of-the-fandango/
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/wp-content/uploads/preliminary-program_FINAL-plantilla-3.17.15.pdf
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/wp-content/uploads/preliminary-program_FINAL-plantilla-3.17.15.pdf
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Foundation-for-Iberian-Music/136456856386092
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Foundation-for-Iberian-Music/136456856386092


From: Barbara Mackenzie
To: Piza, Antoni; The Foundation for Iberian Music; Graziano, John; Desmond Hosford; Blazekovic, Zdravko
Subject: Your hardware and software needs
Date: Monday, March 09, 2015 3:41:05 PM

Dear Antoni, John, Desmond, and Zdravko,

IT (in the guise of Julie Rivera) has set up a meeting with me for next Monday (16th) to ask about the
Brook Center's hardware and software needs.

This is the moment to let them know what we need!!

Please let me know your thoughts on this by Thursday.

Thanks,
B.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:jgraziano@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:dhosford@rilm.org
mailto:zblazekovic@gc.cuny.edu


From: Interlibrary Loan Department
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Your ILL Renewal Processed
Date: Thursday, June 04, 2015 4:57:22 PM

Dear Antoni Piza,

The renewal you have requested for A brief history of new music has been approved by the library which lent the
item to us. It is now due:
7/3/2015

Title: A brief history of new music
Author: Obrist, Hans Ulrich

ILLiad Transaction TN#: 391319

Please refer to our contact information below if you have questions regarding your request.  When contacting us,
please have the transaction number 391319 available. 

Thank you for using ILLiad.  Please let us know how we are doing -- we appreciate your feedback.

Sincerely,

Mina Rees Library Interlibrary Loan Staff

Questions and comments regarding ILL policies and procedures may be directed to ill@gc.cuny.edu. Our office
phone number is 212-817-7045.
ILL office hours are Monday - Friday, 9am - 5pm.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Piza, Antoni
To: satomoughalian@gmail.com
Subject: your number
Date: Friday, June 19, 2015 10:49:00 AM

Hi Sato, can you remind me of your number.  I’ll call at 11.10
 
THANKS
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

From: Piza, Antoni 
Sent: Friday, May 29, 2015 12:37 PM
To: Sato Moughalian
Subject: Re: conference call June 19. Granados celebrations
 
I'll be around a little bit later... Let me try...

On May 29, 2015, at 10:59 AM, Sato Moughalian <satomoughalian@gmail.com> wrote:

Antoni, I have been in your building the last two days and will probably go up to
the 8th floor for lunch today areound 12:45 if you are here and want to join for a
cup of coffee

On Friday, May 29, 2015, Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu> wrote:

I am fine with June 19.
 
PS:  I thought DC was the “Kapital” of the empire and we, in NYC, were the poor
serfs…
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:satomoughalian@gmail.com
mailto:satomoughalian@gmail.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez [mailto:angel@postclassical.com] 
Sent: Thursday, May 28, 2015 6:05 PM
To: Sato Moughalian; Piza, Antoni; Douglas Riva
Subject: conference call June 19. Granados celebrations
 
Dear all. Just a follow-up to confirm the meeting in NY on June 19 for the
habitants of that glorious city, and by phone with the peasants from
Washington.
I am flexible with time that day. Please, send me your preferences.
Best,
Angel
--
Angel Gil-Ordóñez
Music Director, PostClassicalEnsemble
5104 44th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20016-4039
T: (202) 677-5773
Cell: (202) 321 5795 
E: angel@postclassical.com
W:http://postclassical.com/
    http://www.chesapeakeartists.com/angel-gil-ordonez
Principal Guest Conductor, Perspectives Ensemble, NY
Music Director, Georgetown University Orchestra

 

 

javascript:_e(%7B%7D,'cvml','angel@postclassical.com');
javascript:_e(%7B%7D,'cvml','angel@postclassical.com');
http://postclassical.com/
http://www.chesapeakeartists.com/angel-gil-ordonez


From: New Music USA
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: You"ve been tagged on a New Music USA Project!
Date: Thursday, March 19, 2015 10:45:53 PM

Hello! You've been tagged as a Scholar and adviser in ¡Música Clásica
Hispánica! by Symphony of the City of New York.

Symphony of the City of New York is applying for funding from New Music
USA for a project called ¡Música Clásica Hispánica!. You've been indentified
as a participant in this project.

To confirm that this is true, please click the link below and follow the
directions provided. This won't take more than a minute or two of your time.
https://www.newmusicusa.org/collaborator-confirmation?
user_id=18156&project_id=115758&t=8ca5fd6b2aa3c1bd21008ab21e3fec65

When prompted, use the following username and password:
Username: AntoniPiza
Password: u)6yeL#C8rxd

After confirming, we suggest you fill in your profile with a bio, photo and
samples of your work. Complete profiles help your project's chances of
getting funding and finding new followers.

If you don't understand or think this is a mistake, please let us know at
info@newmusicusa.org

Sincerely,
New Music USA

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://www.newmusicusa.org/


From: Piza, Antoni
To: Meira Goldberg
Subject: Zdravko
Date: Thursday, February 05, 2015 4:26:00 PM

Zdravko aun no me dicho nada del programa…
 
 
 
 
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
 
From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, February 05, 2015 3:12 PM
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: lista de restaurantes
 
...y me están preguntando que buenos sitios hay para jazz...¿qué recomiendas? Bsss

On Thursday, February 5, 2015, Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu> wrote:

Hola!
 
Deberiamos hacer una lista de restaurants en la zona…
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 05, 2015 11:50 AM
To: Julia Del Palacio; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: Radio Jarocho
 
Dear Julia,

How wonderful to meet you by email. I had actually spoken with Bruno Bartra about people
to invite to the conference, and so through him you were already on that list. How fantastic
to meet another dancer/scholar!

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu
javascript:_e(%7B%7D,'cvml','fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com');


And a Jarocho fandango would be just so wonderful. I would venture to guess (Antoni is of
course the last word on this) that for the conference to announce the event as sponsor would
be absolutely fine.

Let me say that we are organizing a group to see Jordi Savall on Thursday April 16, and I
am in conversations with a flamenco place to possibly invite people there for Saturday April
18, so if the fandango could happen on Friday April 17 that would be ideal: the conference
ends at 7pm that day.

Thank you so much - estamos en contacto.

beso fuerte,

Meira
 
On Wed, Feb 4, 2015 at 11:25 AM, Julia Del Palacio <juliadelpalacio@yahoo.com> wrote:

Dear Meira,

Rafael Figueroa gave me your information so I can let you know about the project that I
co-founded and lead, Radio Jarocho. We are a group that plays traditional music from
Veracruz and that works at preserving and promoting the fandango tradition in New York
City. We're interested in organizing a traditional Jarocho fandango during the days of the
Fandango Conference. I will be attending the conference (I'm a history PhD) and will be
getting in touch with other presenters who will be talking about the Veracruz tradition. A
couple of questions, do you have a special program for musical presentations (I know
some people are going to go see Jordi Savall) as part of the conference? If we put together
a Jarocho event, would it be possible to announce the conference as sponsor (though we
wouldn't be asking for monetary support from you, of course)?

I'm eager to hear what you think.

Best regards,
Julia

www.radiojarocho.com

--

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation
—in dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

--

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 

javascript:_e(%7B%7D,'cvml','juliadelpalacio@yahoo.com');
http://www.radiojarocho.com/


 ~ Craig Russell
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